
Board of Examiners Meeting 
July 7, 2015  
Agenda   Page 1 
 

POST 
 

*** NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING *** 
 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS 
 

 
LOCATION:  Capitol Building 

The Guinn Room 
101 N. Carson Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 
 

VIDEOCONFERENCE: Grant Sawyer State Office Building 
    555 E. Washington Avenue, Ste. 5100 
    Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
 
DATE AND TIME: July 7, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Below is an agenda of all items to be considered.  Action will be taken on items preceded by an asterisk (*).  
Items on the agenda may be taken out of the order presented, items may be combined for consideration by the public 
body; and items may be pulled or removed from the agenda at any time at the discretion of the Chairperson. 

 
AGENDA 

 
  1.      PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
*2. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 9, 2015 BOARD 

OF EXAMINERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
 
   *3. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE VEHICLE PURCHASE 

Pursuant to NRS 334.010, no automobile may be purchased by any department, office, bureau, 
officer or employee of the state without prior written consent of the state Board of Examiners. 

 

AGENCY NAME # OF 
VEHICLES 

NOT TO 
EXCEED: 

Department of Administration – Fleet Services Division 127 $3,261,646 
Department of Public Safety – Investigation Division 3 $85,194 

Total 130 $3,346,840 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting 
July 7, 2015  
Agenda   Page 2 
 

*4. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL TO PAY A CASH SETTLEMENT 
 Pursuant to NRS 41.037, the State Board of Examiners may approve, settle or deny any claim or 

action against the State, any of its agencies or any of its present or former officers, employees, 
immune contractors or State Legislators. 

 
A. Department of Transportation (NDOT) – Administration – $1,700,000 

 
The department requests settlement approval in the amount of $1,700,000 to resolve a claim for 
just compensation.  In furtherance of widening I–15 and Warm Springs Road in Las Vegas, as 
part of the I–15 South Design–Build Project, NDOT acquired approximately 2.15 acres of a 
larger 66.15 acre parcel for the purposes of roadway improvement and utility relocation.  The 
remaining 64 acres are jointly owned by Wykoff Newberg Corporation and International 
Smelting Company.  The owners claim the remaining acres were damaged by the transmission 
line relocation, giving rise to severance damages.  NDOT previously deposited $1,290,000 with 
the Court for a right of occupancy.  NDOT now requests an additional $1,700,000 to be paid in 
exchange for entry of judgment and a final order of condemnation, resolving this eminent 
domain action in its entirety.  Approval of the additional amount of $1,700,000 would bring the 
total to $2,990,000. 
 

  B. Department of Transportation (NDOT) – Administration – $1,100 
 
The department requests settlement approval in the amount of $1,100 to resolve an eminent 
domain action to acquire a portion of real property and improvements owned by Allan and C. 
Bridget Jensen and located at 4340 Spring Drive, Reno, Nevada 89502.  The Subject Property is 
a single family home on an improved approximately 7,500 square foot lot.  The acquisition is 
approximately 315 square feet over a portion of the backyard for a duration of two years, with a 
third year option to provide for a temporary construction easement for purposes of widening 
South McCarran.  NDOT previously deposited $6,900 with the Court for a right of occupancy.  
NDOT now requests an additional $1,100 to resolve the action.  Approval of the additional 
amount of $1,100 would bring the total to $8,000. 

 
*5. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT WITH A 

CURRENT AND/OR FORMER EMPLOYEE 
 

A. Department of Public Safety – Director’s Office 
 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Public Safety - Director’s Office requests authority 
to contract with a former Division of Investigations Polygraph Examiner to conduct pre-
employment polygraph examinations and post-conviction sex offender polygraph examinations 
as required by NRS for the Parole and Probation Division upon request. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 
July 7, 2015  
Agenda   Page 3 
 

*6. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE A 
PROVIDER AGREEMENT 

 
A. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Public and 

Behavioral Health 
 

The Division of Public and Behavioral Health is requesting Board of Examiners’ approval for a 
new provider agreement template for a Qualified Mental Health Associate.  This agreement will 
be used for procuring authorized providers throughout the state. 

 
*7. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – LEASES (Attached as Exhibit 1) 

 
*8. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – CONTRACTS (Attached as Exhibit 2) 
 
*9. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS (Attached 

as Exhibit 3) 
 
10. CONTRACTS APPROVED BY THE CLERK OF THE BOARD (Attached as 

Exhibit 4) – INFORMATION ITEM 
 
Pursuant to NRS 333.700 subsection 7 (a), the Clerk of the Board may approve all contract 
transactions for amounts less than $50,000. Per direction from the August 13, 2013 meeting of 
the Board of Examiners, the Board wished to receive an informational item listing all approvals 
applicable to the new threshold ($10,000 – $49,999). Attached is a list of all applicable approvals 
for contracts and amendments approved from May 16, 2015 through June 16, 2015. 

   
11. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. Department of Motor Vehicles – Complete Streets Program 
 

Pursuant to NRS 482.480, subsection 11, the Department of Motor Vehicles shall certify to the 
State Board of Examiners the amount of the voluntary contributions collected for each county by 
the department and its agents, and that the money has been distributed as provided in statute.  
This report is for the period beginning March 1, 2015 and ending May 31, 2015. 
 

B. Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation 
 

LESSEE LESSOR AMOUNT 

Department of Employment, Training and 
Rehabilitation 

Riverbend, LLC dba 5th 
Street Storage $48,960 

Lease 
Description: 

This is a renewal of an existing lease for storage space. 
Term of Lease: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2017 Located in Carson City   

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 
July 7, 2015  
Agenda   Page 4 
 

    12. BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 *13. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Notice of this meeting was posted in the following locations:   
Blasdel Building, 209 E. Musser St., Carson City, NV 
Capitol Building, 101 N. Carson St., Carson City, NV 
Legislative Building, 401 N. Carson St., Carson City, NV 
Nevada State Library and Archives, 100 Stewart Street, Carson City, NV 
 
Notice of this meeting was emailed for posting to the following location: 
Capitol Police, Grant Sawyer State Office Building, 555 E. Washington Ave, Las Vegas, NV 
Capitolpolice–lasvegas@dps.state.nv.us  
 
Notice of this meeting was posted on the following websites: 
http://budget.nv.gov/Meetings  
https://notice.nv.gov/  
 
Any questions regarding the agenda or supporting material for the meeting please contact 
Director Wells at (775) 684–0222 or you can email us at budget@admin.nv.gov.  We are pleased 
to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and would like 
to attend the meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are required, please notify the 
Department of Administration at least one working day before the meeting at (775) 684–0222 or 
you can fax your request to (775) 684–0260. 

mailto:Capitolpolice-lasvegas@dps.state.nv.us
http://budget.nv.gov/Meetings
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:budget@admin.nv.gov


Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 1 Page 1 

 

LEASES 
    BOE 

# LESSEE LESSOR AMOUNT 

1. 

Department of Health and Human Services – 
Child and Family Services – Rural Child 
Welfare 

CMDV, LLC $335,040 

Lease 
Description: 

This is an extension of an existing lease and includes additional space to the current facilities to house the agency. 
Term of Lease: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2020 Located in Fernley   

2. 

Department of Health and Human Services – 
Child and Family Services – Children, Youth & 
Family Administration and Northern Nevada 
Child & Adolescent Services 

Kietzke Office Complex, LLC $193,526 

Lease 
Description: 

This is an extension of an existing lease to house the agency. 
Term of Lease: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2019 Located in Reno   

3. 

Department of Health and Human Services – 
Aging and Disability Services – Rural Regional 
Center 

Nakoma Investments, LLC $33,600 

Lease 
Description: 

This is a new location/relocation lease to house the agency. 
Term of Lease: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2018 Located in Gardnerville   

4. 

Department of Health and Human Services – 
Aging and Disability Services – Early 
Intervention Services and Autism Treatment 
Assistance Program 

Pearce Family $554,208 

Lease 
Description: 

This is an extension and expansion of an existing lease to house the agency. 
Term of Lease: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2020 Located in Carson City   

5. 
Department of Transportation The Terraces #3, LLC $537,519 

Lease 
Description: 

This is a new lease and a relocation to consolidate three leases and to expand space to house the agency. 
Term of Lease: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2020 Located in Elko   

6. 
Department of Transportation McLeod 5, LLC $244,130 

Lease 
Description: 

This is an extension of an existing lease to house the agency. 
Term of Lease: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2021 Located in Las Vegas   

7. 

Department of Administration – Enterprise IT 
Services 

Shenandoah Co., Business Trust dba 
Nye Lane Properties $227,241 

Lease 
Description: 

This is a new lease for an existing location to house the agency. 
Term of Lease: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2017 Located in Carson City  Savings of $42,888 

8. 

Department of  Public Safety – Highway Patrol 
and Parole and Probation APTR, LLC $403,920 

Lease 
Description: 

This is an extension of an existing lease to house the agency. 
Term of Lease: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2020 Located in Pahrump   

9. 
Department of Wildlife MJP JCT Properties, LLC $6,269,444 

Lease 
Description: 

This is a new location to house the agency. 
Term of Lease: 09/01/2015 – 08/31/2025 Located in Reno   

10. 
Board of Examiners for Social Workers Kietzke Office Complex, LLC $99,300 

Lease 
Description: 

This is an expansion of an existing lease to house the agency. 
Term of Lease: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2020 Located in Reno   

 



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 1 

 

CONTRACTS 

   
BOE 

# 
DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

1. 

030 

ATTORNEY 

GENERAL'S OFFICE  

All Budget Accounts 

MORGAN LEWIS & 

BOCKIUS 

OTHER: 

STATUTORY 

CONTINGENCY 

FUND 

$200,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the fifth amendment to the original contract, which provides ongoing outside legal services pursuant to NRS 

41.03435 in the defense of a lawsuit filed against the State of Nevada by the City and County of San Francisco. This 

amendment increases the maximum amount from $1,913,000 to $2,113,000 to adequately fund the contract for the 

remainder of the contract period. 

Term of Contract: 10/09/2013 - 12/31/2015 Contract # 15155  

2. 

051 
TREASURER'S 

OFFICE - COLLEGE 

SAVINGS TRUST 

AMPLIFY 

RELATIONS 

OTHER: 

ENDOWMENT 

TRUST ACCOUNT 

$600,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide public relations and promotion services; TV and radio production and media placement; 

and printing, collateral, and mailing services for the Nevada College Savings Plans.   

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 07/06/2016 Contract # 16836  

3. 
051 

TREASURER'S 

OFFICE - COLLEGE 

SAVINGS TRUST 

THE ABBI AGENCY OTHER: 

ENDOWMENT 

TRUST ACCOUNT 

$200,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide social media messaging and digital marketing for the Nevada College Savings Plans.   

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 07/06/2016 Contract # 16837  

4. 

060 
CONTROLLER'S 

OFFICE 

CLIFTON LARSON 

ALLEN, LLP 

GENERAL $50,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide for the audit of the Public Employees Retirement System's financial statements to comply 

with the requirements of the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB 68) rules.  Contractor will audit the 

Schedules of Employer Allocations and Pension Amounts by Employer and the related notes to both schedules, prepared to 

comply with the requirements of GASB 68.  The contractor shall conduct expanded employer census data testing as part of 

its audit. 

Term of Contract: 07/15/2015 - 12/31/2015 Contract # 16844  

5. 

070 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

HUMAN RESOURCE 

MANAGEMENT 

AERIS 

ENTERPRISES, INC. 

FEE: 

ASSESSMENTS 

$360,500 SOLE SOURCE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide programming and analysis support for developing new features to the Nevada Employee 

Action and Timekeeping System.  The deliverables for this effort include online employee service jackets, payroll reports, 

and a payroll projection module. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16727  

6. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION -  

PUBLIC WORKS - 

BUILDINGS AND 

GROUNDS  

GLOISTEIN, 

LAWRENCE G. DBA 

TIMBERLINE 

ELECTRIC 

FEE: BUILDING 

RENT  

$20,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing electrical services on an as needed basis to 

various state buildings in Northern Nevada. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $45,000 to $65,000 due 

to continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 08/20/2013 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 14828  

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 2 

 

BOE 

# 
DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

7. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS - 

2001 MILITARY CIP 

PROJECTS-NON-

EXEC 

HERSHENOW & 

KLIPPENSTEIN 

OTHER: 

REALLOCATED 

BONDS 

TRANSFERRED 

FROM 

TREASURER 

($215,815) PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which provides professional architectural/engineering services for 

the Field Maintenance Shop (Washoe County Armory); CIP Project No. 13-P04; SPWD Contract No. 88242. This 

amendment decreases the maximum amount from $755,835 to $540,020 to reflect the revised projected project costs.  

Costs were adjusted to reflect the changes in the scope of work as detailed in the vendor's Scope of Work Summary. 

Term of Contract: 12/03/2013 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 15121  

8. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION -

PUBLIC WORKS 

All Budget Accounts 

APPLIED 

ENGINEERING 

CONSULTANT 

SERVICES 

OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING 

UPON THE 

PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$100,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide materials testing and inspection services on an as needed basis and at the request of the 

State Public Works Division:  SPWD Contract No. 109189 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16841  

9. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

All Budget Accounts 

NINYO & MOORE OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING 

UPON THE 

PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$100,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional environmental plan checking services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 

109222. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16845  

10. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

All Budget Accounts 

R2H ENGINEERING, 

INC. 

OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING 

UPON THE 

PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$50,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide ongoing professional structural plan checking services as required:  SPWD Contract No. 

109229. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16725  

11. 

101 

DEPARTMENT OF 

TOURISM AND 

CULTURAL 

AFFAIRS-TOURISM 

PACE GROUP 

COMMUNICATIONS, 

INC. 

OTHER: 

LODGING TAX 

$205,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract to provide international representation primarily in Western Canada 

to promote tourism in Nevada. The target audience for public relations efforts is media and consumers in the provinces of 

British Columbia, Alberta, and Saskatchewan. The vendor will work with consumer and trade media in these provinces to 

increase awareness of Nevada as a vacation destination. The Division's mission is to increase travel to the rural areas of the 

state, so the contracted vendor's efforts will be focused on rural Nevada using Las Vegas and Reno as gateways. This 

amendment extends the termination date from September 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017 and increases the maximum amount 

from $169,000 to $374,000 to continue the international representation in Western Canada. 

Term of Contract: 10/08/2013 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 14914  

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 3 

 

BOE 

# 
DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

12. 

102 

OFFICE OF 

ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT 

UNIVERSITY OF 

NEVADA, RENO 

NEVADA INDUSTRY 

EXCELLENCE 

GENERAL $500,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing intensive short-term skills based training through the Train 

Employees Now program.  This training is for new and expanding Nevada businesses to help employees quickly reach 

productivity. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2016 Contract # 16807  

13. 

315 

STATE PUBLIC 

CHARTER SCHOOL 

AUTHORITY 

NATIONAL 

CHARTER SCHOOLS 

INSTITUTE 

FEE: STATE 

SPONSORED 

CHARTER 

SCHOOL FEES 

$96,900 SOLE SOURCE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract to provide ongoing services for a web-based data collection system 

called Epicenter which provides oversight, support and accountability for state sponsored charter schools. This amendment 

increases the maximum amount from $49,400 to $146,300 due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 15847  

14. 

400 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES- 

DIRECTOR'S 

OFFICE - INDIGENT 

SUPPLEMENTAL 

ACCOUNT 

NEVADA 

ASSOCIATION OF 

COUNTIES 

OTHER: 1.5 CENT 

AD VALOREM 

TAX 

$120,000 EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement to continue to provide ongoing program administration on behalf of the Board of 

Trustees of the Fund for Hospital Care for Indigent Persons, which includes review and verification of hospital applications 

for reimbursement by the Fund, maintenance of a system of records for the Board, design and conduct programs of 

information and training for county units of government and work with stakeholders on funding recommendations to the 

Board. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16606  

15. 

402 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES- 

AGING AND 

DISABILITY 

SERVICES - 

DESERT REGIONAL 

CENTER 

HARMONY 

INFORMATION 

SERVICES, INC. 

GENERAL 11.2% 

OTHER: 

TRANSFER FROM 

DHCFP 70.9% 

FEDERAL 17.9%  

$552,390 SOLE SOURCE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract to purchase additional information technology products in support of 

activities for the Nevada Balancing Incentive Payments Program (BIPP) grant to support timely functional and financial 

eligibility determinations, improving access to Nevadans who need long term services and support.  This amendment 

extends the termination date from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017 and increases the maximum amount from $5,196,845 to 

$5,749,235 due to the amended scope of work and the development of an integrated provider interface with the Division of 

Health Care Finance and Policy. 

Term of Contract: 06/12/2014 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 15673  

16. 

402 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES- 

AGING AND 

DISABILITY 

SERVICES - 

DESERT REGIONAL 

CENTER 

NEVADA FAMILY 

PRACTICE 

RESIDENCY 

PROGRAM 

GENERAL 50.2% 

FEDERAL 49.8%  

$129,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing psychiatric evaluations for people who exhibit severe 

maladaptive behaviors and mental illness, and require psychotropic medication(s).  The contractor will recommend modes 

of behavior programs to be used and/or prescribe the use of appropriate medications; provide professional consultation to 

medical and non-medical staff; and monitor the psychiatric needs of the people served by the agency. 

Term of Contract: 08/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16800  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 4 

 

BOE 

# 
DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

17. 

403 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES- 

HEALTH CARE 

FINANCING & 

POLICY - NEVADA 

MEDICAID, TITLE 

XIX 

AGING AND 

DISABILITY 

SERVICES 

FEDERAL $897,514   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing professional contracted 

information technology staff to conduct the activities for the Balancing Incentive Payments Program grant. This 

amendment increases the maximum amount from $3,899,380 to $4,796,894 and revises the scope of work.  

Term of Contract: 12/09/2014 - 03/31/2016 Contract # 16017  

18. 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES- 

PUBLIC AND 

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH - HEALTH 

FACILITIES 

HOSPITAL 

LICENSING 

NEVADA STATE 

BOARD OF 

NURSING 

FEDERAL $463,050   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing program development to regulate nursing assistants employed in 

nursing facilities and home health agencies, which includes reviewing/approving qualified training and competency 

evaluation programs; maintaining a registry of employed nursing assistants completing a competency evaluation program; 

investigating complaints of abuse, neglect and misappropriation of property; and recommending disciplinary action.   

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16829  

19. 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES- 

PUBLIC AND 

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH - 

MATERNAL CHILD 

HEALTH SERVICES 

LYON COUNTY 

HUMAN SERVICES 

FEDERAL $373,700   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing evidence-based home visiting services offered to pregnant 

women, or parents of children birth to age five, based on the Parents as Teachers Model Overview, which focuses on 

providing parents with child development knowledge and parenting support; early detection of developmental delays and 

health issues; prevention of child abuse and neglect; and increasing children's school readiness.   

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 09/30/2016 Contract # 16812  

20. 

409 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES-

CHILD AND 

FAMILY SERVICES- 

YOUTH 

ALTERNATIVE 

PLACEMENT 

CLARK COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF 

JUVENILE JUSTICE 

SERVICES 

GENERAL $974,500 EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing services to provide residential living care for boys and girls who 

have been adjudicated delinquent and committed by the Juvenile Division of the District Court to Spring Mountain Youth 

Camp, which is the regional juvenile detention facility administered by Clark County. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16775  

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 5 

 

BOE 

# 
DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

21. 

409 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES- 

CHILD AND 

FAMILY SERVICES- 

YOUTH 

ALTERNATIVE 

PLACEMENT 

DOUGLAS COUNTY 

CHINA SPRING 

YOUTH CAMP AND 

AURORA PINES 

GENERAL 45.8% 

OTHER: COUNTY 

PARTICIPATION 

54.2%  

$7,408,430 EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing services to provide residential living care for boys and girls who 

have been designated as delinquent and committed to China Springs Youth Camp and Aurora Pines Girls Facility, which 

are regional juvenile detention facilities administered by county entities. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16757  

22. 

431 

ADJUTANT 

GENERAL AND 

NATIONAL GUARD- 

MILITARY 

PUGSLEY SIMPSON 

COULTER 

ARCHITECTS 

FEDERAL $59,525 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to conduct a planning and programing document charrette for the Speedway Readiness Center in 

North Las Vegas. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2016 Contract # 16843  

23. 

440 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CORRECTIONS - 

NORTHERN 

NEVADA 

RESTITUTION 

CENTER 

EXPRESS SYSTEMS GENERAL $69,066   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new agreement for the lease of equipment to provide commercial washers and dryers and related services, 

installation and all maintenance of new machines located at Northern Nevada Transitional Housing Center. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 08/31/2020 Contract # 16820  

24. 

690 
COLORADO RIVER 

COMMISSION 

EXETER 

ASSOCIATES, INC. 

OTHER: POWER 

SALES 

REVENUES 

$150,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues future filings with the Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission and the Public Utilities Commission of Nevada, marketing of Hoover power and other resources, assistance 

with policy positions in regulatory proceedings, and providing other electric utility related analysis as needed.  This 

amendment extends the termination date from October 31, 2015 to October 31, 2017 and increases the maximum amount 

from $200,000 to $350,000 to provide for anticipated regulatory proceedings. 

Term of Contract: 10/08/2013 - 10/31/2017 Contract # 14875  

25. 

704 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION & 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES - 

PARKS - STATE 

PARKS 

TAHOE 

TRANSPORTATION 

DISTRICT 

GENERAL $170,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement to provide ongoing shuttle service to and from Incline Village to Lake Tahoe Nevada 

State Park.   The district runs the East Shore Express, which will provide park patrons with efficient, economical, and safe 

transportation to the park. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16825  

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 6 

 

BOE 

# 
DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

26. 

706 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION 

AND NATURAL 

RESOURCES - 

FORESTRY - 

WILDLAND FIRE 

PREVENTION 

PROGRAM  

CHURCHILL 

COUNTY 

OTHER: 

CHURCHILL 

COUNTY FUNDS 

$50,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal revenue agreement to provide ongoing services under the Wildland Fire Protection Program. In 

accordance with the agreement, the division and the county will work closely together to maintain effective wildfire 

management in order to quickly suppress wildland fires regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16668  

27. 

706 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION 

AND NATURAL 

RESOURCES - 

FORESTRY - 

WILDLAND FIRE 

PREVENTION 

PROGRAM  

WASHOE COUNTY OTHER: WASHOE 

COUNTY FUNDS 

$100,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal revenue agreement to provide ongoing services under the Wildland Fire Protection Program. In 

accordance with this agreement, the division and the county will work closely together to maintain effective wildfire 

management in order to quickly suppress wildland fires regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16664  

28. 

742 

DEPARTMENT OF 

BUSINESS AND 

INDUSTRY - 

INDUSTRIAL 

RELATIONS 

All Budget Accounts 

SIERRA NEVADA 

ADMINISTRATORS 

OTHER: FUND 210 

WORKERS' 

COMPENSATION 

AND SAFETY 

FUND 

$220,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues to provide ongoing workers compensation claims administration for uninsured 

workers compensation claims as required by NRS 616C.220 (1). 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16846  

29. 

800 
DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION 

ENVIROSYSTEMS 

MANAGEMENT 

HIGHWAY 6.3% 

FEDERAL 93.7%  

$97,345   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract for Wildlife Hazard Assessments and Wildlife Hazard Management Plans  at the Minden-Tahoe and 

Carson Airports, which are necessary for the development of Federal Aviation Administration approved plans to ensure 

safety.  

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 12/31/2016 Contract # 16798  

30. 

800 
DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION 

REGIONAL 

TRANSPORTATION 

COMMISSION 

OTHER: LOCAL 

MATCH 5% 

FEDERAL 95%  

$600,000 EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new cooperative agreement for the ongoing implementation of a comprehensive trip reduction/regional rideshare 

program to reduce the number of single occupant trips in an effort to improve air quality and mobility in Washoe County. 

Term of Contract: 10/01/2015 - 09/30/2016 Contract # 16810  

31. 

800 
DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION 

REGIONAL 

TRANSPORTATION 

COMMISSION 

OTHER: LOCAL 

MATCH 5% 

FEDERAL 95%  

$1,368,421  EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new cooperative agreement for the ongoing implementation of a comprehensive trip reduction/regional rideshare 

program to reduce the number of single occupant trips in an effort to improve air quality and mobility in Clark County. 

Term of Contract: 10/01/2015 - 09/30/2016 Contract # 16834  

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 7 

 

BOE 

# 
DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

32. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY 

BOARD OF 

REGENTS-CSN 

FEDERAL $359,460   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing funding to the College of Southern Nevada Apprenticeship 

Programs.  These programs provide training to eligible participants in several occupations such as electrical and plumbing. 

Term of Contract: 08/01/2015 - 07/31/2016 Contract # 16788  

33. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY 

BOARD OF 

REGENTS-TMCC 

FEDERAL $80,725   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing funding to the Board of Regents-Truckee Meadows Community 

College Apprenticeship Programs. These programs provide training to eligible participants in several occupations such as 

electrical and plumbing. 

Term of Contract: 08/01/2015 - 07/31/2016 Contract # 16792  

34. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY 

NEVADAWORKS FEDERAL $2,303,301   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to adults in Northern Nevada 

as required by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations Part 652 et al). 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16781  

35. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY 

NEVADAWORKS FEDERAL $2,428,620   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to dislocated workers in 

Northern Nevada as required by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations Part 652 

et al). 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16783  

36. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY 

NEVADAWORKS FEDERAL $2,157,427   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to youth in Northern Nevada 

as required by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations Part 652 et al). 

Term of Contract: 04/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16782  

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 8 

 

BOE # DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 
FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

37. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY 

WORKFORCE 

CONNECTIONS 

FEDERAL $7,375,010   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to adults in Southern Nevada 

as required by the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations Part 652 et al). 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16785  

38. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY 

WORKFORCE 

CONNECTIONS 

FEDERAL $4,448,425   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to dislocated workers in 

Southern Nevada as required by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations Part 652 

et al). 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16789  

39. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY 

WORKFORCE 

CONNECTIONS 

FEDERAL $5,973,728   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to youth in Southern Nevada 

as required by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations Part 652 et al). 

Term of Contract: 04/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16803  

40. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY - 

SPECIAL FUND 

MESA ENERGY 

SYSTEMS DBA 

EMCOR SERVICES 

NEVADA 

OTHER: ESD 

SPECIAL 

FUND 

$59,856   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract which provides ongoing heating, ventilation and air conditioning 

maintenance services at 2800 E. St. Louis Avenue, Las Vegas Nevada. This amendment increases the maximum amount 

from $59,856 to $119,712 and extends the termination date from July 31, 2015 to July 8, 2017 due to the continued need 

for these services. 

Term of Contract: 07/09/2013 - 07/08/2017 Contract # 14456 

41. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY  

All Budget Accounts 

LAS VEGAS 

INTERPRETERS 

OTHER: 

UNEMPLOYM

ENT 

INSURANCE 

$49,500   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original Contract, which continues ongoing interpretation services at employment 

Insurance hearings and other meetings in the Las Vegas area. This amendment increases the maximum amount from 

$49,500 to $99,000 due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 06/01/2014 - 05/31/2016 Contract # 15605 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 9 

 

BOE # DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 
FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

42. 

706 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION & 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES - 

FORESTRY - 

FOREST FIRE 

SUPPRESSION 

10 TANKER AIR 

CARRIER 

GENERAL $1,000,000  SUBMITTED 

AFTER DEADLINE

  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide air tankers to drop water and/or fire retardant when needed to aid in the suppression of a 

fire.  

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16884 

 



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 3 Page 1 

 

MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS 
 

BOE 
# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 

SOURCE AMOUNT 
EXCEPTIONS 

FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

MSA 
1. 

MSA VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

ALCATEL-LUCENT 
USA, INC. 

OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$300,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general maintenance 
statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys, assessments, installations, 
replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment, infrastructure and fixtures.  The 
equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems, generator systems, fiber optics, two way 
radio systems, and microwave systems. 
Term of Contract: 07/15/2015 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16762 

MSA 
2. 

MSA VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

AT&T OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$3,000,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing long distance services statewide. 
Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16832 

MSA 
3. 

MSA VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

CURTIS & SONS 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$1,000,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general maintenance 
statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys, assessments, installations, 
replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment, infrastructure and fixtures.  The 
equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems, generator systems, fiber optics, two way 
radio systems, and microwave systems. 
Term of Contract: 07/15/2015 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16765 

MSA 
4. 

MSA VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

CANON USA, INC. OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$2,000,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to establish a Participating Addendum that continues ongoing leasing and services for copiers, 
printers and related devices. The contract allows state agencies the option to lease or purchase devices, and software 
bundles that enable and enhance the capabilities of the device. Services include ongoing maintenance, repairs and supplies. 
Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 12/31/2019 Contract # 16826 

MSA 
5. 

MSA 
VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

EAGLE 
COMMUNICATIONS, 
LLC 

OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$300,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general maintenance 
statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys, assessments, installations, 
replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment, infrastructure and fixtures.  The 
equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems, generator systems, fiber optics, two way 
radio systems, and microwave systems. 
Term of Contract: 07/15/2015 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16766 

MSA 
6. 

MSA 
VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION 
SERVICES 

OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$500,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing bat gate construction and installation services statewide.  There is a 
continued need for roosting habitats for dozens of wildlife species in abandoned mines, as well as the security of the 
traveling public when in close proximity to these abandoned mines. 
Term of Contract: 10/01/2015 - 09/30/2017 Contract # 16808 

MSA 
7. 

MSA VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

NARWHAL MET, LLC OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$300,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general maintenance 
statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys, assessments, installations, 
replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment, infrastructure and fixtures.  The 
equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems, generator systems, fiber optics, two way 
radio systems, and microwave systems. 
Term of Contract: 07/15/2015 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16761 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 3 Page 2 

 

BOE 
# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 

SOURCE AMOUNT 
EXCEPTIONS 

FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

MSA 
8. 

MSA VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

NNE CONSTRUCTION, 
INC. 

OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$1,000,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general maintenance 
statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys, assessments, installations, 
replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment, infrastructure and fixtures.  The 
equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems, generator systems, fiber optics, two way 
radio systems, and microwave systems. 
Term of Contract: 07/15/2015 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16767 

MSA 
9. 

MSA 
VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

RADCO 
COMMUNICATIONS, 
LLC 

OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$1,000,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general maintenance 
statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys, assessments, installations, 
replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment, infrastructure and fixtures.  The 
equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems, generator systems, fiber optics, two way 
radio systems, and microwave systems. 
Term of Contract: 07/15/2015 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16772 

MSA 
10. 

MSA VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

RFI 
COMMUNICATIONS 

OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$300,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general maintenance 
statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys, assessments, installations, 
replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment, infrastructure and fixtures.  The 
equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems, generator systems, fiber optics, two way 
radio systems, and microwave systems. 
Term of Contract: 07/15/2015 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16763 

MSA 
11. 

MSA VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

RICOH USA, INC. OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$6,000,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to establish a Participating Addendum that continues ongoing leasing and services for copiers, 
printers and related devices. The contract allows state agencies the option to lease or purchase devices, and software 
bundles that enable and enhance the capabilities of the device. Services include ongoing maintenance, repairs and supplies. 
Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 12/31/2019 Contract # 16744 

MSA 
12. 

MSA VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

SPECTRUM SERVICES, 
INC. 

OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$300,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general maintenance 
statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys, assessments, installations, 
replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment, infrastructure and fixtures.  The 
equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems, generator systems, fiber optics, two way 
radio systems, and microwave systems. 
Term of Contract: 07/15/2015 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16760 

MSA 
13. 

MSA VARIOUS STATE 
AGENCIES 

XEROX 
CORPORATION 

OTHER: 
VARIOUS 

$6,000,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to establish a Participating Addendum that continues ongoing leasing and services for copiers, 
printers and related devices. The contract allows state agencies the option to lease or purchase devices, and software 
bundles that enable and enhance the capabilities of the device. Services include ongoing maintenance, repairs and supplies. 
Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 12/31/2019 Contract # 16745 

 



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 1 

 

INFORMATION CONTRACTS 
   

# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 
SOURCE AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

1 

030 
ATTORNEY GENERAL’S 
OFFICE 

FARRIS, VAUGHAN, 
WILLS & MURPHY, 
LLP 

OTHER: NDEP 
REIMBURSMENT 

$14,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract to retain counsel in British Columbia in connection with the bankruptcy 
proceedings related to Veris Gold Corporation and related entities, namely in the matter of the company’s Creditors 
Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, as amended.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $20,000 to $34,000 
to adequately fund the contract for the remainder of the contract period. 
Term of Contract: 12/10/2014 – 12/10/2015 Contract # 16249 

2 

050 
TREASURER’S OFFICE ARBITRAGE 

COMPLIANCE 
SPECIALISTS, INC. 

OTHER: 
CONSOLIDATED 
BOND DEBT 
SERVICE 

$34,750   

Contract 
Description: 

This is the fifth amendment to the original contract, which provides arbitrage rebate compliance services to assist the state in 
complying with the Internal Revenue Service's rules and regulations regarding arbitrage. This amendment extends the 
termination date from June 30, 2015 to December 30, 2016, revises Attachment AA - Scope of Work to include an option for 
annual training to the state, and increases the maximum amount from $224,105 to $258,855 due to the revised scope of work and 
extension. 
Term of Contract: 09/14/2012 – 12/30/2016 Contract # 13684 

3 

051 

TREASURER’S OFFICE THE 
INTERNATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF 
WORKING 
MOTHERS 

OTHER: NEVADA 
COLLEGE 
SAVINGS TRUST 

$25,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract to increase awareness for financial literacy in the State of Nevada by reaching 
out to women and working mothers by implementing a Women's Money Conference in Reno and Las Vegas, as well as a Latina 
conference in Las Vegas and Reno.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $85,000 to $110,000 to expand 
hosting financial events that target senior citizens and military veterans in Nevada. These events will highlight the college 
savings 529 plans and matching grants for military veterans with children. 
Term of Contract:  10/14/2014 – 10/14/2015 Contract # 16038 

4 
 082 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATION – 
PUBLIC WORKS 
DIVISION 

CHARLES ABBOTT 
ASSOCIATES, INC. 

OTHER: 
FUNDING WILL 
VARY 
DEPENDING 
UPON THE 
PROJECT 
REQUIRING THIS 
SERVICE 

$40,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide intermittent/on-call building inspector services statewide: SPWD Contract No 109488. Services 
will be provided at the direction of the SPWD on an as-needed basis. 
Term of Contract: 05/29/2015 – 06/30/2016 Contract # 16787 

5 

 082 
DEPARTMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATION – 
PUBLIC WORKS 
DIVISION 

ALL AMERICAN 
FENCE CO.  DBA 
ALL STAR FENCE 
CO. 

FEES: 
BUILDINGS & 
GROUNDS RENT 
INCOME FEES 

$20,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide ongoing general repair, maintenance and fence installation services, including all associated 
components of fencing systems.  Work to be performed in Las Vegas and surrounding areas upon the request and approval of a 
Buildings and Grounds designee. 
Term of Contract:  06/01/2015 – 06/01/2019 Contract # 16734 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 2 

 

# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 
SOURCE AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

6 

 082 
DEPARTMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATION – 
PUBLIC WORKS 
DIVISION 

MESA ENERGY 
SYSTEMS, INC. DBA 
EMCOR SERVICES 
NEVADA 

FEES: 
BUILDINGS & 
GROUNDS RENT 
INCOME FEES 

$47,600    

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing heating, ventilation and air conditioning maintenance, inspection and fire damper 
services for the Campos Building located at 215 E. Bonanza, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101; and various state owned buildings 
throughout Southern Nevada at the request and approval of Buildings and Grounds designee. 
Term of Contract:  05/29/2015 – 04/30/2019 Contract # 16707 

7 
 084 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATION – 
FLEET SERVICES 
DIVISION 

L.A. PERKS 
PETROLEUM 
SPECIALISTS, INC. 

OTHER: 
INTERNAL 
REVENUE 
SERVICE 

$24,999   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract which continues ongoing repairs, maintenance and testing on the fuel dispensing facilities located in 
Carson City and Reno. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2019 Contract # 16589 

8 
101 

DEPARTMENT OF 
TOURISM AND 
CULTURAL AFFAIRS – 
DIVISION OF TOURISM 

THE JGS GROUP, 
LLC 

OTHER: 
LODGING TAX 

$48,925   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide event planning services for the 2015 Governor's Conference on Tourism - Global Tourism 
Summit to be held in Las Vegas, Nevada. 
Term of Contract:  06/11/2015 – 01/17/2016 Contract # 16838 

9 
180 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATION – 
ENTERPRISE IT 
SERVICES 

GARRATT-
CALLAHAN 
COMPANY 

FEES: USER FEES $30,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing repair and maintenance services for the cooling condenser tower and chemical 
treatment system equipment at the Computer Facility in Carson City. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2019 Contract # 16712 

 10 

180 
DEPARTMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATION – 
ENTERPRISE IT 
SERVICES 

TELMAR NETWORK 
TECHNOLOGY, INC. 

FEES: USER FEES $31,200   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing twenty-four seven online support services, repairs and maintenance for each 
microwave unit Digital Access and Cross-Connect System.  Each system consists of master circuit switches and automatically 
reroutes radio traffic to prevent disruption of dispatch services.  
Term of Contract:  07/01/2015 – 06/30/2019 Contract # 16750 

11 
180 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATION – 
ENTERPRISE IT 
SERVICES 

AMERICAN 
CHILLER SERVICE, 
INC. 

FEES: USER FEES $49,520   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing repair and maintenance services for the chillers, cooling tower, water pumps, and 
compressors at the Computer Facility in Carson City. 
Term of Contract:  07/01/2015 – 06/30/2019 Contract # 16752 

 12 
180 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATION – 
ENTERPRISE IT 
SERVICES 

SIERRA PACIFIC 
POWER DBA NV 
ENERGY 

OTHER: 
REVENUE 

$18,070   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new revenue contract to provide ongoing rack space at Elko Mountain in Elko County.   

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 – 06/30/2018 Contract # 16747 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 3 

 

# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 
SOURCE AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

13 

180 
DEPARTMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATION – 
ENTERPRISE IT 
SERVICES 

SIRIUS COMPUTER 
SOLUTIONS, INC. 

FEES: USER 
FEES  

$22,500   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide installation services necessary to complete the integration of the installed IBM Mainframe 
Computer with its associated storage, virtual tape servers, and networking.  A successful integration will allow an Initial 
Program Load of the Mainframe during disaster recovery testing to ensure business continuity for the Department of 
Administration, Department of Health and Human Services, and Department of Motor Vehicles. 
Term of Contract:  06/01/2015 – 07/31/2015 Contract # 16831 

14 

180 
DEPARTMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATION – 
ENTERPRISE IT 
SERVICES 

NEVADA ENERGY 
SYSTEMS, INC. 

FEES: USER 
FEES  

$20,500   

Contract 
Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing service and repair on an as needed basis for the 
Generator Set at the Computer Facility in Carson City.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $25,000 to 
$45,500 due to an increase in the volume of repairs. 
Term of Contract:  07/01/2013 – 06/30/2017 Contract # 14370 

15 
240 

DEPARTMENT OF 
VETERANS SERVICES 

MATTHEW D. 
MCGAURAN 

OTHER: PRIVATE 
FUNDS 50%,  
FEDERAL 50% 

$48,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide Physician Assistant services to the residents of the Nevada State Veterans Home. 

Term of Contract: 06/01/2015 – 05/31/2017 Contract # 16730 

16 
240 

DEPARTMENT OF 
VETERANS SERVICES 

CIVIC RESOURCE 
GROUP, LLC 

OTHER: 
VETERANS’ GIFT 
ACCOUNT 

$25,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is the third amendment to the contract to provide programming service to rebuild the department's web site.  This 
amendment increases the maximum amount from $440,000 to $465,000. 
Term of Contract: 06/08/2015 – 08/31/2016 Contract # 13614 

17  

400 
DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – DIRECTOR’S 
OFFICE 

JANET B. MILLER FEDERAL $11,503   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide facilitation/training services to increase competencies of early intervention services staff in 
working with families and their children with disabilities. The contractor will provide two separate 2-day training sessions with 
one session to take place in Reno and the other in Las Vegas. 
Term of Contract:  05/26/2015 – 07/30/2015 Contract # 16724 

 18 

400 
DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – DIRECTOR’S 
OFFICE 

SEARS LAW FIRM, 
LTD 

GENERAL 19% 
OTHER: COUNTY 
FEES 

$21,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide legal services to indigent persons who qualify for appointed counsel in White Pine and Eureka 
Counties. The indigent defense services will be provided on behalf of the Public Defender's Office from court appointment or 
screening through trial, sentencing, post-conviction review and any appeals to Nevada Appellate Courts. 
Term of Contract: 06/01/2015 – 06/30/2015 Contract # 16729 

 19 
402 

DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – AGING AND 
DISABILITY SERVICES 

THE JEFF GROUP 
DBA KELLYS GLASS 
& MIRROR 
COMPANY 

GENERAL 48.3% 
FEDERAL 51.7% 

$18,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide glass repair or replacement services on an as-needed basis. 

Term of Contract:  05/21/2015 – 05/31/2017 Contract # 16657 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 4 

 

# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 
SOURCE AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

20 
402 

DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – AGING AND 
DISABILITY SERVICES 

ELKO COUNTY OTHER: 
REVENUE FROM 
COUNTY 

$40,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new revenue interlocal agreement that continues ongoing service to children with intellectual disabilities and provides 
structure for county reimbursement of the non-federal share of funding as payment for services. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2017 Contract # 16748 

21 
402 

DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – AGING AND 
DISABILITY SERVICES 

CHURCHILL 
COUNTY 
TREASURER 

OTHER: 
REVENUE FROM 
COUNTY 

$45,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new revenue interlocal agreement that continues ongoing service to children with intellectual disabilities and provides 
structure for county reimbursement of the non-federal share of funding as payment for services. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2017 Contract # 16749 

22 
402 

DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – AGING AND 
DISABILITY SERVICES 

OMNICARE OF 
NEVADA, LLC 

GENERAL 54.3% 
FEDERAL 45.7% 

$15,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing pharmaceutical services, in-service education, and the monitoring and evaluation 
of pharmaceutical inventory and control systems. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2017 Contract # 16746 

23 
402 

DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – AGING AND 
DISABILITY SERVICES  

DOUGLAS COUNTY OTHER: 
REVENUE FROM 
COUNTY 

$48,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new revenue interlocal agreement that continues ongoing service to children with intellectual disabilities and provides 
structure for county reimbursement of the non-federal share of funding as payment for services. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2017 Contract # 16780 

24 
406 

DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – PUBLIC AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

CUSTOM GLASS 
DISTRIBUTORS, INC. 

GENERAL $40,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing glass repair or replacement due to vandalism and/or building upgrades as needed to 
buildings on the Northern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services and/or Lake's Crossing Center campus. 
Term of Contract: 06/11/2015 – 06/30/2017 Contract # 16779 

 25 
406 

DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – PUBLIC AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

RELIANT ELECTRIC, 
LLC 

GENERAL $40,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide electrical services and/or repairs as needed to buildings on the Northern Nevada Adult Mental 
Health Services and Lake's Crossing Center campus. 
Term of Contract:  06/04/2015 – 06/30/2017 Contract # 16773 

26 

406 
DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – PUBLIC AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

SIERRA VIII, INC. 
DBA DIVERSIFIED 
PAINTING 

GENERAL $10,680  

Contract 
Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides power washing and brick sealing to building 1 and power 
washing, painting, and sealing of building 25 on the Northern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services (NNAMHS) campus.  This 
amendment increases the maximum amount from $38,250 to $48,930 for power washing and painting the exterior of building 2 
on the NNAMHS campus. 
Term of Contract: 01/06/2015 – 06/30/2016 Contract # 16239 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 5 

 

# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 
SOURCE AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

27 
406 

DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – PUBLIC AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

RAM PAINTING GENERAL $27,190  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide painting services to the exterior of buildings 2 and 6 on the Southern Nevada Adult Mental 
Health Services campus. 
Term of Contract: 05/28/2015 – 09/30/2015 Contract # 16738 

28 
406 

DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – PUBLIC AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

TORRES, JOSE LUIS 
DBA JT PAINTING 
COMPANY 

GENERAL $16,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide painting services to the exterior of buildings 4 and 5 on the Southern Nevada Adult Mental 
Health Services campus. 
Term of Contract: 05/28/2015 – 09/30/2015 Contract # 16739 

29 

406 
DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – PUBLIC AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

LINCOLN COUNTY OTHER: 
REVENUE FROM 
COUNTY 

$29,021  

Contract 
Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original revenue interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing state community health nurse 
services including testing, screening and treatment of tuberculosis and sexually transmitted diseases, as necessary.  This 
amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $58,042 
to $87,063 due to the continued need for these services. 
Term of Contract: 05/19/2015 – 06/30/2016 Contract # 14480 

30 

406 
DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – PUBLIC AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

ESMERALDA 
COUNTY SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

OTHER: 
REVENUE FROM 
COUNTY 

$4,788  

Contract 
Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original revenue interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing state community health nurse 
services including testing, screening and treatment of tuberculosis and sexually transmitted diseases, as necessary.  This 
amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $9,576 
to $14,364 due to the continued need for these services. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2013 – 06/30/2016 Contract # 14633 

31 
406 

DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES – PUBLIC AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

SCK PAINTING AND 
DRYWALL, INC. 

GENERAL $12,950  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide power washing, brick sealing and painting on the exterior of Northern Nevada Adult Mental 
Health campus buildings 2A, 5, 8, 8A, 8B, and 8C. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2013 – 06/30/2016 Contract # 16799 

32 
431 

ADJUTANT GENERAL & 
NATIONAL GUARD 

WALSH ODDYSSEY 
ENGINEERING, INC. 

GENERAL 25% 
FEDERAL 50% 
OTHER: RENTAL 
INCOME 25% 

$45,000   

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide engineering services as-needed for all agency locations. 

Term of Contract: 06/17/2015 – 06/30/2016 Contract # 16705 

33 
440 DEPARTMENT OF 

CORRECTIONS 
COLLABNET, INC. GENERAL $24,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide the department with configuration, best practices, and deployment support for the software 
change management tool. 
Term of Contract: 05/21/2015 – 06/30/2015 Contract # 16617 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 6 

 

# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 
SOURCE AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

34 

550 
DEPARTMENT OF 
AGRICULTURE 

MIA CONSULTING, 
LLC 

FEES: PESTICIDE 
REGISTRATION 
FEES 

$24,960  

Contract 
Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract to create a custom geo-database using the Early Detection & Distribution 
Mapping System to establish a real-time web-based catalog of invasive weed infestations throughout Nevada.  This amendment 
extends the termination date from August 31, 2015 to September 30, 2017 and increases the maximum amount from $15,396 to 
$40,356 due to the continued need for these services. 
Term of Contract: 03/17/2014 – 09/30/2017 Contract # 15313 

35 

702 DEPARTMENT OF 
WILDLIFE 

PK ELECTRICAL, 
INC. 

FEES: PREDATOR 
FEE 

$15,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract for electrical modifications design for native fish rearing at Lake Mead Hatchery. The services will 
provide electrical design for the connection of owner furnished pumps including the modification of the electrical distribution 
system, a new transformer and panel board. 
Term of Contract: 06/11/2015 – 09/30/2015 Contract # 16835 

36 

702 DEPARTMENT OF 
WILDLIFE 

WASHINGTON 
STATE UNIVERSITY 

FEDERAL $40,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues laboratory services from the Washington State University Laboratory for 
federally mandated disease testing for a sample of approximately 60 trout per year from each of the Nevada Hatcheries to ensure 
Nevada is not putting diseased fish into the waters. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 01/31/2019 Contract # 16728 

37 
702 

DEPARTMENT OF 
WILDLIFE 

MCELHANEY 
STRUCTURAL 
ENGINEERS 

BONDS: Q1 BOND 
FUNDS 

$13,053  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract for structural engineering services to design structural roof repairs for the Wildlife Management Area in 
Hiko.  The current roof structure is from 1964 and is deteriorating. 
Term of Contract: 05/26/2015 – 12/31/2015 Contract # 16720 

38 

702 
DEPARTMENT OF 
WILDLIFE 

NORTHERN 
NEVADA 
EQUIPMENT, LLC 

FEDERAL 64% 
BONDS: Q1 BONDS 

$23,487  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide services to build and construct wildlife escape ramps that will be installed in livestock watering 
tanks. Watering tanks, troughs and ponds maintained for livestock often double as critical resources for a broad array of wildlife. 
As development and drought take an increasing toll on natural water sources, especially in North America’s arid western regions, 
these watering sites can be vital, not only for animals but for the health of ecosystems that rely on them. 
Term of Contract: 05/15/2015 – 06/30/2015 Contract # 16718 

39 
702 

DEPARTMENT OF 
WILDLIFE 

KPS3, INC. FEDERAL 25% 
FEES: SPORTSMAN 
75% 

$10,725  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract for services to optimize the NDOW.org website for mobile devices by adjusting the site to responsive 
design. 
Term of Contract: 05/20/2015 – 06/30/2016 Contract # 16717 

40 

705 
DEPARTMENT OF 
CONSERVATION AND 
NATURAL RESOURCES –  
WATER RESOURCES 

U.S. GEOLOGICAL 
SURVEY 

FEDERAL 43% 
OTHER: PASS 
THROUGH FUNDS 
57% 

$48,828  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide ongoing operation and maintenance of a streamflow gaging station on Maggie Creek and a 
crest stage gage on Simon Creek.  Discharge data are collected, reviewed and made available in the annual publication "Water-
Resources Data - Nevada" and the U.S. Geological Survey National Water Information System web site. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2017 Contract # 16685 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 7 

 

# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 
SOURCE AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

41 

705 
DEPARTMENT OF 
CONSERVATION AND 
NATURAL RESOURCES –  
WATER RESOURCES 

U.S. GEOLOGICAL 
SURVEY 

FEDERAL 43% 
OTHER: PASS 
THROUGH FUNDS 
57% 

$15,780  

Contract 
Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original Joint Funding Agreement which provides funding to conduct hydrologic 
monitoring studies along the Carlin Trend through the operation and maintenance of 10 streamflow stations and 2 satellite 
telemetry stations within the Humboldt River Region.  This amendment increases the contract amount from $277,888.88 to 
$293,668.88 to add 2 streamflow stations to the program for the months of May 2015 through September 2015.  The added 
stations are funded by pass through money from Barrick and the U.S. Geological Survey federal matching funds.   
Term of Contract: 10/01/2013 – 09/30/2015 Contract # 14838 

42 
706 

DEPARTMENT OF 
CONSERVATION AND 
NATURAL RESOURCES –  
FORESTRY 

DEPARTMENT OF 
PUBLIC SAFETY – 
STATE FIRE 
MARSHALL'S 
OFFICE 

OTHER: FIRE 
REIMBURSEMENT 
FUNDS 

$45,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement to perform fire investigation services on wildland fire incidents where criminal activity is 
suspected. 
Term of Contract: 05/29/2015 – 06/30/2017 Contract # 16404 

43 
749 

DEPARTMENT OF 
BUSINESS AND 
INDUSTRY – ATHLETIC 
COMMISSION 

ANZALONE, 
CHARLES 

FEES: ATHLETIC 
COMMISSION 
GATE FEES 90% 
OTHER: TICKET 
SURCHARGE 10% 

$20,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing services to provide unarmed combat inspector services for weigh-ins and events.   

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2019  Contract # 16777 

44 
749 

DEPARTMENT OF 
BUSINESS AND 
INDUSTRY – ATHLETIC 
COMMISSION 

CHAVEZ, MICHAEL FEES: ATHLETIC 
COMMISSION 
GATE FEES 90% 
OTHER: TICKET 
SURCHARGE 10% 

$20,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing services to provide unarmed combat inspector services for weigh-ins and events.  

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2019  Contract # 16809 

45 
749 

DEPARTMENT OF 
BUSINESS AND 
INDUSTRY – ATHLETIC 
COMMISSION 

DANCY, STEVEN FEES: ATHLETIC 
COMMISSION 
GATE FEES 90% 
OTHER: TICKET 
SURCHARGE 10% 

$20,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing services to provide unarmed combat inspector services for weigh-ins and events. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2019  Contract # 16814 

46 
749 

DEPARTMENT OF 
BUSINESS AND 
INDUSTRY – ATHLETIC 
COMMISSION 

GALVAN, ALDO FEES: ATHLETIC 
COMMISSION 
GATE FEES 90% 
OTHER: TICKET 
SURCHARGE 10% 

$20,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing services to provide unarmed combat inspector services for weigh-ins and events.   

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2019  Contract # 16802 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 8 

 

# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 
SOURCE AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

47 

750 
DEPARTMENT OF 
BUSINESS AND 
INDUSTRY – TAXICAB 
AUTHORITY 

THE SPEER LAW 
FIRM, PLLC 

FEES: TRIP 
CHARGE 

$12,800  

Contract 
Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing Administrative Hearing Officer services until the 
legislatively approved Administrative Attorney is hired and trained. The Administrative Hearing Officer presides over the 
internal administrative court to adjudicate cases involving regulatory violations committed by privilege licensees and holders of 
Certificates of Public Convenience and Necessity. This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015 to 
November 6, 2015 and increases the maximum amount from $36,800 to $49,600 to cover the additional per day services. 
Term of Contract: 08/13/2014 – 11/06/2015 Contract # 16142 

48 
810 

DEPARTMENT OF 
MOTOR VEHICLES 

MSN 
COMMUNICATIONS, 
INC. DBA 
MOUNTAIN STATES 
NETWORKING 

HIGHWAY $17,600  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide for the installation and implementation of a Web Security Appliance and F5 Local Traffic 
Manager. Existing web access servers are out of support as of July 15, 2015. 
Term of Contract: 05/21/2015 – 06/30/2015 Contract # 16714 

49 

810 
DEPARTMENT OF 
MOTOR VEHICLES 

KUHN, SCOTT 
CHRISTOPHER DBA 
D&JS CLEANING 
SERVICE 

HIGHWAY $10,740  

Contract 
Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides janitorial services at the office located at 973 W. Williams 
Street Fallon.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016 and increases the maximum 
amount from $10,740 to $21,480 to cover the one year extension. 
Term of Contract: 07/17/2014 – 06/30/2016 Contract # 15907 

50 

901 

DEPARTMENT OF 
EMPLOYMENT, 
TRAINING AND 
REHABILITATION – 
REHABILITATION 

ELLIOTT, ROBERT 
DBA BRIGHT 
CLEANING 

OTHER: 
BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISES 
SET ASIDE 

$20,000  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new contract to provide ongoing cleaning and detailing of heavy duty commercial kitchen equipment and facilities, air 
conditioning/ventilation systems, laundry and trash chutes, back loading docks, dumpster areas, awnings, and the cleaning of 
rooftop grease and oil at Business Enterprises of Nevada locations in Southern Nevada. 
Term of Contract: 05/19/2015 – 09/30/2018 Contract # 16613 

51 

901 

DEPARTMENT OF 
EMPLOYMENT, 
TRAINING AND 
REHABILITATION – 
REHABILITATION  

BOARD OF 
REGENTS – CSN 

GENERAL 21.3% 
FEDERAL 78.7% 

$15,840  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement to provide a site specific classroom training program, operated by the College of Southern 
Nevada (CSN). CSN will work with eligible clients that require additional services and supports to fulfill their interest in retail 
and or distribution employment. The classroom training will operate during the first four weeks of a six week "Work Readiness 
Program" that has been jointly developed by Vocational Rehabilitation and Office Max/Office Depot. 
Term of Contract: 06/08/2015 – 06/30/2016  Contract # 16611 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
July 7, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 9 

 

# DEPT # STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR FUNDING 
SOURCE AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 
SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 
EMPLOYEES 

52 

901 

DEPARTMENT OF 
EMPLOYMENT, 
TRAINING AND 
REHABILITATION – 
REHABILITATION  

ROYAL 
REFRIGERATION, 
INC. 

OTHER: 
BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISES 
SET ASIDE 

$30,150  

Contract 
Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract which provides ongoing maintenance and repair services of heating, 
ventilating, and air conditioning units, commercial refrigerators and refrigeration units, freezers, ice makers, reach-ins and 
display units on a time and material basis; facility remodeling; and installation, repair, maintenance, relocation, and replacement 
of equipment, with purchase of parts as necessary at all Southern Nevada facilities, including the three Hoover Dam sites. This 
amendment increases the maximum amount from $95,000 to $125,150 due to the continued need for these services. 
Term of Contract: 07/01/2012 – 06/30/2016  Contract # 13311 

53 
902 

DEPARTMENT OF 
EMPLOYMENT, 
TRAINING AND 
REHABILITATION – 
EMPLOYMENT 
SECURITY  

BOARD OF 
REGENTS – WNC 

FEDERAL $19,264  

Contract 
Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing funding to the Western Nevada College Apprenticeship Programs. 
These programs provide training to eligible participants in several occupations such as electrical and plumbing. 
Term of Contract: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2016  Contract # 16791 

54 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 
EMPLOYMENT, 
TRAINING AND 
REHABILITATION – 
EMPLOYMENT 
SECURITY  

FAAD JANITORIAL, 
INC. 

GENERAL 1.9% 
FEDERAL 69% 
OTHER: SPECIAL 
FUND AND 
CAREER 
ENHANCEMENT 
PROGRAM 29.1% 

$21,855  

Contract 
Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing janitorial service for the Nevada JobConnect office 
located at 121 Industrial Way, Fallon. This amendment extends the termination date from August 31, 2015 to September 30, 
2017 and increases the maximum amount from $22,664.77 to $44,519.52 due to the continued need for the service.  
Term of Contract: 10/01/2013 – 09/30/2017 Contract # 14727 

55 

908 

DEPARTMENT OF 
EMPLOYMENT, 
TRAINING AND 
REHABILITATION – 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
SERVICES 

MR. ELECTRIC GENERAL 1.9% 
FEDERAL 69% 
OTHER: SPECIAL 
FUND AND 
CAREER 
ENHANCEMENT 
PROGRAM 29.1% 

$10,500  

Contract 
Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing electrical maintenance and repair for the 
facilities in the Las Vegas area. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $19,500 to $30,000 due to the continued 
need for these services. 
Term of Contract: 04/09/2013 – 03/31/2017 Contract # 14191 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 1 
July 7, 2015 
Detailed Agenda 
 

DETAILED AGENDA 
July 7, 2015 

 
1. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
Comments: 
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 
 

*2. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 9, 2015 BOARD 
OF EXAMINERS’ MEETING MINUTES 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 

 
   *3. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE VEHICLE PURCHASE 

Pursuant to NRS 334.010, no automobile may be purchased by any department, office, bureau, 
officer or employee of the state without prior written consent of the state Board of Examiners. 

 

AGENCY NAME # OF 
VEHICLES 

NOT TO 
EXCEED: 

Department of Administration – Fleet Services  127 $3,261,646 
Department of Public Safety – Investigation  3 $85,194 

Total 130 $3,346,840 
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 

 
*4. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL TO PAY A CASH SETTLEMENT 

 Pursuant to NRS 41.037, the State Board of Examiners may approve, settle or deny any claim or 
action against the State, any of its agencies or any of its present or former officers, employees, 
immune contractors or State Legislators. 

 
A. Department of Transportation (NDOT) – Administration – $1,700,000 

 
The department requests settlement approval in the amount of $1,700,000 to resolve a claim for 
just compensation.  In furtherance of widening I–15 and Warm Springs Road in Las Vegas, as 
part of the I–15 South Design–Build Project, NDOT acquired approximately 2.15 acres of a 
larger 66.15 acre parcel for the purposes of roadway improvement and utility relocation.  The 
remaining 64 acres are jointly owned by Wykoff Newberg Corporation and International 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 2 
July 7, 2015 
Detailed Agenda 
 

Smelting Company.  The owners claim the remaining acres were damaged by the transmission 
line relocation, giving rise to severance damages.  NDOT previously deposited $1,290,000 with 
the Court for a right of occupancy.  NDOT now requests an additional $1,700,000 to be paid in 
exchange for entry of judgment and a final order of condemnation, resolving this eminent domain 
action in its entirety.  Approval of the additional amount of $1,700,000 would bring the total to 
$2,990,000. 
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 
 
  B. Department of Transportation (NDOT) – Administration – $1,100 

 
The department requests settlement approval in the amount of $1,100 to resolve an eminent 
domain action to acquire a portion of real property and improvements owned by Allan and C. 
Bridget Jensen and located at 4340 Spring Drive, Reno, Nevada 89502.  The Subject Property is 
a single family home on an improved approximately 7,500 square foot lot.  The acquisition is 
approximately 315 square feet over a portion of the backyard for a duration of two years, with a 
third year option to provide for a temporary construction easement for purposes of widening 
South McCarran.  NDOT previously deposited $6,900 with the Court for a right of occupancy.  
NDOT now requests an additional $1,100 to resolve the action.  Approval of the additional 
amount of $1,100 would bring the total to $8,000. 
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 

 
*5. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT WITH A 

CURRENT AND/OR FORMER EMPLOYEE 
 

A. Department of Public Safety – Director’s Office 
 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Public Safety - Director’s Office requests authority 
to contract with a former Division of Investigations Polygraph Examiner to conduct pre-
employment polygraph examinations and post-conviction sex offender polygraph examinations 
as required by NRS for the Parole and Probation Division upon request. 
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 3 
July 7, 2015 
Detailed Agenda 
 

*6. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE A 
PROVIDER AGREEMENT 

 
A. Department of Health and Human Services – Public and Behavioral Health 
 

The Division of Public and Behavioral Health is requesting Board of Examiners’ approval for a 
new provider agreement template for a Qualified Mental Health Associate.  This agreement will 
be used for procuring authorized providers throughout the state. 
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 

 
*7. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – LEASES (Attached as Exhibit 1) 
 

Ten leases were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 
 

*8. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – CONTRACTS (Attached as Exhibit 2) 
 

Forty-two independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 

 
*9. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS (Attached 

as Exhibit 3) 
 

Thirteen independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 

 
10. CONTRACTS APPROVED BY THE CLERK OF THE BOARD (Attached as 

Exhibit 4) – INFORMATION ITEM 
 
Pursuant to NRS 333.700 subsection 7 (a), the Clerk of the Board may approve all contract 
transactions for amounts less than $50,000. Per direction from the August 13, 2013 meeting of 
the Board of Examiners, the Board wished to receive an informational item listing all approvals 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 4 
July 7, 2015 
Detailed Agenda 
 

applicable to the new threshold ($10,000 – $49,999). Attached is a list of all applicable approvals 
for contracts and amendments approved from May 16, 2015 through June 16, 2015. 
 
Fifty-five independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review. 
 
Comments: 

 
11. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. Department of Motor Vehicles – Complete Streets Program 
 

Pursuant to NRS 482.480, subsection 11, the Department of Motor Vehicles shall certify to the 
State Board of Examiners the amount of the voluntary contributions collected for each county by 
the department and its agents, and that the money has been distributed as provided in statute.  
This report is for the period beginning March 1, 2015 and ending May 31, 2015. 
 
Comments: 
 

B. Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation 
 

LESSEE LESSOR AMOUNT 

Department of Employment, Training and 
Rehabilitation 

Riverbend, LLC dba 5th 
Street Storage $48,960 

Lease 
Description: 

This is a renewal of an existing lease for storage space. 
Term of Lease: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2017 Located in Carson City   

 
Comments: 

 
 12. BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Comments: 
 

*13. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 1 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

MINUTES 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EXAMINERS 

June 9, 2015 
The Board of Examiners met on June 9, 2015, in the Guinn Room on the second floor of the 
Capitol Building, 101 N. Carson St., Carson City, Nevada, at 10:00 a.m.  Present were: 
 
Members: 
Governor Brian Sandoval 
Attorney General Adam Paul Laxalt 
Secretary of State Barbara K. Cegavske 
James R. Wells, Clerk 
 
Others Present: 
Patrick Gavin, State Public Charter School Authority 
Mr. Thompson, Office of Energy 
Tara Hagen, Senior Deputy Treasurer 
Sherry Rupert 
Claudia Vecchio, Director of the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs 
Steve Hill, Director, Governor's Office of Economic Development 
Steve Canavero, Deputy Superintendent Nevada Department of Education 
David Anderson, ASO, DCFS Juvenile Justice Budget Accounts 
Brian Duffrin, Chief of Administration Division, Gaming Control Board 
Andrew Tucker, IT Manager, Gaming 
Jackie Kingsland, Contracts Administrator, Gaming 
Roger Rahming, Operations Officer 
Donna Lopez, Quality Control Officer, Public Employees Benefits Program 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson, Chief Medical Officer, Hometown Health Plan. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 2 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 
1. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
Comments: 
 
Governor:  Good morning, everybody.  I think this sets a record for attendance for Board of 
Examiners.  Wow.  All right, then, we'll get moving because I know a lot of you have places to 
be.  Can you hear us loud and clear in Las Vegas?  Can you hear us in Las Vegas? 
 
Unknown Male:  Yes, we can. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Thank you.  All right. 
 
Unknown Male:  That's because she's with me. 
 
Governor:  We can hear you.  We heard your whole conversation.  Just kidding.  No, I'm 
kidding. 
 
Unknown Male:  I hope it was entertaining. 
 
Governor:  Yeah.  No, but if you would mute that until someone speaks so there won't be an 
echo. 
 
Unknown Male:  Yes, sir. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Thank you.  All right, we'll commence with Agenda Item No. 1, Public 
Comments.  Is there any many of the public present in Carson City that would like to provide 
public comment to the Board?  Is there anyone present in Las Vegas that would like to provide 
public comment to the Board? 
 
Unknown Male:  No, thank you, sir. 
 

*2. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF THE MAY 12, 2015 BOARD 
OF EXAMINERS’ MEETING MINUTES 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Secretary of State Seconded By: Attorney General Vote: 3-0 
Comments:  
 
Governor:  All right.  We'll move to Agenda Item No. 2, Approval of the May 12, 2015 Board 
of Examiner Meeting Minutes.  Have the members had an opportunity to review the minutes, and 
are there any changes? 
 
Secretary of State:  I have none.  I'll move for approval if there are no other. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 3 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Governor:  Secretary of State has moved for approval of the minutes.  Is there a second? 
 
Attorney General:  Second. 
 
Governor:  Attorney General has seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in 
favor, say aye. 
 
Secretary of State:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Aye. 
 
Attorney General:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Motion passes 3-0. 

 
*3. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT WITH A 

CURRENT AND/OR FORMER EMPLOYEE 
 

A. Department of Education 
 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Education requests authority to contract with a 
former Department of Education, Administrative Services Officer, through a temporary service, 
to provide training, knowledge transfer and technical assistance with the allocation and payment 
models for the Distributive School Account, Class Size Reduction, and Full Day Kindergarten 
through December 31, 2015.   
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 
Comments: 
 
Governor:  Mr. Wells, my understanding is Agenda Item No. 3 has been pulled? 
 
Clerk:  That is correct, Governor.  Item No. 3 has been withdrawn by the (inaudible). 
 
Governor:  All right. 
 

*4. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – REVIEW OF A CONTRACT WITH A 
FORMER EMPLOYEE 

 

A. State Public Charter School Authority 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705(4), the State Public Charter School Authority seeks a favorable 
recommendation regarding the Authority’s determination to use the emergency provision to 
contract with a former employee from October 21, 2014 to November 14, 2014 to employ a 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 4 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

former Program Officer from the Office of Teacher Licensure to assist the agency in preparing 
the annual Licensed Person Report.  
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 
Comments: 
 
Governor:  Then we'll move to Agenda Item No. 4, Review of a Contract With a Former 
Employee.  Mr. Wells. 
 
Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  Item No. 4, under NRS 33.705, it allows for the head of an 
agency to contract with a current or former employee, if the agency had determined (inaudible) 
emergency exists.  But they must submit a copy of the contract and a description of the 
emergency to the Board of Examiners.  Item No. 4 is a contract between a former employee and 
the State Public Charter School Authority, as well as a description of the emergency that 
precipitated entering into the contract.  The Board action here is to notify the Authority whether 
or not it would have approved the contract had it been entered in to without the emergency 
declaration. 
 
Governor:  And this was a three-week contract? 
 
Clerk:  That's correct. 
 
Governor:  Which occurred October 21, 2014 to November 14, 2014? 
 
Clerk:  Correct. 
 
Governor:  Do we need -- is this for informational purposes, or do we need to approve this 
contract for services? 
 
Clerk:  Governor, again, Jim Wells for the record.  It's to notify the Agency whether you would 
have approved it, so there is an action here to notify the Agency whether you would have 
approved it.  But if the Board of Examiners says "no, they would not have approved it," 
unfortunately there's no way to go back.  It just says, basically, don't do that again. 
 
Governor:  Yeah.  And this is authorizing statute to proceed in this fashion, correct? 
 
Clerk:  Correct. 
 
Governor:  Questions from Board members. 
 
Secretary of State:  Yes.  If I could, Governor, I'm just curious as to what happened, why it was 
never brought before the Board before.  What was the rationale?  And then, why are we just 
getting this now?  What's the emergency? 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 5 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Clerk:  Governor, there is a member of the Public Charter School Authority available to answer 
questions for this. 
 
Secretary of State:  One of things we should maybe look at, Governor, is whether or not the law 
needs to be revamped after looking at this statute. 
 
Unidentified Male:  Is there a-- 
 
Governor:  Yeah, it's -- you’re on.  So please proceed. 
 
Patrick Gavin:  Sorry, I'm just so used to being over at the other building.  Patrick Gavin from 
the State Public Charter School Authority for the record.  Ms. Cegavske, thank you for the 
question.  The licensed persons report is a report that is required of all local education agencies 
pursuant both state and federal law.  It conflates two separate requirements, one of which is the 
requirement that charter schools must submit an annual report regarding all licensed individuals 
for the purposes of compliance with the charter school statute.  And that is information that is 
then reviewed by the Department of Education. 
 
With the other element in our role is the local education agency for all charter schools under our 
authority, is we required to report on the status of licenses persons also for federal purposes.  It 
was that issue, and the fact that there was a requirement that we certify the accuracy of certain 
information related to individuals who are not in our employ.  And that precipitated the 
emergency.  I was new to the position, and was not aware of the nature of this report at the time.  
And was gravely concerned by the prospect of putting this Agency, and potentially the 
department, out of compliance with federal requirements, related to this particular provision of 
the No Child Left Behind act. 
 
The individual who was identified as an expert in the coding of the new rules related to the 
submission of this information to the department, was a former NDE employee who had formerly 
worked in the licensure division.  That I reached out to that individual immediately, and we 
negotiated a verbal agreement.  To be candid, I was very new to the position, and did not have an 
administrative services officer at the time to guide me through the process.  We have since 
rectified that issue. 
 
That former employee did not invoice us until, I believe the date was the end of February.  And 
we have worked with the department of administration since that time to rectify the matter and 
ensure that it does not recur. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  So just to be clear, the situation was urgent, and there was a deadline… 
 
Patrick Gavin:  Yes, sir. 
 
Governor:  …and there was an emergency. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 6 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 
Patrick Gavin:  Yes, sir. 
 
Governor:  All right.  So that's the whole purpose of the statute, is to allow for a state agency to 
be able to hire somebody when they don't have -- or when it doesn't have the personnel to handle 
the matter, to reach out and get somebody in there right away.  Other questions from Board 
members? 
 
Attorney General:  Move to approve. 
 
Governor:  Attorney General has moved to approve the Contract for Services of Independent 
Contractor as presented in Agenda Item No. 4.  Is there a second? 
 
Secretary of State:  I'll reluctantly second it.  I still have some questions I think we need to go 
over on it.  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  Secretary of State has seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in 
favor, please say aye.  Aye. 
 
Secretary of State:  Aye. 
 
Attorney General:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Motion passes 3-0.  Thank you. 
 

*5. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – SALARY ADJUSTMENT 
The 2013 Legislative Session made appropriations from the General Fund and the Highway Fund 
to the Board of Examiners to meet certain salary deficiencies for fiscal year 2015, that might be 
created between the appropriated money of the respective departments, commissions, and 
agencies and the actual cost of the personnel of those departments, commissions, and agencies 
that are necessary to pay for salaries.  Under this legislation, the following amounts from the 
General Fund and/or Highway Fund are requested: 
 

 
BA# 

 
BUDGET ACCOUNT NAME 

GENERAL 
FUND 

ADJUSTMENT 

HWY FUND 
ADJUSTMENT 

2941 Division of Museums and History $2,693  
2666 Commission on Postsecondary Ed $4,159  

3711 
Department of Corrections - Correctional 
Programs $107,664  

3716 
Department of Corrections - Warm Springs 
Correctional Center $110,757  

3724 
Department of Corrections - Northern 
Nevada Restitution Center $5,637  

3760 Department of Corrections - Casa Grande $14,573  



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 7 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Transitional Housing 

3760 
Department of Corrections - Casa Grande 
Transitional Housing $14,573  

5030 Comstock Historic Preservation District $1,921  
 Total $247,404  

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 
Comments: 
 
Governor:  We'll move to Agenda Item No. 5, Salary Adjustment.  Mr. Wells. 
 
Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  Agenda Item No. 5 is a request from seven budget accounts for 
salary adjustment dollars to meet deficiencies between the amounts that were budgeted for and 
the actual cost of personnel.  This difference generally results from agencies not realizing 
vacancy savings as a result of lower than expected turnover or hiring individuals at higher steps 
than was budgeted for in their budget. 
 
In the current biennium, it can also relate to not realizing anticipated furlough savings due to 
overtime related to shift coverage for, say, for instance, the Department of Corrections.  This 
request has 2,693 for the Division of Museums and History, with $4,159 for the Commission on 
Postsecondary Education.  $238,631 for the Department of Corrections. And $1,921 for the 
Comstock Historic Preservation District. 
 
Governor:  Sorry, I want a little more details on Corrections.  Is there somebody from 
Corrections here?  (Inaudible), use second gear rather than fifth gear when you talk, so don't talk 
so fast.  But, so can you give me a little more background as to your requests, or Department of 
Correction's request? 
 
Unidentified Male:  There were several things.  As you remember -- if you will remember in 
2014, we were before you to request an IFC contingency fund allocation because of unrealized 
vacancy savings.  There'd been a substantial increase in our vacancy savings requirement for the 
biennium, which has been corrected for the 2016-2017. 
 
That was part of a -- the second part of it for Corrections, which is difficult, is we are not 
budgeted for overtime, so we end up expending overtime dollars anyway.  If we have a vacancy, 
we have -- somebody has to go to the hospital, different things like that, and when this is 
calculated, any of the BOE salary funds that are available to us are reduced by the amount of 
overtime that we paid out.  So ultimately, we end up not leaving a lot of money on the table, if 
you will, because of expending money on overtime. 
 
Governor:  All right.  So we should be good moving forward, though, with the new budget. 
 
Unidentified Male:  Again, the vacancy savings requirement has been reduced substantially for 
'16-'17.  But again, we're not budgeted for overtime, so I can't give you an absolute yes. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 8 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 
Governor:  Well, I mean, given that there are no more -- will be no more furloughs, and the new 
positions that your department's receiving… 
 
Unidentified Male:  That is correct.  That -- we anticipate those new positions, the Correctional 
Officer positions, hopefully are going to reduce our overtime by at least 20%.  So we're very 
enthusiastic about that. 
 
Governor.  All right.  Questions from other Board members on Agenda Item No. 5? 
 
Secretary of State:  No. 
 
Governor:  Thank you very much.  If there are no questions, the Chair will accept a motion to 
approve the salary adjustments as described in Agenda Item No. 5. 
 
Attorney General:  Move to approve. 
 
Secretary of State:  Second. 
 
Governor:  Attorney General has moved for approval.  Secretary of State has seconded the 
motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor, say aye. 
 
Secretary of State:  Aye. 
 
Attorney General:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes, 3-0. 
 

*6. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE VEHICLE PURCHASE 
Pursuant to NRS 334.010, no automobile may be purchased by any department, office, bureau, 
officer or employee of the state without prior written consent of the state Board of Examiners. 

 

AGENCY NAME # OF 
VEHICLES 

NOT TO 
EXCEED: 

Department of Health and Human Services – Division of 
Child and Family Services – Summit View Youth 
Correctional Facility 1 $26,815 

Total  $26,815 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Secretary of State Seconded By: Attorney General Vote: 3-0 
Comments: 
 
Governor:  Next is State Vehicle Purchase, Agenda Item No. 6.  Mr. Wells. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 9 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  Agenda Item No. 6 is the request for a maintenance truck for the 
Summit View Youth Correctional Facility.  This vehicle is included in the Agency's budget for 
FY16, and the vehicle will be purchased after July 1. 
 
Governor:  And will that correspond with a reopening of that facility? 
 
Clerk:  That is correct, Governor.  This is part of the plan to reopen the facility in October. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Questions from Board members? 
 
Secretary of State:  Move for approval. 
 
Governor:  Secretary of State has moved for approval of the state vehicle purchase as described 
in Agenda Item No. 6.  Is there… 
 
Attorney General:  I second. 
 
Governor:  …a second?  Attorney General has seconded the motion.  All in favor, say aye. 
 
Secretary of State:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Aye. 
 
Attorney General:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Motion passes, 3-0. 

 
*7. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – REQUEST FOR GENERAL FUND 

ALLOCATION FROM THE INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE 
CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT 

 
A. Office of the Military 
 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268, the Office of the Military requests an allocation of $868 from the 
Interim Finance Committee (IFC) Contingency Account to fund a stale claim from SFY 2012. 
**This request is contingent upon the approval of an action item which was submitted for 

placement on the agenda of the June 25, 2015 Interim Finance Committee meeting.** 
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 
Comments: 
 
Governor:  We will move to Agenda Item No. 7, Request for General Fund Allocation From the 
IFC Contingency Account Office of the Military.  Mr. Wells. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 10 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  Item No. 7 is a request for an allocation from the IFC 
Contingency Fund for the Office of the Military to pay a Fiscal Year 2012 stale claim from NB 
Energy.  Statute does allow for agencies to pay a stale claim from current year resources, but only 
if that claim is less than $100, or if it is for medical claims, or if it for personnel-related costs.  
And also, the Agency can also request a allocation from the Stale Claims account, but only if 
they revert General Funds in excess of the stale claim. 
 
In FY 2012, the Office of the Military did not revert General Funds to the -- or did not revert 
funds to the General Fund,. Therefore it is ineligible for an allocation for the stale claim, and 
their only recourse is to ask for an IFC contingency claim to pay NB Energy the $867.62 that they 
owe, as a result of a claim being missed during a billing transition. 
 
Governor:  No.  And if there ever was an area for a statutory change, this is it.  Because it's for 
$867.62, so the department administration has had to process it, and the Board of Examiners had 
to process this, and with that threshold being at $100.00, we certainly should explore in 2017 the 
possibility of raising that floor so that matters like that can be paid summarily by the department. 
 
Madam Secretary. 
 
Secretary of State:  Thank you, Governor.  Is their budget so tight that they don't have a little 
wiggle room within their own budget to pay for that, because usually the agency -- we have, you 
know, a little money in there to offset something like this.  You know, if a computer or 
something goes down.  So I'm kind of perplexed as to why their budget -- is their budget that 
tight? 
 
Clerk:  Thank you, Madam Secretary.  That's a great question.  I don't believe that their budget is 
that tight.  Unfortunately, the law states that because this is a claim for a prior Fiscal Year, and it 
is greater than $100, that they cannot pay it from current year resources.  So I think what the 
Governor was alluding to was… 
 
Secretary of State:  Yeah, no, I know. 
 
Clerk:  …increasing that threshold, which after processing this claim has been on our radar for 
(inaudible) and FY17. 
 
Governor:  How many hours of staff time do you estimate went into this? 
 
Clerk:  Probably enough to pay the claim. 
 
Governor:  Oh, more than that, I'm sure.  But in any event, if… 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Governor:  Law's the law, and we have to follow the process, and it's pretty straightforward. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 11 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Secretary of State:  Hopefully we can change it. 
 
Governor:  So, hey, if there are no further questions, the Chair will accept a motion to approve a 
General Fund allocation in the amount of $867.62, for the Office of the Military. 
 
Attorney General:  Move to approve. 
 
Secretary of State:  And I'll second it, knowing that we're going to go change the law. 
 
Governor:  You can use one of your bills. 
 
Secretary of State:  All right, all right. 
 
Governor:  So, the Attorney General has moved for approval, Secretary of State has seconded 
the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor, say aye. 
 
Secretary of State:  Aye. 
 
Attorney General:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Aye.  Motion passed, 3-0. 
 

*8. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – LEASE 
 
One lease was submitted to the Board for review and approval. 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 
Comments: 
 
Governor:  We'll move on to Agenda Item No. 8, Leases, or Lease in this case. 
 
Clerk:  That is correct, Governor.  There is one lease in Exhibit No. 1 for approval by the Board 
of Examiners, and no additional information has been expressed for this particular lease. 
 
Governor:  This is for the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners? 
 
Clerk:  That is correct. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Pretty straightforward.  Any questions from Board members? 
 
Attorney General:  Move to approve. 
 
Secretary of State:  I'll second it. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 12 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Governor:  Attorney General has moved for approval of the lease described in Agenda Item No. 
8.  The Secretary of State has seconded the motion.  All in favor, say aye. 
 
Secretary of State:  Aye. 
 
Attorney General:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes, 3-0. 
 

*9. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – CONTRACTS 
 

One-hundred three independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
1-8, 10-31, 41-103  
Motion By: Attorney General 

Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

32-40-Attorney General abstained  
Motion By: Secretary of State 

Seconded By: Governor Vote: 2-0 

Comments: 
 
Governor:  We'll move on to Agenda Item No. 9, Contracts. 
 
Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  There are 103 contracts that are listed in Exhibit No. 2 for 
approval by the Board of Examiners today.  Contract number 9 has been withdrawn by the State 
Treasurer's Office.  And members have requested additional information on the following. 
 
Contract numbers 1 and 2, between the Office of Energy and the Department of Business and 
Industries Housing Division. 
Contract 7 and 8, between the State Treasurer's Office and Chicago Equity Partners, LLC, an 
FTN Financial Mainstreet Advisors. 
 
Contract number 16, between the State Public Works Division and HNK Architects.  I'd like to 
note that this contract is contingent upon passage of a related work program by the June IFC 
agenda, so if Board of Examiners approves this contract today, we will hold it for signature until 
the work program has been approved (inaudible) June 25 by IFC. 
 
Contract numbers 25 through 31, between the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs, and 
various international representation organizations. 
 
Contracts… 
 
Secretary of State:  Through 30? 
 
Clerk:  31. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 13 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Secretary of State:  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
Clerk:  Contracts 32 through 40, between the Governor's Office of Economic Development and 
the local government development authorities. 
 
Contract number 44, between the Department of Education and Otis Educational Systems. 
 
Contract number 69, between (inaudible) Center and Lincoln Country School District. 
 
Contract 76, between the Gaming Control Board and Cyber, Inc. 
 
And Contract number 102 between the Public Employee Benefit Program (inaudible) Health Inc. 
 
Number 103 between the Public Employees Benefit Program and Hometown Health Providers. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Today, members want anything else held out?  Let's proceed with 
Contracts 1 and 2.  I see Mr. Thompson.  Morning, sir. 
 
Mr. Thompson:  Thank you very much, Governor.  Would you just like an explanation of the 
two contracts… 
 
Governor:  Yeah, I'm not questioning, but I think there's some really good policies in here and I 
thought this would be a nice opportunity to bring them to the attention of state employees. 
 
Mr. Thompson:  I'll be thrilled to give you a little bit of background on these two programs.  So, 
starting with Contract number 1, which is for $1.5 million, this references the Direct Energy 
Assistance Loan Program.  And this program just became available with the passage of AB466, 
and your signature. 
 
This program is funded out of the Governor's Office of Energy's Renewable Energy Fund.  Prior 
to 2013, renewable energy projects in the State of Nevada could abate up to 55% of their 
property taxes, and 45% of the remaining 45% of those taxes went to fund the Office of Energy.  
And that money needed to be spent for two critical areas, to reduce energy consumption or the 
price that NV Energy Rate Payers pay for electricity. 
 
And so prior to my tenure here at the Office of Energy, that program was getting up and started, 
and renewable power plants were being built.  Today, we're seeing an average -- or we have a 
budget of $4.7 million coming into that program. 
 
And so the Direct Energy Assistance Loan Program is a pilot program that will allow state 
employees to take out up to a $6,000 loan or an $8,000 loan if they're a veteran, at 0% interest 
and pay that loan back on their paychecks.  So if the loan is less than $3,000, they'll pay $50 a 
month.  And if it's over $3, 000 they'll pay $100 a month. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 14 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

The typical term we've seen is about five years, with people taking out about $3,600 in loans 
under the HERO Program, which I'll discuss next.  What's I think really kind of -- this is the first 
of its kind program in the nation.  The innovation here is that we're not giving the money directly 
to the state employee, we're using the Nevada Housing Division, who also implements our 
HERO program.  They have contractors that are licensed and BPI certified that will go out to the 
homes, approve the efficiency measures, implement the work, and then bill to the Department of 
Administration, and we will take care of that loan. 
 
The $1.5 million is for the pilot program.  We expect that to impact close to 3 -- approximately 3 
to 400 homes, or state employees.  But of course, we're going to be monitoring that and kind of 
in this pilot phase, making any changes to the program. 
 
To be eligible, you have to be an active, full-time employee with at least 12 months of service to 
the State.  You need to be in the NEATS system.  We started with the NEATS system because 
we control those paychecks.  We hope that we will be able to expand this program to the Nevada 
System of Higher Education and other payroll systems, but we wanted to start with a manageable 
system. 
 
You cannot have any debt owed to the State of Nevada.  You have to be a customer of NV 
Energy, which is in our statute.  And you have to provide us proof of home ownership.  If you 
have those five criteria, we're excited to make a loan. 
 
In a similar program for seniors, we have seen an average reduction of about 3,500 kilowatt 
hours, a savings of close to $700 a year.  So over a 20 year period, we're talking a $10,000 
savings to employees who can take advantage of this program. 
 
So with that, I'll open it up to any questions you might have. 
 
Governor:  So give me an example.  If I want to put windows in my house that are energy 
efficient, is that an example of something I could do? 
 
Mr. Thompson:  Absolutely.  I have a list here of eligible measures.  Would you like me to just 
read those off? 
 
Governor:  Yes.  Please. 
 
Mr. Thompson:  So, those include things like duct ceiling, shell ceiling, air conditioners, broken 
window repair, water heater blankets, dual pane windows, solar screens, for the Las Vegas area, 
attic insulation, CFL and LED light retrofits, Energy Star rated refrigerators, air conditioner 
replacement, furnace replacements to 95% efficiency, air conditioner clean and tune, furnace 
clean and tune, heat pump replacement, water heater replacement, low-flo shower head and 
faucets, water heater pipe wraps, and water heater blankets, Elasto-Metric coding, and something 
foam that I can't pronounce for your roof, floor insulation, duct insulation, heat pump water 
heater, and programmable thermostats. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 15 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

And we -- in the senior program that we're going to talk about in a little bit, I mean, we've just 
had great stories of going in to homes where they haven't had a heater for two years.  So it's not 
only the efficiency savings, but also just the health, comfort of the home, and so forth that we're 
really improving for our state employees in regards to the DEAL Program. 
 
Governor:  And how are you going to make state employees aware that this program exists? 
 
Mr. Thompson:  Great question.  We've been toying with this.  We are still working through 
how we are going to roll out the program, recognizing that there are 17,000 state employees.  We 
don't want to roll it out so wide and then put everybody on, kind of a long-term hiatus.  So, we 
are going to kind of target departments in Northern and Southern Nevada for this pilot phase.  
See kind of what the response is to the program, and then incrementally add additional 
departments so that we can respond in a timely manner. 
 
The Nevada Housing Division has a nice kind of per capita distribution of the money, so that a 
larger distribution will go to the Las Vegas area based on population, and in Northern Nevada, so 
that will be an additional overlay on kind of how we look at how we're implementing this 
statewide. 
 
After the Year One implementation, we're going to look to see if we have additional funding that 
could go into this, and to see if we need to make any changes to that criteria of, you know, how 
long of a state employee.  The other thing we're going to look at really closely is kind of the 
attrition rate.  What happens when a state employee leaves, should die, et cetera, and really we 
want to make sure that's kind of like below a 5% margin there.  And we'll make any changes to 
that. 
 
One thing we're also going to do is make it very clear in the application process that should you 
terminate your employment with the State, the remainder of that loan is due immediately.  
Because that's really the risk aversion for us is pulling that money out of the paychecks.  And so 
we don't want to get into a position where someone leaves and we're still trying to recover the 
loan. 
 
If they do leave, and don't true up, or pay up the remaining amount, they'll be immediately sent to 
the Controller's Office for collections, and then we're going to review that.  Because, again, I 
recognize these microloans, and so we're going to have some losses there, and we're going to 
really pay close attention to those and see what changes to the program we need to make to limit 
those as much as possible. 
 
Governor:  And will -- depending upon demand, will it be first come, first served, or will it be a 
lottery? 
 
Mr. Thompson:  It'll be first come, first served. 
 
Governor:  So, look, you all have a head start.  You all do. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 16 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Mr. Thompson:  We really think that the application process will be online, which will give us a 
timestamp.  And we're going to follow that kind of rigorously through the process. 
 
AB466 also required us to create a regulation for the actual payroll deduction mechanism, for not 
just this program, but any future program that the Office of Energy implements.  So we expect us 
-- we expect to be rolling this out in the fourth quarter of the calendar year. 
 
Governor:  So that was going to be my next question.  So it'll be December when these will start 
to be available? 
 
Mr. Thompson:  Hopefully, yeah.  October, November, December timeframe.  We want to -- as 
soon as we can get our regulation done and get that in place.  We've been working diligently with 
the Housing Division, the Department of Administration, so we can start to roll this out as 
quickly as possible. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Do you want to go into Number 2? 
 
Mr. Thompson:  Sure. 
 
Governor:  Unless -- did either Secretary, Attorney General, any questions on… 
 
Secretary of State:  Not on this… 
 
Governor:  …that program? 
 
Secretary of State:  …but overall after he's done, I just have a clarification question. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Please proceed. 
 
Mr. Thompson:  So moving on to the HERO Program, which is Contract Number 2, which is 
for $1.2 million, this is going to be a $600,000 contract throughout the biennium, so in year '15, 
'16, and '17. 
 
This program we rolled out, I think we've had it in place for three quarters now.  Nine months.  
We had an existing grant called Energy Fit Nevada that was funded by the Department of Energy.  
And what it tried to do was create an incentive program for individuals in the state to do energy 
upgrades to their home.  And after $5 million in three years, we realized that that federal grant 
wasn't really targeting some of the most needy individuals in our state, which were low-income 
seniors, because they just didn't have the $1,000 to put up front to get matched by the federal 
government. 
 
And so, my staff came up with the idea for the HERO Program which says if you are a senior, 
over 60, if you are at 200% of the federal poverty level, and you own your home, the Office of 
Energy will go in and provide up to $6,000 of energy retrofits free of charge. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 17 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Again, this was a pilot program.  We really didn't know how many seniors fit that criteria, and we 
are thrilled to say that in the first nine months, we have impacted 100 homes for an average 
savings of about 3,000 kilowatt hours, and 300 therms of energy, saving low-income seniors 
$671 a year. 
 
Secretary of State:  Wow. 
 
Mr. Thompson:  And that's money that will buy groceries, you know, do really meaningful 
things for those folks.  And those are the stories of the heater that didn't work for two years, and 
so forth.  So, we're also seeing approximately a 2-to-1 return on that investment.  So we're 
spending just about $3,500 per home.  We're saving them over a 20-year period about $10,000 
when you take out the $3,000 we spent to upgrade the home.  And today, we have spent 
$500,000 on that program, and seen energy savings of $1 million. 
 
So, as you… 
 
Governor:  5,000 you've spent? 
 
Mr. Thompson:  500,000. 
 
Governor:  Okay.  Mm-hmm. 
 
Mr. Thompson:  And seen a return of $1 million.  So as a Fine Arts major, I can tell you that's a 
2-to-1 return on our investment.  We want to continue that program and see as we start to click 
down on those seniors, because we hope that that cohort will start to shrink, and then we can look 
to the next cohort.  So really, both of these programs, one targets our senior population in the 
State of Nevada, the next is for the state employees. 
 
Governor:  And veterans. 
 
Mr. Thompson:  And veterans.  Absolutely.  And the veteran -- and if I didn't clear that up, the 
veterans are eligible -- most state employees are eligible for a $6,000 loan, and because it was the 
year of the veteran, we said if you can prove your veteran status, you're eligible for an $8,000 
loan, at 0% interest, paid back under the same $100 or $50 a month term. 
 
Attorney General:  Is that a state employee that's also a veteran?  Or freestanding veteran? 
 
Mr. Thompson:  State employee who is a veteran.  
 
Governor:  All right.  Secretary, you have follow-up? 
 
Secretary of State:  No, not on this.  He's fine.  I just had an overall question, if I can ask, 
Governor, when we're done. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 18 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Mr. Thompson:  The last thing I'd just like to mention about this program.  It's really, I think, a 
great example of efficiency between the Office of Energy and the Nevada Housing Division.  
When we looked at doing this program and kind of setting up our own freestanding contractors, 
and buying the trucks, and going and trying to do this work ourselves, we looked at a potentially 
a 60% overhead cost of doing this program.  
 
And when we talked to the Nevada Housing Division, they do a similar federal weatherization 
program, and we were able to implement this program with about a 16% overhead.  And so that's 
why we've continued this relationship with them.  They've been phenomenal in implementing 
this using their existing contractors and allowing us to spend this money as effectively and as 
efficiently as possible. 
 
Governor:  So I just want to first thank you and your staff for putting this all together, because I 
think it's a tremendous program.  And, you know, key word, free.  I mean, at least for the HERO 
program.  And I'm wondering how do we market that?  I've just got to believe there's a lot -- even 
more folks out there that could take advantage of this. 
 
Mr. Thompson:  Well, we've put ads on public radio, and gone to senior centers, and Catholic 
churches and dioceses and all churches, really.  We were limited.  Our first rollout was $600,000, 
and we've already allocated that 600,000.  So, approving this contract today will give us an 
additional $1.2 million over the biennium.  We're going to crank up those ads, by word of mouth.  
I think Nevada Housing Division is here, but we already have -- we're accruing a waiting list to 
participate in that program.  So we're just scaling up incrementally again.  
 
We want to -- when people apply, we want to be able to provide them service in a reasonable 
timeframe, and not have a year-long wait, or anything like that.  So, we're seeing that grow.  I 
expect you to hear more and more about it in the next, you know, next 12 months.  
 
And the DEAL Program, I think as soon as we get it started, we've already seen incredible 
interest from state employees who paid attention during the legislative cycle. 
 
Governor:  And I know you testified this, but again, just remind me where the funds come from 
for this. 
 
Mr. Thompson:  Sure.  So the funds come from Budget Account 4869, which is funded through 
the energy tax abatements for the state.  So, none of the funding comes from the General Fund.  
The renewable energy projects in the State of Nevada have an incredible incentive program.  
They can abate up to 55% of their property taxes, and they can abate their sales -- for 20 years.  
And they can abate their sales tax down to the Protected School Account. 
 
Part of that deal, or the agreement for partnering with those companies was that the remaining 
45% of those taxes, 45% of that went to fund this office.  Now that changed in 2013.  In 2013, 
we said all of that money is going to return to the counties in which the project is developed.  So 
the money we have today is going to, over the next 20 years, decline, with amortization and so 
forth.  But it gives us a real stable income for the 17 projects that were approved under that old 
program. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 19 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 
And that money went into an account to be spent per statute, it said we have to reduce energy 
consumption or the price of electricity for NV Energy customers.  So that it is a limiting factor of 
this program.  If you're in a rural community not served by NV Energy, you are not eligible for 
these programs today.  We are looking at additional funding that our office has through the state 
energy program, federal budget, and so forth, to try to look at first identify how many people are 
in non-NV Energy served.  There's about 10% of the population there.  And see if we can extend 
these programs. 
 
So these programs today apply to about 90% of the customers.  And the original policy intent 
was to reduce our energy consumption because we were bringing on this renewable energy.  And 
the idea was if it was expensive, we wanted to provide this cost-saving mechanism for them.  
And it was really the intent to get this out to, you know, Nevadans and NV Energy customers as 
quickly as possible.  And that's what we're trying to do here today.  So no General Fund 
obligation.  It's purely out of the money we've collected from the renewable energy project being 
built in the state. 
 
And just to give you kind of a size to wrap your head.  In the last four years, we've seen $5.5 
billion of investment in renewable energy projects in the State of Nevada, and that's from our tax 
incentive program that we've spent $500 million on.  So we've seen a 10-to-1 return investment 
in that program as well. 
 
Attorney General:  All right.  Thank you. 
 
Secretary of State:  Thank you very much. 
 
Mr. Thompson:  My pleasure. 
 
Governor:  Thank you, Mr. Thompson.  Did you want to make a comment, Madam Secretary? 
 
Secretary of State:  I do overall on the contracts.  I just have a couple questions, if as we're 
going through the contracts, if you could tell me whether or not any of these have been 
enhancements to the budget -- to their budget, if it was something that was in the overall budget 
that was just closed.  And then the clarification question I have is some of these don't seem like 
contracts.  They seem more like they should be grants.  And I'm just curious about that, if that 
could be defined a little for me.  And if you need to talk to me after this, that's fine.  But I just 
wanted it on the record that I just had some questions about some of these, especially towards the 
end of -- that they seem more like they should be a grant instead of a contract. 
 
And then if everyone who comes up that we're having discuss any of these could talk to us about 
when you do this, what is the giveback to the people.  You know, what is it that you're asking for 
all this money?  And again, it's actually towards more of the end of it, what is it -- we're giving 
this amount of money, and how do the people benefit from these dollars being spent?  
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 20 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

So I just wanted to put that on the record.  Thank you.  So if you could, I mean, if you can clarify 
the contract grant versus grant issue with some of these.  Because of them do seem more that 
they'd be in line to be a grant awarded than a contract.  So.  
 
Governor:  Well, why don't we save that for a conversation, because I think that could be a 
while to… 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Governor:  …explain all that. 
 
Secretary of State:  All right.  That's fine. 
 
Governor:  So, it'll give Mr. Wells an opportunity to consider the question. 
 
Secretary of State:  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  Okay.  We'll move to Contract 7 and 8, which is the Treasurer's Office.  Good 
morning. 
 
Tara Hagen:  Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  Tara Hagen, Senior Deputy 
Treasurer.  So the Treasurer's Office solicited proposals for investment asset management 
services for a variety of the portfolios under the Treasurer's purview.  For what you have in front 
of you today are directly related to the general portfolio, and the local government investment 
portfolio, what we call LGIP. 
 
We did have 15 firms bid on the general portfolio.  And 7 firms bid on the LGIP. 
 
So through a variety of screening, both qualitative and quantitative, we did whittle those down to 
some finalists.  And you have in front of you today, one would be the Chicago Equities Partner 
contract.  Chicago Equities will manage a portion of the general portfolio.  So at the Treasurer's 
Office, we look at the general portfolio as really two distinct buckets of money, if you will.  One 
is what we deem the operating portfolio, which is currently approximately $1.2 billion.  That, as 
we look at that in terms of shorter duration, less risk, fixed income securities, those monies will 
continue to be managed in-house by the Treasurer's Office.   
 
What we're looking for Chicago Equities partners is to manage what we call the core, which 
currently is about $650 million.  We have capacity for $750 million for that core.  The 
Treasurer's Officer personnel really doesn't have expertise in the longer-term riskier fixed income 
securities.  Also, we don't have expertise in some of the specialized security, such as corporates 
and mortgage-backed securities. 
 
So what we're looking for is obviously for both the LGIP and the general portfolio to increase the 
yield on those not only above and beyond what we're at today, but also above and beyond the fees 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 21 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

that we're being assessed by the partners.  So, similar to LGIP, the -- you want me to go ahead 
and move to the next contract… 
 
Governor:  Yes. 
 
Tara Hagen:  …if that's okay?  Okay.  So, once again, we had 7 firms bid to manage the LGIP 
and through that same process, both qualitative and quantitative, we're looking to contract with 
FTN, who understands the LGIP, they -- it's an operating funds of local government.  So it is 
shorter, also, in duration.  But FTN does have experience in operating portfolios for public 
clients. 
 
Just one last piece.  On the quantitative that I think is important to note because as you know, 
statutes requires certain restrictions on the investments that we can invest in within both of these 
portfolios.  In addition to we have investment policies that they must abide by. 
 
So when we look at the qualitative, we look at their ability to manage those pools of money 
within the statute and within the investment policy.  So with that, I'm happy to take any 
questions. 
 
Governor:  All right.  So the -- right now, you do all -- the Treasurer's Office does all that 
investing internally, correct? 
 
Tara Hagen:  That's correct, for both those portfolios. 
 
Governor:  So now, we're going to go externally with those types of investments that you just 
testified about.  So, essentially, these outside investors will have to outperform what you are 
doing currently, at least by -- Chicago Equity by $1.5 million, and then FTN by $272,000. 
 
Tara Hagen:  That's correct. 
 
Governor:  So is that a -- is it capped at that amount?  Let's say they just did extraordinarily 
well.  And earned even more than this.  This is the most that they can make? 
 
Tara Hagen:  No, that's a great question.  Within these investment manager contracts, it's 
actually based on assets under management.  So it's a percentage of assets under management.  
Generally they're tiered, so the more assets they have, the lower those fees are going to be.  But 
that also incentivizes them to increase that rate of return.  So it could go above and beyond that 
should those assets grow. 
 
Governor:  And if they underperform, and it's basically costing the state money, then you would 
go back and consider whether we should go down that -- continue to go down that path. 
 
Tara Hagen:  Absolutely.  I think two things that we would do.  Obviously, through the Board 
of Finance, we will report quarterly.  We will show those managers separate from the  



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 22 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

internally-managed monies.  But also we would start to peel back that money, because they are 
paid on an asset basis fee, so we would start to bring those back in-house. 
 
Governor:  So we do -- there is a, for lack of a better term, perhaps there's a more technical term, 
but there's an escape hatch for us if they're not doing what we hope they do. 
 
Tara Hagen:  Absolutely, because they are paid on asset-based fees, we can simply just move 
that money back in to the operating portion of the general portfolio… 
 
Attorney General:  Are there any limitations or can you move it all back? 
 
Tara Hagen:  We certainly can.  There's no restrictions within these contracts. 
 
Attorney General:  Okay. 
 
Governor:  And then just finally, you sought a waiver in terms of when you reached out on the 
RFP for these two companies.  And so you're comfortable with those?  It didn't go through the 
traditional department administration process. 
 
Tara Hagen:  We are comfortable.  This is similar.  I've been with the Treasurer's Office three 
years now.  We conducted a similar investment management request for proposal in-house for 
both permanent school fund and prepaid tuition.  So we bring this in-house just because we have 
the expertise to kind of whittle those down both from a qualitative and quantitative perspective.  
So. 
 
Governor: And these two firms haven't had any history of complaints or anything of that nature? 
 
Tara Hagen:  No, they have not. 
 
Governor:  Okay.  I have no further questions.  (Inaudible) questions.  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
Tara Hagen:  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  The next item is Number 16, and you know, the purpose -- I've asked for this to be 
brought up, but it's more an opportunity to talk about Stewart.  So if you want to come forward 
and -- Sherry, and talk about the great things that are happening now. 
 
Sherry Rupert:  Are you sure you have enough time?  So, did you want to specifically talk 
about this, or … 
 
Governor:  Well, specifically talk about this, but you know, we have a lot of other matters, but I 
just thought it was important to socialize what's going on out at Stewart.  And this is an 
important component of that.  Gus, good morning to you, as well. 
 
Gus:  Good morning, Governor. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 23 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 
Sherry Rupert:  This particular contract is for HNK Architects.  And this is for the design and 
construction documents for Building Number 1, out at the former Stewart Indian School.  
Building Number 1 is the former administration building and what we're looking at is 
establishing a cultural center in that building.  So this will take care of the professional services 
for that particular building. 
 
What we're trying to do out at Stewart, and for those of you that don't know a lot about the 
Stewart Indian School, the school was established in 1890, as part of a federal mandate to 
remove American Indian children from their homes and from their tribes and bring them to these 
boarding schools to assimilate them, to immerse them in a different culture and a different 
language.  And, Stewart Indian School was one of the very first 25 that were instituted across the 
nation. 
 
So we're doing is not only establishing the cultural center and a welcome and information center, 
but to create a cultural heritage destination out at the former Indian School.  And this destination 
would be unlike any other across the country.  We've done some preliminary research, talked to 
board members at the Carlisle Indian School, which was the very first Indian school in Carlisle, 
Pennsylvania.  And they are just blown away by what we have here in Carson City, and really 
what this school can become. 
 
So we're really excited about the future of the Indian school, and want to thank the Governor for 
his support, and of course the legislature in this legislative session.  So this is just the beginning, 
the planning stages of this vision. 
 
Governor:  Now you have an application into the National… 
 
Sherry Rupert:  Park Service. 
 
Governor:  …Park Service, and what would… 
 
Sherry Rupert:  Actually it was a letter of inquiry, and it's like the first step of the two- to three-
year process.  But what we're surmising is that the Stewart Indian School is unique, and that it 
does have national significance.  It is on the National Register.  And so what we're seeking is a 
national landmark designation.  And so we just received word back this last week that they 
concur, that they feel that there is national significance in three different objectives that they 
have. 
 
And so we are going to move forward with an application.  We've been working with the State 
Historic Preservation Office, and they have drafted a grant that would assist us in hiring 
somebody to help us to draft that application.  It's very lengthy.  It's very technical.  We'll have to 
do an analysis of some of the other schools from the same era.  So that's going to be very 
interesting and provide us with a lot of great research and information moving forward. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 24 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Governor:  And I brought you up here because I think everyone needs to know about this.  We 
have a national treasure right here in Carson City.  And it's important that we preserve it, not only 
for the benefits of the tribes, but the benefit of the people of this country.  And I think that people 
will come from all over the world to see that.  And frankly, I see it as a great opportunity to show 
off the culture of our tribes across the State of Nevada.  And Sherry, I want to publicly thank you 
because it's through her tenacity and drive to get this done, that this is happening. 
 
And so, again, thank you for that.  And this is an important first step into getting that done.  But 
the day will come, and it's not far away, where this will be restored.  And people will truly get to 
see an important part of not only Nevada history, but American history and Native American 
history.  So I'm excited and proud and thankful for what you've done. 
 
Sherry Rupert:  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  Thank you.  Gus, I don't know if you had anything to add. 
 
Gus:  No sir.  We're here in a supportive role to her. 
 
Governor:  Just know it's a big priority for me, Gus.  So… 
 
Gus:  (Inaudible).  We'll be working with -- very closely with Ms. Rupert and also with Shipple. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Questions from other Board members? 
 
Secretary of State:  Just congratulations. 
 
Sherry Rupert:  Thank you. 
 
Attorney General:  Congratulations. 
 
Governor:  Thank you.   
 
Attorney General:  Governor, if it's okay, 19 I don't want to pull, but I just need do a quick 
disclosure… 
 
Governor:  Okay. 
 
Attorney General:  …while we're in order.  
 
Governor:  Sure.  Mr. Attorney General. 
 
Attorney General:  Just want to state for the record that I need to disclose that I have a relative 
that works for Loomis and Associates, which is Contract 19.  The Loomis employee is Mitch 
Burns.  We got on the phone this morning, figure out what the level of relation is.  He and my 
mother are second cousins.  So we think that makes me second once removed. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 25 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 
And my independence of judgment will not be affected by this, and I will vote on the contract. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Thank you, Mr. Attorney General.  We'll move to Contracts 25 through 
31.  Claudia, I see that you're here.  Good morning. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  Claudia Vecchio, Director 
of the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs.  I just want to reiterate my excitement over 
the Stewart Indian School.  And as you mentioned, really it does have a tremendous significance 
for us from a tourism standpoint, as we highlight the cultural significance of this facility and its 
appeal to travelers from around the world. 
 
The mission of the Division of Tourism, which is within the Department of Tourism and Cultural 
Affairs, is to drive revenue to the State of Nevada through travel and tourism activities.  And we 
do that through a fairly robust integrated marketing program that appeals to both domestic and 
international travelers.  From a domestic standpoint, primarily consumers, but also business 
travelers.  And then from an international standpoint, primarily leisure, but we also work with 
our partners on international business travelers, as well. 
 
The contracts that you see before you now represent seven of the nine internationals in-market 
representative firms that the Division employs to help us with our marketing in each of these 
countries.  It's imperative that we have in-country representatives because each country really 
operates somewhat differently.  The culture is different.  The nuances of marketing to these 
audiences differ from country to country.  So we do get great insights from our firms in each of 
these countries to help us best appeal to our audiences in these countries. 
 
So you have, as I said, seven of the nine contracts here.  We are undergoing sort of a contract 
evolution, if you will, based on best practices of contracting.  And so you see some of these are 
for the full contract, so that's Contract 25, 26, 28, 30, and that's it.  Those are for the full two-year 
contracts for these rep firms.  Those were all gained through a competitive bid process, working 
in partnership with our partners at Purchasing. 
 
The other ones, which are Contract 27, 29, and 31, are six-month contracts.  And we are 
undergoing the RFP process in those countries as we speak, to get those contracts sort of back 
under a two-year format, and with the right timing and all that sort of thing.  So that's why the 
difference in the contract amounts. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Did you ask to have these held, Madam Secretary?  Or maybe did I? 
 
Secretary of State:  I think you did.  It was… 
 
Governor:  Okay. 
 
Secretary of State:  But again, my questions still stands as to why their contracts are not grants 
and (inaudible) difference. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 26 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 
Governor:  Well, their -- I mean, why don't you explain, Claudia, where the money comes 
from… 
 
Secretary of State:  What -- some of this is lodging… 
 
Governor:  …to fund these. 
 
Secretary of State:  And I think the other ones are general fund, but most of these are lodging. 
 
Governor:  It's just room tax. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  Yeah, these are 100% lodging tax. 
 
Secretary of State:  Yeah. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  The Division is 100% lodging tax funded.  So these are contracts with 
agencies, with marketing firms. 
 
Secretary of State:  Right. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  So that's why they're contracts.  We have a grant program that we provide out 
to our partners.  They submit applications for grant funding.  But those are for particular 
programs and projects.  This is kind of an overarching marketing contract with an agency.  So 
that's what makes these contracts as opposed to grants. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay.  I appreciate that, because I knew that they were grant funding, so I 
just wanted to make the difference… 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  Exactly right. 
 
Secretary of State:  …between the two. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  Yeah. 
 
Governor:  So, Ms. Vecchio, do you believe it's worth it?  I mean, you've got some contracts for 
300-and-some-thousand dollars? 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  I absolutely believe it's worth it.  This really when we look at our growth in 
Nevada tourism, our international audiences present -- we have absolutely no idea what the 
growth is going to be in this area.  China alone, which is not one of these contracts, but China 
grew 30% last year in terms of in-bound travelers.  And they are going to become the number one 
in-bound travel market.  Their number one place that they want to visit is Las Vegas.  So we 
work very closely with our partners at the Las Vegas Convention and Visitor's Authority. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 27 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

They also have a robust international program, but the partnership is so critically important 
because we use our major metropolitan areas as hubs, but these international travelers also are 
very interested in rural Nevada.  They're very interested in the western culture.  They're very 
interested in Native American culture.  They're very interested in that authentic Americana that 
we can offer them in the rural communities. 
 
So, the growth is stupendous.  And we have chosen these markets based on potential growth.  
But we also see a great return on investment.  The amount that we provide these agencies is 
miniscule in terms of the work that they provide for us.  We get a -- we measure the results 
through a quarterly report. They have to submit that along with their invoices so we know that 
they are working consistently and working to the highest level possible. 
 
So, we absolutely believe this is well worth it.  We do track the return on investment for these 
agencies.  It's a two-year contract, with a four-year -- with another two-year renewable option.  
So if things aren't working, we can quickly make a change.  So, yeah, I think it's very well worth 
it.  Very well worth it for the industry and for returning dollars back to the State of Nevada. 
 
Governor:  And I don't have a question, Ms. Vecchio.  I wanted to also -- today I'm full of 
compliments, but I hosted a breakfast at 6:00a.m. for a small group that is doing a Discover Your 
Nevada Adventure. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  Oh, good. 
 
Governor:  And they pulled out a map from the Department of Tourism that has the state parks 
and all destinations on it.  And I thought -- I had not seen that map, and I thought it was fabulous.  
Because it really is, for somebody who doesn't know the state, they can open that and then plan a 
one- or two-day adventure and know exactly where they want to go or need to go.  So… 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  Well, that's excellent. 
 
Governor:  So that's very well done and that was the first thing that they had pulled out and were 
going to use. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  Very good to hear. Yeah. 
 
Secretary of State:  Where do we get the map? 
 
Governor:  I think they -- you have it available. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  We do.  We have it available.  We do that in partnership with the Department 
of Transportation.  I believe that's the one.  Is that the regular state map, or is it a separate… 
 
Governor:  It's a separate map. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 28 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Claudia Vecchio:  Oh, it's a separate state map.  Those are all available, and if we can certainly 
get you those as well.  But the new state map, actually, has a lot of tourism information on it as 
well.  So, great partnership with Transportation on that one, too. 
 
Governor:  And I hope you're planning my itinerary for the Discover Your Nevada for Lincoln 
County in the State Parks. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  We are.  We are. 
 
Governor:  In Southern Nevada. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  Looking for the fall.  Looking for some days for you in the fall for that, yeah.  
That'll be tremendous.  We are - the program's underway at the moment, and we look forward to 
reporting that.  It's kind of in conjunction with the Nevada magazines, Silver State Scavenger 
Hunt.  So it's a great way for people to get out and mark their tour through Nevada. 
 
Governor:  And are you seeing a lot of interest in the passport -- State Park passport programs?  
Say that fast three times. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  Yeah.  All passport programs are appealing, as they really allow people a 
chance to kind of check off where they've been and what they've done, so they have a great 
feeling of accomplishment.  And certainly the state parks, in and of themselves, are great visitor 
destinations.  So having that, kind of, real tangible product along with these great destinations is 
a wonderful combination.  And we look for that sort of thing as we drive tourism.  Great 
partnership with the state parks. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Wonderful.  All right, thank you, Ms. Vecchio. 
 
Claudia Vecchio:  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  All right, I see Mr. Hill in Southern Nevada, and we have several contracts with the 
Governor's Office of Economic Development with the Regional Development Authorities 
throughout the state.  Good morning, Mr. Hill. 
 
Steve Hill:  Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  My name is Steve Hill.  I'm the 
Director of the Governor's Office of Economic Development.  And we have nine contracts with 
Regional Development Authorities that we are making the request to extend.  And I'll back up 
just briefly to make sure that the new members of the Board know what the Regional 
Development Authorities are and how we work with them. 
 
As I said, there are nine contracts.  There are nine Regional Development Authorities throughout 
Nevada representing all of the state.  When the legislature with the Governor's leadership in 2011 
changed really the way we are doing the economic development.  Part of that change was with 
respect to the Regional Development Authorities.  In the -- prior to that time, grants were made 
directly out of the State General Fund to the development authorities.  The legislature and 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 29 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Governor in 2011 felt that that fundage should go through the Governor's Office of Economic 
Development. 
 
I think that was a good choice, and I think that has been helpful in providing an opportunity to 
define the relationship between the state organization and the regional organizations, defining the 
roles that each will play. And offering an opportunity to work through contracts with those 
Regional Development Authorities so that we could document what those respective roles would 
be.  When the Regional Development Authorities would do -- take the lead role in some areas, 
and where the state would take the lead role, and others. 
 
Certainly we partner really on a daily basis with all of the RDAs.  And I think that partnership 
over the past four years has become both much stronger, and much more effective.  So I think 
this method of contracting and developing that relationship has been very beneficial. 
 
In the budget that was recently approved during this past legislative session, and in each of the 
sessions 2011 and 2013, there has been a line item for regional development authority funding 
that goes through this contracting process.  That funding level was unchanged from 2013 to 
2015, and rather than requiring the Regional Development Authorities to go back through an 
RFP process, respond to that RFP, and end up frankly, in the same funding levels that we 
currently have, we felt that it was a more streamlined approach and effective use of time to 
simply extend the current contracts that we have with each of those nine Regional Development 
Authorities. 
 
So today, we are requesting an extension of those contracts for two years with the exact same 
funding, other than in two instances.  And those two instances involve the Lander County Effort 
shifting from the Great Basin Regional Development Authority, to the Northeastern Nevada 
Regional Development Authority, which is really around Elko, simply because Lander feels that 
the efforts that they're working on are more aligned with that regional development authority, and 
they -- I think all of the parties involved agreed that that shift made sense. 
 
So, the funding that basically allocated for the Lander County Effort is shifting in those contracts.  
That is the only change in the nine contracts that we have before you today. 
 
I'm happy to answer any questions you may have. 
 
Governor:  Briefly, Director Hill, is the accountability associated with those funds that are going 
to development authorities? 
 
Steven Hill:  Yeah, thank you, Governor.  And each of those contracts has 12 distinct metrics 
that we ask that they report to and we measure for really satisfactory progress.  And those 12 all 
apply in the major -- to the major Regional Development Authorities, so the Las Vegas Global 
Economic Alliance, EDAWN, really the Northern Nevada Development Authority around 
Carson, and Douglas, and Churchill, and Lyon counties.  Those 12 metrics all apply to each of 
those Regional Development Authorities. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 30 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

As the development authorities get smaller, and some of those metrics, by the way, are helping in 
our work to open Nevada globally.  So, for our export efforts, for our foreign direct investment, 
those types of things.  They apply to the technology commercialization areas, and the 
entrepreneurial areas.  So there's a broad swath of topics that are addressed by those metrics.  
And they certainly include helping companies come to Nevada or expand in Nevada, the job 
creation, average wages, the things that we report at our board level as well. 
 
But as those efforts are directed through smaller Regional Development Authorities, really, what 
we try and do is identify somewhere between three and six of those areas that we will concentrate 
on together, partner on, and not necessarily require that they would be responsive to maybe a 
global effort that doesn't necessarily apply in a smaller and less populated region in the state. 
 
We collect those metrics on a quarterly basis.  They are a criteria for continued quarterly funding.  
So we both collect those and analyze those on a regular basis.  But we are certainly happy with 
the progress and the results produced in each of the regions.  We think that those results are 
certainly more than proportional with the funding that we provide. 
 
Governor:  Thank you, Mr. Hill.  Madam Secretary of State. 
 
Secretary of State:  Thank you, Governor.  And thank you, Steve Hill.  I appreciate everything 
that you and all of the other arenas throughout the state and what you're doing for our economic 
development.  So thank you for that. 
 
This request is roughly about $6 million.  And my question would still be -- but I think you tried 
to explain that to me about -- in reference to why it's a contract and not grants, as -- because of 
the change in the 2011 legislature.  I'm curious as to in reference to your statement based on what 
the Governor asked, so you're combining efforts, such as I see in each one you say grant writing, 
account services, legal services.  Are those combined that you would be trying to find one grant 
writer, because I remember from legislative days that we have always had a terrible time trying to 
find people that know how to do grant writing. 
 
So, do you combine all of those efforts?  Do you have the same accountant firm that helps all of 
them?  Legal services, is that where you're talking combining services? 
 
Steve Hill:  Madam Secretary, for each project, and this answer applies to some of that question, 
and I'll try and answer the other separately. 
 
For each project that we work on with a regional development authority, we try and determine 
which organization is best suited to serve as the lead.  We work pretty hard not to work at cross 
purposes, or to both be working and eating through resources separately, but working on the 
same thing. 
 
So if we have a project that requires a grant to be written, for example, we will certainly work 
with more and more of the RDAs to determine who should do that, and who should take the lead 
on that. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 31 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

From a back office standpoint, and this also partially relates to your question regarding grants 
versus contracts, the -- a little more than half of the Regional Development Authorities are 
nonprofit corporations.  They not only receive state funding, they'll receive, typically, some local 
government funding as well as private funding.  So we're able to leverage the state dollars usually 
more than 1-to-1.  Certainly in the case of the big Regional Development Authorities that's the 
case. 
 
So we don't share back office help because they're really separate organizations from ours.  But 
on a project-by-project basis, we will determine which organization should take the lead role on 
that so that we're not wasting resources. 
 
From a contract versus a grant question, there's really a couple of reasons for that. The grant 
process typically allows a little less oversight and accountability than an actual contracting 
process, or working through that contract has been beneficial from defining the working 
relationship and helping to define results.  Not that you can't do that in grant process, but we 
found that it works a little better in the contracting process. 
 
The other issue that came up during the 2011 session is that providing state money directly in a 
grant to a business or -- and that includes a nonprofit corporation, is probably questionable, 
constitutionally.  Certainly we can contract with those organizations.  So we have chosen that 
path for the working relationship with the RDAs. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay.  I think, if I might, Mr. Chair.  In this, Mr. Hill, it -- each one of your 
items is exactly verbatim word-for-word, except for the amount of money for each number.  So 
that's one of the things that just -- why I asked that question, if you're combining, just because all 
of the statements for the contract description were identical, except for the amounts for the 
authority.  So thank you defining that for me. 
 
And these were all enhancements to the General Fund, is that correct? 
 
Steve Hill:  Madam Secretary, Steve Hill.  Actually they were not enhancements, these were 
amounts that were in our base budget and just continued forward. 
 
Secretary of State:  Oh, okay.  Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Governor:  Thank you.  Any other questions?  Thank you, Director Hill.  
 
Steve Hill:  Thank you, Governor. 
 
Governor:  We'll move to Contracts 44.  Madam Secretary, you'd asked for this to be held.  The 
Department of Education. 
 
Steve Canavero:  Hello, Governor, members of the Board.  Steve Canavero, Deputy 
Superintendent Nevada Department of Education. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 32 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Secretary of State:  Trying to remember that this one -- I think, if I'm not mistaken, give me just 
one second here.  But I think this one is cleared up.  I think that the agency was able to get back 
to us with the information.  So I think we're fine.  I'm fine, unless there's anything else you want 
to state on it.  But I think -- Governor, thank you for holding it back, but -- okay.  And staff's 
reminding me that we just wanted an explanation of the program, if we could.  Otis Educational 
System.  If you could just briefly do that. 
 
Steven Canavero:  Certainly.  I'd be happy to provide some background.  So Otis Education 
Systems is really one -- I think it was the primary architect of our SAI System, our Student 
Accountability Information System for the state where we received academic outcome-based data 
for our -- on our students.  We received demographic information about our students.  And 
received financial information.  And we have an annual relationship with Otis Ed.  This 
particular contract extends that for two years into the biennium.  And it's included in our budget. 
 
There's a -- I think there's four or five core areas of work related to the services that we'll receive 
from Otis going forward to support our staff and ensuring that our data system provides the level 
of accountability and reporting that we need. 
 
Secretary of State:  And this has been in the works for a long time, because when we had the 
Charter School Committee, this was one of the issues that was debated for I can't even tell you 
how many sessions before we got it.  So are we actually -- we moved forward, you're getting this, 
it's all intact going forward, working with the Department of Education, and with the 17 
counties? 
 
Steve Canavero:  Steve Canavero.  Yes.  So this is the backbone and the legislature actually 
enhanced this upcoming biennium where we are now unified on a single student information 
system.  So the charter schools, under the State Public Charter School Authority, as well as all 
the school districts, will now be on the same student information system. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay.  Thank you.  It was just a refresher for me. 
 
Steve Canavero:  No, it's-- 
 
Governor:  And I guess you come up here at the risk of more questions.  I'm going to move to 
47.  And that's the Charter School Authority with Deloit.  And it provides for forensic audits of 
two charter schools.  So, Mr. Canavero, you can be excused… 
 
Steve Canavero:  Thank you, sir.  Thank you.  I think it'd be appropriate for Patrick Gavin… 
 
Secretary of State:  Thank you for doing that.  I really appreciate it. 
 
Governor:  So, my question is this.  What are the two charter schools that are going to be 
audited? 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 33 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Unidentified Male:  Thank you for the question, Governor.  The two charter schools in question 
are Silver State Charter School here in Carson City and Quest Preparatory Academy in Las 
Vegas. 
 
Secretary of State:  What was the second one? 
 
Unidentified Male:  Quest. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Governor:  And why were those two schools selected? 
 
Unidentified Male:  We uncovered irregularities in both the financial audits of the schools, and 
discrepancies between those audits and other information which was available in our records.  In 
the case of one school, there were, among other things, information revealed, and the Board 
Minutes revealing that there were additional bank accounts which were not disclosed.  And the 
audit is unclear if this a result of a skill gap, or of something more nefarious. 
 
And then in the other case, there were a number of irregularities, including self-dealing 
transactions that we've uncovered, and based on the experience of other Charter School 
Authorities in other states, we felt it was appropriate to engage with a big-four accounting firm to 
engage in a deep forensic audit of both schools to ensure that we had full access to the facts, both 
to make accountability decisions and recommendations to our Board, and also to make 
recommendations during the biennium for potential changes to either law or regulation. 
 
Governor:  And when do you anticipate that these audits will be completed? 
 
Unidentified Male:  We anticipate they will commence within the next seven to ten business 
days.  I actually have representatives of Deloit here with me.  I met with them this morning prior 
to this meeting.  And I think that this will be probably a 45- to 60-day at maximum process.  But 
I -- based on the scope of work that has been discussed with Deloit up until this time. 
 
Governor:  Well, the reason I ask that is I'm sure you're hopeful, as I am, that this will be 
completed before school starts again in the fall. 
 
Unidentified Male:  Thank you for the comment, Governor.  I would submit this is an area 
where our need to be safe -- to safeguard public funds as an agency in some ways conflicts with 
our need to safeguard public funds for our -- of our schools.  This is a process that I began in 
discussions with Director Teska of the Budget Office back in the October/November time period.  
It's taken a significant amount of time both to identify an appropriate auditor that was able to 
work through our process, and also to ensure that we were following all of the different 
administrative processes. 
 
Certainly this does not constitute an emergency under statute, and could not be -- and neither the 
IFC nor the BOE reviews could be waived.  And this is an area where we certainly anticipate in 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 34 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

the future as we build more capacity and more expertise in this area, we'll be able to move more 
expeditiously. 
 
I don't think any of us are thrilled with the timeline that we're on at this time, to be candid with 
you, sir. 
 
Governor:  Other questions from Board members?  I'd like an update on that as that… 
 
Unidentified Male: Absolutely, sir. 
 
Governor:  …proceeds (inaudible) something.  All right.  Thank you.  Next is Contract 69, 
Department of Health and Human Services, Child and Family Services, and the Lincoln County 
School District.  Do we have someone here from BHHS? 
 
Unidentified Female:  In Las Vegas. 
 
Governor:  Oh, in Las Vegas.  I apologize.  All right. 
 
David Anderson:  Sorry, I was on mute.  Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  
David Anderson.  I'm the ASO over at DCFS Juvenile Justice Budget Accounts.  This contract, 
very briefly, has been in effect since the early '90s.  It basically is used to operate the educational 
portion of the high school operated at the Caliente Youth Center.  The terms themselves have not 
changed since its inception.  It's at the same rates, following the same scope of work, with small 
nuance differences, of course, since its inception. 
 
This request is basically to, in a sense, renew that contract for another four years.  As far as 
questions, I'm open and available to answer any questions that you may have. 
 
Governor:  Madam Secretary, you'd asked to be -- this to be held? 
 
Secretary of State:  Yes.  Was there -- thank you, Governor.  I appreciate it.  Was the old inner 
local agreement, when did that expire? 
 
David Anderson:  It's actually going to expire at the end of this fiscal year. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay.  And where did the fee or tax come from for this?  Is it from the 
property? 
 
David Anderson:  For the most part, everything is General Funds.  It's set up on a quarterly 
basis.  80,440 per quarter, when you multiply it out, times the four-year time span, it comes out 
to the 1.2 million, which is directly related to General Funds. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay.  So we're getting it in time so there's no lapse with the agreement that 
was in place. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 35 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

David Anderson:  Correct. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Governor:  Do you get money from the DSA for that? 
 
David Anderson:  No.  Not to my knowledge. 
 
Governor:  So that's all General Fund money. 
 
Secretary of State:  Yeah. 
 
David Anderson:  Yes. 
 
Secretary of State:  I thought there'd be some DSA in there, as well. 
 
Governor:  Sorry to interrupt, Madam Secretary. 
 
Secretary of State:  No, no, no.  That's fine.  No, you ask the questions, so that's -- so, thank 
you.  No, thank you, Governor. 
 
Governor:  Any other questions?  Thank you, sir. 
 
David Anderson:  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  I have next Contract 76, Gaming Control Board, with Cyber Inc. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  Good morning members of the Board.  I'm Brian Duffrin with the Gaming 
Control Board.  I'm the Chief of Administration Division.  And I have two other people here with 
me.  Would you like to introduce yourselves? 
 
Andrew Tucker:  Sure.  Andrew Tucker.  I'm the IT Manager for Gaming. 
 
Jackie Kingsland:  Jackie Kingsland, Contracts Administrator. 
 
Governor:  Okay.  Madam Secretary? 
 
Secretary of State:  Thank you, Governor.  Yeah, I just wanted a brief explanation because I 
know we went from 1.9 million to 5.3 million, so I just wondered if you could kind of give us a 
little overview to all of this. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  Sure. 
 
Secretary of State:  Thank you, Governor. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 36 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Brian Duffrin:  So, this started many, many years ago.  The attempt to get funding for our Cobal 
system. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  We finally got success in the last session, and we were awarded $2 million to 
get this program started.  And basically what this is is migrate off our Cobal System into a more 
modern system. 
 
Governor:  How old is Cobal? 
 
Secretary of State:  Oh, that name is so old. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  We actually -- I started with the Board in 1989 and this particular program we 
started in 1982.  So you can imagine… 
 
Governor:  So that's as primitive as it gets, isn't it? 
 
Brian Duffrin:  It is.  And, thankfully the legislature this last session appropriated approximately 
$4 million so that we can continue the project that we've already started.  And basically what it is, 
is we have a lot of our licensee information -- actually all of our licensee information, all of our 
disciplinary history, all of the disciplinary actions, everybody that's been licensed, everybody 
that's been denied a license, we have all of our tax information in this system. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  It's just a tremendous amount of information that we're trying to get to a, once 
again, a more modern system, which we're using Microsoft.net.  And we currently have 
approximately nine cyber contracted employees that work with this today.  And we've been 
revolving those in and out as the project -- as needed for the project.  And, we've made some 
progress, we have a lot of progress to go.  We have many, many records that need to be 
converted, and then we have over 1,000 programs that we've had.  When the Governor was the 
Chairman of the Nevada Gaming Commission, it's the same stuff that we have -- that you used 
back then. 
 
Governor:  That was a long time ago. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  So in a nutshell, we're just continuing our program with this particular vendor 
who we're pleased with up to this point. 
 
Secretary of State:  And you had mentioned the 2 million, that's the General Fund you're 
referencing? 
 
Brian Duffrin:  That's correct.  So the… 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 37 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  …2 million was a one-shot bill that we got last session, and then this… 
 
Secretary of State:  This enhanced -- this continues. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  Yes. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay.  And I really appreciate you updating me, and thanks for your 
indulgence, Governor, so I can get up to speed and ask those questions.  Thank you so much for 
what you're doing.  I'm looking forward to seeing how this advances, because I know that there's 
many other entities in the state are looking to also enhance and improve what we're doing for the 
recordkeeping. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  Absolutely.  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  No, and this important, not from a modernization standpoint, but a preservation 
standpoint.  And this is very sensitive information.  It's very important information that is critical 
to the mission of the Gaming Control Board, and operating under 1982 technology, I just… 
 
Secretary of State:  Unbelievable. 
 
Governor:  Yeah, we can't do it.  And so, I'm glad that you guys are moving through this so that 
I think -- I don't want to imply that's there any security issues, but this will enhance that issue as 
well. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  You bring up two really good points.  Security is of utmost concern to us.  And 
we have -- we're not concerned about that with the new system, but we are with current system.  
But we, you know, we have many safeguards for the old system.  But once again, it's old.  The 
other issue is when we hire new employees, and even our current staff, keyboards that we have 
actually for the commands on how to run some of these programs, don't even exist.  So we have 
to actually train and retrain our staff.  And it's somewhat embarrassing.  But anyway, the… 
 
Governor:  Are there any people around who could work on that? 
 
Secretary of State:  Yes. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  I think the three of us are probably the last.  
 
Governor: No, I was in my first year of college when you were working on this system.  Wow. 
 
Secretary of State:  If I may.  One of the committees I chair is of course the records.  And that's 
why I ask, because we would really like to work in collaboration, because we're looking at all of 
the different agencies, and also the offices within the state, trying to make sure that we're 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 38 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

archiving, that we're doing all the things.  So your expertise would be greatly appreciated in 
working with what we're doing. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  Absolutely.  We're happy to spend time with your staff and have, and will 
continue to do so in regard. 
 
Secretary of State:  Thank you very much.  And thank you for allowing me to have that. 
 
Governor:  Last question.  Is this all you'll need to complete the project? 
 
Brian Duffrin:  I wish.  I know there's been another question from Madam Secretary regarding 
grants.  If you guys know of any grant money out there that we could use.  But no, I think the 
initial plan, when we looked at this and the volume of activity and volume of records that we had 
to migrate, was a 10-year project.  And I don't see that lessening at this point.  So we're once 
again, we're into our second biennium.  I expect there'll be a couple more bienniums.  But we are 
learning as we go, and we're trying to actually migrate less and less information and maybe push 
it off into a different format so we don't have to use General Fund monies to do that.  So we're 
constantly looking at that and trying to move forward. 
 
But the answer to your question is no, it'll probably expand out to 10 years total.  So another 
couple bienniums, I believe, to get this to where we want to go. 
 
Governor:  But as you process contemporary information, that is going into a modern… 
 
Brian Duffrin:  Yes. 
 
Governor:  …technology system. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  Correct.  Excellent question.  So, some of the information we have going into 
the new programs that we've developed, unfortunately it's a very small percentage.  So as we 
continue to roll out new programs and roll out new technologies, the answer is yeah, eventually 
we're going to have to scrap this altogether.  But our Cobal's will be running that 10-year period 
as a backup.  But the idea is just eventually get rid of that altogether. 
 
Governor:  But my point being that you won't have to migrate information if you're putting it -- 
what the Commission… 
 
Brian Duffrin:  That's correct. 
 
Governor:  …and the Board are doing now into whatever… 
 
Brian Duffrin:  That's correct. 
 
Governor:  …the new system is.  Yeah. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 39 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Brian Duffrin:  What we've done is we actually have a snap shot, so there's a picture file of the 
information in some of the areas.  So if somebody needs to go back historically and look at that, 
they can click on a tab and there's -- up comes a picture of the information.  So we're not actually 
migrating that per se.  We're not actually re-keying it in or any of that.  That would take more 
than 10 years to do that.  So, yeah, so we're not -- once again, we're evaluating that process and 
trying not to migrate things that are not necessary to migrate. 
 
Governor:  Okay.  Anything else? 
 
Secretary of State:  No.  I really appreciate it.  Thank you very much. 
 
Brian Duffrin:  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  Thank you very much. 
 
Secretary of State:  The unfortunate thing though (inaudible) any of this?  It's like that new car 
you drive off the lot, there's new technology that comes right behind it.  And that's what is 
happening with us, as well. 
 
Governor:  All right, the last two items that I have are 102 and 103 with regard to the Public 
Employee's Benefit Program. 
 
Unidentified Female:  Good morning, Governor. 
 
Governor:  Good morning.  And I was asking how you were doing last meeting.  I'm very happy 
to see you up and doing well. 
 
Unidentified Female:  Thank you.  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  So I had asked for these two items to be held just for an explanation of what their 
purpose is, and then just essentially how else everything is going within the program. 
 
Roger Rahming:  My name is Roger Rahming.  I'm the Operations Officer.  And I'll talk about 
the first item and it's a new contract with Extend Health.  So in 2011, we moved the Medicare 
eligible retirees with ANB to an exchange.  So private market exchange.  Extend Health was the 
contractor.  They did both the HRA administration and the enrollment.  That contract came due -- 
or will come due June 30.  We went out to bid.  We had three bidders.  We had Aon Hewitt, 
Mercer, and again, Extend Health Towers Watson. 
 
We gave the contract back to Towers for a five-year term.  It's got a max of $2,023,000.  And the 
reason we did so is they were actually the -- they're farther along in servicing state clients.  
They've been with us for five years.  They really know our business.  So it made sense to mitigate 
disruption to go back to them.  They also lowered their HRA administration from $3.50 to $2.75.  
So that's what this contract is.  It's a new contract for five years with a max of a little over $2 
million. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 40 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 
Governor:  And what does mean to the clients or the beneficiaries that will be subject to this? 
 
Roger Rahming:  It means that it's a continuation of what they have currently.  This is the group 
that administers their HRA.  So if we were to go to a different vendor, you had a potential that 
this group that we transitioned in would remain here, and those new ones would have to go 
somewhere else.  So of course, creating substantial confusion.  Who do you call?  Who really is 
going to service your account? 
 
So at a certain point, let's say I was to move to a different type of insurance, then I would end up 
going to the new carrier.  Again, there would be very much, we felt, considerable disruption.  
And this vendor has been a very good partner with us.  We work diligently on some of the 
contract language.  At the end talk about how we would transition, if in fact that would happen in 
five years.  And to better manage the program. 
 
So in 2011, this was very, very new for states.  At this point, we have five years of experience.  
Again, we took that experience and we put this in the contract language, and we believe it's a 
good contract.  Again, price points are very solid.  And they are a very good partner with us. 
 
Governor:  All right.  Let's move to the Hometown Health Provider Contract. 
 
Donna Lopez:  Okay, Governor.  Thank you very much.  And Board members.  For the record, 
my name is Donna Lopez.  And I'm the Quality Control Officer with Public Employees Benefits 
Program.  And with me today is Dr. Ash-Jackson.  And Dr. Rosen down there at the end.  And all 
three of us are here to answer any question the Board may have about this contract. 
 
At this point, how would you like me to proceed? 
 
Governor:  Just tell -- if you would tell us what the contract's about and what it does. 
 
Donna Lopez:  What this contract does is right -- it's going to fill a void that's going to be there 
when our current contract with U.S. Preventive Medicine terminates next week on June 13.  And 
just for historical purposes, you may remember that the U.S. Preventive Medicine contract had -- 
it had two components. 
 
It had a component for the wellness program, which is the one that most people remember.  And 
the other component was a diabetes care management program, so -- or a diabetes disease 
management program.  So, Hometown Health has basically stepped up to the plate, and they are 
going to assume that responsibility, and take over those patients, and hopefully we will get more 
diabetes patients enrolled in this program, because it is structured significantly different than the 
program that U.S. Preventive Medicine managed. 
 
And so at that time, if the doctors have anything else that they'd like to add. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 41 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  Okay.  Thank you.  Um, we've been working with the Public 
Employee's Benefits Program I think on the HMO since 2006.  Before then.  A long time.  Yeah.  
And on PTOs since prior to that.  And so we've held the utilization management contract for the 
last two years.  And have four more years to go. 
 
So, we're pretty familiar with your population for the -- both the fully insured in Northern Nevada 
and the self-insured in Southern Nevada.  We manage 36,000 lives for you, and we think you 
should have about 3,500 diabetics.  And U.S. Preventative basically had 750 people engaged in 
the diabetes program that was purely a call-out program.  And, with the cost of diabetes, 
especially those renal failure patients, having the potential in excess of $300,000 a year, we 
believe that having a program that engages the patient and the physician is much more realistic in 
terms of trying to manage their disease process. 
 
For about 11 years, in Reno, we've had a program called Quality Is Premium with the physicians 
where we reward them for improved blood sugars, getting their diabetes A1Cs, and LDLs, 
getting the eye exams, and the urinary tract -- their urine microalbuminuria measured to try to 
keep them from getting renal failure. 
 
And we on our insured book have given up -- given out just last year about $700,000 because 
physicians respond to the performance.  So… 
 
Governor:  So you're rewarding the… 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  The doctors. 
 
Governor:  …physicians. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  For getting the patients in control.  And we've seen that substantially 
improve our numbers, and it's given us five stars on our senior product in terms of diabetic 
control.  So, we believe that mixing that with the program where we have a consultative way 
where we look at the pharmacy profiles for the patient, reach out to the patient, get them engaged 
with local resources in their marketplace, and then deal with the decisions, will improve the 
outcomes for the patients.  And that's one of the reasons why we're doing a more comprehensive 
program. 
 
And Dr. Rosen was our star in our Quality is Premium program.  So of course, I yanked him out 
of practice and put him in as Medical Director for us.  So he'll be primarily responsible for all the 
physician interaction and the analysis of the medication, along with our pharmacy team. 
 
Governor:  So you said you -- right now there are 850 identified diabetes patients and it could 
be, at least based on your metrics, 3,500? 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Johnson:  Correct. 
 
Governor:  How will you identify those individuals that may be… 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 42 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 
Dr. Linda Ash-Johnson:  So we know currently today, statistically we think it's about 3,500.  
Currently today, based on the claims data that we get from Health Scope, who is the third party 
administrator, we know that they have identified 2,200 diabetics. 
 
Governor:  Wow. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Johnson:  So, the fact that there was only a 33% engagement rate was of some 
concern.  We believe that year -- that we will probably get a minimum of 50% engagement just 
because the providers are going to respond to us because in the north, because they've already 
been rewarded.  But this is available for every member, regardless of where they are.  And we 
have a number of members in the rurals, and we have the ability to use even just in the north, 
Telemedicine with endocrinologists that are available and renowned to be able to reach out to 
them as well, to try to get their patients in control.  And we've had some substantial successes in 
our senior product with Telemedicine and getting patients treated and actually moving and 
managed. 
 
So we're pretty encouraged by having the ability to bring a broader scope of services to this 
population.  And try to improve their health and save the state some money at the same time. 
 
Governor:  All right.  You took the words right out of my mouth.  That's extraordinary, because 
it's a win/win/win.  I mean, first and foremost better care and better treatment for those patients.  
But then that saves a substantial amount of money, which is good for the program so that we can 
reinvest that for employees or reduce premiums, those types of things. 
 
Donna Lopez:  If I may, Governor. 
 
Governor:  Yeah. 
 
Donna Lopez:  I would also like to add that is -- it is our intent to identify individuals who are 
pre-diabetic also.  And get those individuals engaged in the program, too.  And Dr. Ash-Jackson 
had also mentioned the reward to the physicians.  There is also an incentive to the participants 
who engage in this program in the benefits that they receive. 
 
So, for example, they get two -- those individuals get two office -- physician office visits a year 
with no co-insurance, no deductible, no co-pay.  And they also get two A1C testing, no 
deductible, no co-insurance, no -- whatever I just said.  And they also get co-payments for their 
diabetic-related medications, and not subject to the high deductible. 
 
Governor:  So what is that in real dollars do you estimate? 
 
Donna Lopez:  Did not have that.  I think it's about -- Jim might know this better than me right 
now.  It's about $2 million a year that we… 
 
Governor:  No, I mean, but for that individual. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 43 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 
Donna Lopez:  Oh, for the individual. 
 
Unidentified Male:  It's about $2,000 per individual, the value of that that the benefit… 
 
Governor:  So that's $2,000 in that patient's pocket. 
 
Donna Lopez:  Yes. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  But… 
 
Governor:  And better care. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  But if you look at it from the perspective what some of the newer 
diabetic meds that the patients have been moved to these days, particularly to avoid insulin, 
looking at average monthly costs of $350.  So the hurdle to get patients to actually getting control 
is substantial, unless they have this prescription.  So, we're really encouraged by the fact that 
benefit's been in place for a long time.  And we believe that engaging the physicians and literally 
Dr. Rosen's calling them up and saying, hey, you're not doing a good job here. We're not only 
we're going to pay you for it, but can we get you to be more engaged and work with your patient? 
 
Governor:  That's great. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  I think we have an opportunity that we can really improve some care. 
 
Governor:  Madam Secretary? 
 
Secretary of State:  Thank you.  First of all, if I could have your first name.  I don't know if we 
got it. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  Linda. 
 
Secretary of State:  Linda?  Okay.  And you are with? 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  I am the Chief Medical Officer of Hometown Health Plan. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  Providers, I believe we're the only Nevada… 
 
Secretary of State:  Thank you. I missed that, so I apologize. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  …company.  That's my commercial. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 44 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Secretary of State:  Okay.  Well, thank you for that.  And then, so this is for just for PIP, 
anybody who's involved in PIP.  And how did they -- how are they finding out about it?  Is this 
what you're doing?  You're putting something into paychecks, emails, how are… 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  It's specifically in the plan document. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  There's an entire (inaudible) that we've worked with staff on. 
 
Donna Lopez:  We already know who those patients are.  As Dr. AJ said, that they receive the 
claims information from Health Scope Benefit, who's our third-party claims administrator.  So 
they will get that information along with the list of patients who are currently participating with 
U.S. Preventive Medicine.  We will start our communication campaign upon… 
 
Secretary of State:  So if you were… 
 
Donna Lopez:  …Examiner's approval. 
 
Secretary of State:  So if you see something from a physician or a pharmacist that indicates 
somebody's getting supplies as being a diabetic, that triggers for you, and then you make the 
contact to the person that’s… 
 
Donna Lopez:  Correct. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  We start the contact and then we get the report on who the treating 
physician is.  And then we initiate that contact with them. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay.  And that doesn't do anything with the patient/client… 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  No.  We do that… 
 
Secretary of State:  …privilege. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  …patient -- we do the patient, but we also do the physician. 
(Inaudible) outreach. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay.  And I know that the supplies are part of it, but also any programs to 
help these individuals with eating habits, exercise, all of those are extremely important.  And that 
is something that you're working with as well. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Johnson:  Well, we would have this sort of program that we would do an 
outreach on in terms of web-based programs, et cetera.  But one of the things that I think was 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 45 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

missing before is that we hadn't fully -- I don't believe local resources and the market had been 
engaged.  So for instance, all the hospitals in Vegas had diabetes management programs.  We 
have programs up here.  Think we would encourage patients and work with those vendors… 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Johnson:  …to get those people engaged.  So they have that ability to have face-
to-face contact, as well. 
 
Secretary of State:  And one other question, if I might, Governor.  Do you go to outreach 
programs where there's senior events or where there's, I mean, any population, any type of a 
community event, you'd be able to go and this is something you'd be able to talk about or? 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  Well, we certainly could.  We have a wellness division that reports… 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay. 
 
Dr. Linda Ash-Jackson:  …organization that does all of our flu outreach, and we do health 
fairs.  We've done -- I think we've done the Silver (inaudible) very active in senior fest, all sort of 
things like that. 
 
Secretary of State:  Right.  Thank you, Governor.  Thank you very much. 
 
Governor:  Thank you.  Any other questions?  Thank you very much.  Glad you're well 
(inaudible). 
 
Donna Lopez:  Thank you. 
 
Governor:  Are there any other questions with regard to Agenda Item No. 9?  If there are none… 
 
Attorney General:  I did have, Governor.  For Contracts 32-40, the (inaudible) contracts, I don't 
believe that there's an actual contact conflict for me to vote on them, but concerned of a 
perceived conflict, as we are in constitutional litigation on these.  So I will abstain from those 
contracts. 
 
Governor:  All right, then.  So I'll start this way.  I'll accept a motion to approve Contracts 1-31, 
and also incorporate by reference the Attorney General's disclosure on Contract No. 19.  And I'll 
accept a motion to approve those contracts. 
 
Attorney General:  Move to approve. 
 
Secretary of State:  Second. 
 
Governor:  Oh, good point.  I even had a note there.   
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 46 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Secretary of State:  With the exception of 9. 
 
Governor:  With the -- exclude -- with the exception of Contract No. 9.  So, 1-8, 10-31. 
 
Secretary of State:  I second the motion. 
 
Governor:  All right.  So, Attorney General's move for approval, the Secretary has second.  Any 
questions on the motion?  All in favor, say aye. 
 
Secretary of State:  Aye. 
 
Attorney General:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Aye.  That motion passes 3-0.  I'll now accept a motion to approve Contracts 32-100 
-- or I'll do it this way.  I'll do 32-40. 
 
Secretary of State:  Okay.  I move to approve. 
 
Governor:  I will second the motion for approval.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor, 
say aye. 
 
Secretary of State:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Aye.  That motion passes 2-0.  Would you please mark the Attorney General as 
having abstained from the vote on Contracts 32-40.  I'll now accept a motion for approval for 
Contracts 41-103. 
 
Secretary of State:  So moved. 
 
Governor:  Okay.  Secretary has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 
 
Attorney General:  I second. 
 
Governor:  Attorney General has seconded the motion.  All in favor, say aye. 
 
Secretary of State: Aye. 
 
Attorney General:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Aye.  That motion passes 3-0. 
 

*10. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS 
 

Fourteen independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 47 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 
Comments: 
 
Governor:  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 10, Master Service Agreements.  Mr. Wells. 
 
Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  There are 14 Master Service Agreements in Exhibit 3 for 
approval by the Board.  There has been requests for additional information on the following: No. 
4, 9, and 11, relate to occupational health services to state employees.  And No. 10 and 13 which 
relate to laboratory testing.  There are purchasing representatives here to discuss the (inaudible). 
 
Governor:  Did I -- I'm okay on those contracts.  So, actually don't.  So if there are no further 
questions, the Chair will accept a motion to approve Master Service Agreements 1-14. 
 
Attorney General:  I move to approve. 
 
Secretary of State:  Second. 
 
Governor:  Attorney General has moved for approval.  The Secretary of State has seconded the 
motion.  Any questions or discussion? 
 
Secretary of State:  Nope. 
 
Governor:  All in favor, say aye. 
 
Secretary of State:  Aye. 
 
Attorney General:  Aye. 
 
Governor:  Aye.  That motion passes 3-0. 
 

11. CONTRACTS APPROVED BY THE CLERK OF THE BOARD – 
INFORMATION ITEM 
 
Pursuant to AB 41 of the 2013 Legislative Session, the Clerk of the Board may approve all 
contract transactions for amounts less than $50,000. Per direction from the August 13, 2013 
meeting of the Board of Examiners, the Board wished to receive an informational item listing all 
approvals applicable to the new threshold ($10,000 - $49,999). Attached is a list of all applicable 
approvals for contracts and amendments approved from April 21, 2015 through May 15, 2015. 
 
Thirty-Seven independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review. 
 
Comments: 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 48 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Governor:  We'll move to Agenda Item No. 11, which is an information item.  Those contracts 
approved by Clerk of the Board, Mr. Wells.  Any comments?  
 
Clerk:  There were 37 contracts under that threshold between April 21 of 2015 and May 15 of 
2015.  And then we did not have additional requests for comment on these contracts, Governor. 
 
Governor:  Any questions from Board members? 
 

 12. BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Comments: 
 
Governor:  Then we'll move to Agenda Item No. 12, which is Board Member Comments.  Any 
Board member comments? 
 
Secretary of State:  I just wanted to thank you for allowing me to ask some of the questions and 
get some more information on these items.  So, thank you very much. 
 
Governor:  You're very welcome.  Thank you.  Public comment.  Is there any member of the 
public here in Carson City that would like to provide comment to the Board?  Is there anyone 
present in Las Vegas that would like to provide public comment to the Board?  I see a wave of 
no. 
 

*13. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
Motion By: Secretary of State Seconded By: Attorney General Vote: 3-0 
Comments: 
 
Governor:  So we'll move on to Agenda Item 13, adjournment.  Is there a motion for 
adjournment? 
 
Secretary of State:  Yes.  Adjourn. 
 
Governor:  The Secretary has moved for adjournment.  Is there a second? 
 
Attorney General:  I second. 
 
Governor:  Attorney General has seconded the motion.  All in favor, say aye. 
 
Secretary of State:  Aye. 
 
Attorney General:  Aye. 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 49 
June 9, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0.  This meeting's adjourned.  Thank you ladies and 
gentlemen. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
JAMES R. WELLS, CLERK 
 
APPROVED: 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
GOVERNOR BRIAN SANDOVAL, CHAIRMAN 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTORNEY GENERAL ADAM PAUL LAXALT 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
SECRETARY OF STATE BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























































































































































BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15155 Amendment

Number:
5

Legal Entity
Name:

Morgan Lewis & Bockius

Agency Name: ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE Contractor Name: Morgan Lewis & Bockius
Agency Code: 030 Address: One Market Street
Appropriation Unit: All Budget Accounts - Category 04 Spear Street Tower
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip San Francisco, CA 94105

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Tom Gede 4154421240
Vendor No.: t81027237
NV Business ID: nv20151317752

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Statutory Contingency Fund

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 10/09/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

12/31/2015

Contract term: 2 years and 83 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Outside Counsel

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the fifth amendment to the original contract, which provides ongoing outside legal services pursuant to NRS
41.03435 in the defense of a lawsuit filed against the State of Nevada by the City and County of San Francisco. This
amendment increases the maximum amount from $1,913,000 to $2,113,000 to adequately fund the contract for the
remainder of the contract period.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $49,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $1,864,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $200,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $2,113,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The State of Nevada, Department of Health and Human Services was named in a lawsuit filed by the City and County of San
Francisco.  Pursuant to NRS 41.03435, which states in part: the Office of the Attorney General may employ special counsel
subject to the approval of the State Board of Examiners, if the Attorney General determines at any time prior to trial that it is
impracticable, uneconomical or could constitute a conflict of interest for the legal service to be rendered by the Attorney
General or a deputy attorney general.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Attorney General has decided that it was impracticable and uneconomical to have State of Nevada employees defend
the State in this lawsuit.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15155 1



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to NAC 333.150, a contract for professional services, including the services of an attorney, do not require a
solicitation.

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLP

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mradu 06/04/2015 15:27:42 PM
Division Approval chowle 06/05/2015 09:07:18 AM
Department Approval chowle 06/05/2015 09:07:27 AM
Contract Manager Approval lramire7 06/05/2015 13:45:42 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 06/17/2015 08:41:20 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 06/18/2015 15:33:25 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15155 1



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16836

Legal Entity
Name:

AMPLIFY RELATIONS

Agency Name: TREASURER - COLLEGE SAVINGS
TRUST

Contractor Name: AMPLIFY RELATIONS

Agency Code: 051 Address: 140 WASHINGTON ST
Appropriation Unit: 1092-04 STE 150
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89503-0618

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: BRYAN BEDERA 775/453-0618
Vendor No.: PUR0005633
NV Business ID: NV20131451918

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % ENDOWMENT TRUST ACCOUNT

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 07/06/2016
Contract term: 1 year and 6 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Promotion Consultant

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide public relations and promotion services; TV and radio production and media
placement; and printing, collateral, and mailing services for the Nevada College Savings Plans.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $600,000.00
Other basis for payment: Hourly rates from $150 to $550 per hour and flat fees ranging from $1,000 to $2,000.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
NRS 353B.370 authorizes the College Savings Board to contract with qualified entities for the day-to-day operations of the
Nevada College Savings Program as the program administrator for the management of the marketing of the program(s).

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State Treasurer's Office staff is seeking the services of a professional marketing firm to review and analyze current
marketing strategies, and to suggest new outreach efforts for the Nevada College Savings Plans program and the Nevada
Prepaid Tuition program which is outside the scope of expertise of staff members.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16836 2



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #2015-CSB-001 which was done by the Treasurer's Office, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected
vendor was the highest scoring proposer as determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 05/01/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 03/01/2016

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval shanshew 06/15/2015 12:53:28 PM
Division Approval thagan 06/15/2015 14:09:35 PM
Department Approval thagan 06/15/2015 14:09:37 PM
Contract Manager Approval shanshew 06/15/2015 14:18:19 PM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 06/18/2015 11:15:11 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/18/2015 11:15:15 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16836 2



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16837

Legal Entity
Name:

THE ABBI AGENCY

Agency Name: TREASURER - COLLEGE SAVINGS
TRUST

Contractor Name: THE ABBI AGENCY

Agency Code: 051 Address: 275 HILL STREET
Appropriation Unit: 1092-04 STE 250
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89501

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: ABBI WHITAKER 775.722.2254
Vendor No.: T27037235
NV Business ID: NV20081200897

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % ENDOWMENT TRUST ACCOUNT

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 07/06/2016
Contract term: 1 year and 6 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Promotion Consultant

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide social media messaging and digital marketing for the Nevada College Savings
Plans.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $200,000.00
Other basis for payment: Hourly rates from $100 to $150 per hour and monthly rate not to exceed $7,200.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
NRS 353B.370 authorizes the College Savings Board to contract with qualified entities for the day-to-day operations of the
Nevada College Savings Program as the program administrator for the management of the marketing of the program(s).

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State Treasurer's Office staff is seeking the services of a professional marketing firm to review and analyze current
marketing strategies, and to suggest new outreach efforts for the Nevada College Savings Plans program and the Nevada
Prepaid Tuition Program.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16837 3



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #2015-CSB-001 prepared by the Treasurer's Office, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor
was the highest scoring proposer as determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 05/01/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 03/01/2016

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval shanshew 06/15/2015 12:51:19 PM
Division Approval thagan 06/15/2015 14:09:18 PM
Department Approval thagan 06/15/2015 14:09:20 PM
Contract Manager Approval shanshew 06/15/2015 14:17:13 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sbarkdul 06/16/2015 07:09:08 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/18/2015 11:17:13 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16837 3



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16844

Legal Entity
Name:

Clifton Larson Allen, LLP

Agency Name: CONTROLLER'S OFFICE Contractor Name: Clifton Larson Allen, LLP
Agency Code: 060 Address: 1966 Greenspring Drive
Appropriation Unit: 1130-04 Suite 300
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Timonium, MD 21093

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Thomas Rey 410-308-8029
Vendor No.: T29029873A
NV Business ID: NV20121001313

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/15/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 12/31/2015
Contract term: 169 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: GASB68 Audit of PERS

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide for the audit of the Public Employees Retirement System's financial statements to
comply with the requirements of the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB 68) rules.  Contractor will
audit the Schedules of Employer Allocations and Pension Amounts by Employer and the related notes to both
schedules, prepared to comply with the requirements of GASB 68.  The contractor shall conduct expanded
employer census data testing as part of its audit.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $50,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $50,000.00 per Contract Period

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 68, issued June, 2012, established standard requirements for
accounting and financial reporting for pensions that are provided to the employees of state and local governmental
employers through pension plans, effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Auditing for public employee pension plans should be conducted by an outside, neutral auditor to prevent the appearance of
conflict of interest.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16844 4



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor has the very specialized knowledge and experience required for auditing government employee pension and
related funds.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Nevada Public Employees Retirement System and the Nevada Deferred Compensation Program.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLP

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jsmack 06/09/2015 14:13:15 PM
Division Approval jsmack 06/09/2015 14:13:18 PM
Department Approval jsmack 06/09/2015 14:13:21 PM
Contract Manager Approval hbill1 06/09/2015 14:18:12 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/15/2015 08:52:02 AM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 09:00:03 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16844 4



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16727

Legal Entity
Name:

AERIS ENTERPRISES, INC.

Agency Name: ADMIN - DIVISION OF HUMAN
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Contractor Name: AERIS ENTERPRISES, INC.

Agency Code: 070 Address: 59 DAMONTE RANCH PARKWAY
#B292

Appropriation Unit: 1363-26
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89521

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: TERRY J GRAHAM 775/851-3262
Vendor No.: T81082046A
NV Business ID: NV20011516008

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Assessments
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: ASD #1901894

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: NEATS Phase III cont

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide programming and analysis support for developing new features to the Nevada
Employee Action and Timekeeping System.  The deliverables for this effort include online employee service jackets,
payroll reports, and a payroll projection module.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $360,500.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $175.00 per hour

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Continued system enhancements to HR software applications such as NEATS are needed to complete the vision of having
paperless HR processes and a one-stop shop for online human resources.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This vendor developed the original applications and has knowledge of the source code, environment, architecture and state
processes.  This support requires technical and functional knowledge, understanding, and the ability to perform specific
programming on source code that was developed by the vendor.  This vendor has a unique knowledge of the applications,
environment, architecture and state processes.  They have a proven ability to deliver effective and efficient solutions and
have worked within the Executive Branch and Legislative Branch developing related applications.  Sufficient resources do not
exist within the state to train a new vendor ad to provide the support needed.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16727 5



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Sole Source Contract (As Approved by Chief of Purchasing)
        Approval #: 150503
        Approval Date: 05/11/2015
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor developed the applications and has knowledge of the source code, environment, architecture and state
processes.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Budget Office and Human Resources 2013-2015

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 05/13/2015 08:22:19 AM
Division Approval csweeney 05/13/2015 08:22:23 AM
Department Approval csweeney 05/13/2015 08:22:26 AM
Contract Manager Approval csweeney 05/13/2015 15:11:31 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sewart 05/19/2015 17:35:27 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/15/2015 10:14:57 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16727 5



5



5



5



5



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14828 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

GLOISTEIN, LAWRENCE G. DBA
TIMBERLINE ELECTRIC

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: GLOISTEIN, LAWRENCE G. DBA
TIMBERLINE ELECTRIC

Agency Code: 082 Address: PO BOX 2511
Appropriation Unit: 1349-12
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip MINDEN, NV 89423

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/782-8081
Vendor No.: T80909459
NV Business ID: NV20111013645

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Building Rent
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 08/20/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2017

Contract term: 3 years and 315 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Electrical Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing electrical services on an as needed
basis to various state buildings in Northern Nevada. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $45,000
to $65,000 due to continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $45,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $20,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $65,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State buildings require electrical services in order to maintain safety and use of the facilities.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of manpower.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14828 6



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This is one of multiple contractors on file for electrical services, per SAM 0338.0, each contractor will be contacted to submit
bids of available projects.
d. Last bid date: 07/01/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 07/01/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
2005-2013, Buildings and Grounds, Service Satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Sole Proprietor

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 06/09/2015 09:06:13 AM
Division Approval csweeney 06/09/2015 09:06:16 AM
Department Approval csweeney 06/09/2015 09:06:20 AM
Contract Manager Approval csweeney 06/09/2015 09:06:24 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 06/17/2015 18:11:27 PM
BOE Agenda Approval jburry 06/19/2015 11:40:24 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14828 6



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15121 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

HERSHENOW & KLIPPENSTEIN

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: HERSHENOW & KLIPPENSTEIN

Agency Code: 082 Address: ARCHITECTS INC
Appropriation Unit: 1577-21 5485 RENO CORPORATE DR STE 100
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89511-2262

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/332-6640
Vendor No.: T80984709
NV Business ID: NV19941047730

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Reallocated Bonds Transferred from

Treasurer
Agency Reference #: 88242

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 12/03/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2017

Contract term: 3 years and 209 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Arch/Eng Serv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which provides professional architectural/engineering
services for the Field Maintenance Shop (Washoe County Armory); CIP Project No. 13-P04; SPWD Contract No.
88242. This amendment decreases the maximum amount from $755,835 to $540,020 to reflect the revised projected
project costs.  Cost were adjusted to reflect the changes in the scope of work as detailed in the vendor's Scope of
Work Summary.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $736,700.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $19,135.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: -$215,815.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $540,020.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
2013 CIP

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15121 7



Professional  Services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 11:09:34 AM
Division Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 11:09:38 AM
Department Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 11:09:43 AM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 16:09:18 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 06/17/2015 18:29:42 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/18/2015 11:19:03 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15121 7



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16841

Legal Entity
Name:

APPLIED ENGINEERING
CONSULTANT SERVICES

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: APPLIED ENGINEERING
CONSULTANT SERVICES

Agency Code: 082 Address: 4825 CONVAIR DR STE 17
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89706-2418

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/888-9939
Vendor No.: T29010769
NV Business ID: NV19951118404

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109189

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Mat Tst & Insp Serv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide materials testing and inspection services on an as needed basis and at the request
of the State Public Works Division:  SPWD Contract No. 109189

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $100,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Materials Testing and Inspection Services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Materials testing and inspection  services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.
Consultants are selected based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by
the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16841 8



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 11:37:59 AM
Division Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 13:31:37 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 16:09:41 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 16:09:44 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 06/17/2015 18:20:12 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/18/2015 11:19:53 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16841 8



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16845

Legal Entity
Name:

NINYO & MOORE

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: NINYO & MOORE

Agency Code: 082 Address: 6700 PARADISE RD STE E
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89119-3744

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/433-0330
Vendor No.: T27000873A
NV Business ID: NV19961094658

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109222

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Env Pl Chck Serv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional enviromental plan checking services as required.  SPWD Contract No.
109222.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $100,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Environmental Plan Checking Services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Environmental plan checking services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.
Consultants are selected based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by
the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16845 9



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 15:34:46 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 15:34:49 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 15:34:55 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 06/09/2015 16:08:46 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 06/18/2015 17:41:44 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 12:14:03 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16845 9



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16725

Legal Entity
Name:

R2H ENGINEERING, INC.

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: R2H ENGINEERING, INC.

Agency Code: 082 Address: 2610 WEST HORIZON RIDGE PKWY
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations Suite 205
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip HENDERSON, NV 89052

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/260-7000
Vendor No.: T81003820
NV Business ID: NV19931073695

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109229

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Struct Pl Chck

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide ongoing professional structural plan checking services as required:  SPWD
Contract No. 109229.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $50,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Structural plan checking services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional structural plan checking services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.
Consultants are selected based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by
the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16725 10



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The vendor has demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 05/12/2015 15:59:16 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 05/12/2015 15:59:19 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 05/12/2015 16:03:49 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 05/12/2015 16:03:52 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 05/14/2015 17:46:19 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/15/2015 10:14:04 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16725 10



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14914 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

PACE GROUP COMMUNICATIONS,
INC.

Agency Name: DTCA - COMMISSION ON TOURISM Contractor Name: PACE GROUP COMMUNICATIONS,
INC.

Agency Code: 101 Address: 55 WATER STREET STE 200
Appropriation Unit: 1522-43
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip VANCOUVER, CANADA, -- V6V 1A1

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: NORMAN STOWE 604/689-1889
Vendor No.: F00000280
NV Business ID: NV20131500638

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % LODGING TAX

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 10/08/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

09/30/2015

Contract term: 3 years and 266 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Western Canada Rep

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract to provide international representation primarily in Western
Canada to promote tourism in Nevada. The target audience for public relations efforts is media and consumers in
the provinces of British Columbia, Alberta, and Saskatchewan. The vendor will work with consumer and trade media
in these provinces to increase awareness of Nevada as a vacation destination. The Division's mission is to increase
travel to the rural areas of the state, so the contracted vendor's efforts will be focused on rural Nevada using Las
Vegas and Reno as gateways. This amendment extends the termination date from September 30, 2015 to June 30,
2017 and increases the maximum amount from $169,000 to $374,000 to continue the international representation in
Western Canada.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $120,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $49,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $205,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $374,000.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
NRS 231.160 through NRS 231.360 requires that the Nevada Commission on Tourism promote tourism in Nevada both
domestically and internationally.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14914 11



8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have any employees located outside the United States to perform this work internationally.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #2049, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 07/02/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/02/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
The contractor has a current contract with the Nevada Division of Tourism and the service is satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Other Non-Title 7 Business License

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval amathies 05/28/2015 09:45:23 AM
Division Approval amathies 05/28/2015 09:45:26 AM
Department Approval amathies 05/28/2015 09:45:28 AM
Contract Manager Approval amathies 05/28/2015 09:45:31 AM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/11/2015 10:48:35 AM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 10:08:36 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14914 11



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16807

Legal Entity
Name:

BOARD OF REGENTS NEVADA
SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION

Agency Name: GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Contractor Name: UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA, RENO
NEVADA INDUSTRY EXCELLENCE

Agency Code: 102 Address: UNR MAIL STOP 406
Appropriation Unit: 1526-19
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89557-0406

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Sandra Haslem 775-784-1935
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: GOVERNMENT ENTITY

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2016
Contract term: 1 year

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Training

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing intensive short-term skills based training through the
Train Employees Now program.  This training is for new and expanding Nevada businesses to help employees
quickly reach productivity.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $500,000.00
Other basis for payment: Per training session as they are approved and initiated.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The need to diversify Nevada's economy and provide incentives in a competitive market requires that this work be done, in
accordance with NRS 231.068 and 231.147.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Governor's Office of Economic Development does not have the capacity to perform this work, but the work will be
performed by a state agency that does.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16807 12



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This contract does not have an indirect cost rate.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Current provider; work is satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval swoodbur 06/01/2015 17:09:12 PM
Division Approval swoodbur 06/01/2015 17:09:14 PM
Department Approval swoodbur 06/01/2015 17:09:17 PM
Contract Manager Approval swoodbur 06/01/2015 17:09:21 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sewart 06/03/2015 11:01:27 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 10:56:53 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16807 12



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15847 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

National Charter Schools Institute

Agency Name: STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL
AUTHORITY

Contractor Name: National Charter Schools Institute

Agency Code: 315 Address: Perf Inst DBA National Charter
Appropriation Unit: 2711-26 711 W Pickard St Ste M
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Mount Pleasant, MI 48858-1587

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null989-317-3510
Vendor No.: T27034587
NV Business ID: NV20141212395

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % State sponsored charter school fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: 2015-01 Epicenter

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2017

Contract term: 3 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Epicenter contract

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract to provide ongoing services for a web-based data collection
system called Epicenter which provides oversight, support and accountability for state sponsored charter schools.
This amendment increases the maximum amount from $49,400 to $146,300 due to the continued need for these
services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $49,400.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $96,900.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $146,300.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
A large number of reports and documentation are required from the charter schools sponsored by State Public Charter
School Authority (SPCSA).  This data is needed in order to review, oversee, monitor, and support the charter schools for
compliance and legal requirements.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:

Page 1 of 3Contract #: 15847 13



The use of a web-based program to gather this large amount of information for use by SPCSA staff, is cost effective for both
the charter schools and the SPCSA staff.  This system also allows review off-site as needed.  The SPCSA agency has a very
small staff, and the collection of the information is essential to the functions of the agency.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Sole Source Contract (As Approved by Chief of Purchasing)
        Approval #: 140806A
        Approval Date: 06/01/2015
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This service is a unique software product developed for SPCSA as a charter school authorizer.  This is a continuation of a
service from the vendor currently contracted to provide the services. The product and service with this vendor have been
more than satisfactory so a continuation of services is desired.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval akellog2 06/12/2015 11:48:09 AM
Division Approval jhoba2 06/12/2015 12:48:38 PM
Department Approval jhoba2 06/12/2015 12:48:43 PM
Contract Manager Approval akellog2 06/12/2015 12:55:11 PM
DoIT Approval csweeney 06/17/2015 14:10:04 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 10:47:12 AM

Page 2 of 3Contract #: 15847 13



BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 10:47:18 AM

Page 3 of 3Contract #: 15847 13



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16606

Legal Entity
Name:

NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES

Agency Name: DHHS - HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Contractor Name: NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF
COUNTIES

Agency Code: 400 Address: NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF
COUNTIES

Appropriation Unit: 3244-04 304 S MINNESOTA ST
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89703-4270

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/883-7863
Vendor No.: T80918301
NV Business ID: Interlocal

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % 1.5 cent ad valorem tax

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: NACO Admin Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement to continue to provide ongoing program administration on behalf of the Board of
Trustees of the Fund for Hospital Care for Indigent Persons, which includes review and verification of hospital
applications for reimbursement by the Fund, maintenance of a system of records for the Board, design and conduct
programs of information and training for county units of government and work with stakeholders on funding
recommendations to the Board.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $120,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $60,000.00 per Year

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
NRS 428.175 established the Fund for Hospital Care to Indigent Persons. The contract will provide technical and
administrative services to the Fund.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
There are no state employees who the expertise to perform this work.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16606 14



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Not applicable per SAM 0314 and NRS 227.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
NACO performed services under contract for the Department of Health and Human Services Director's Office and the
performance was satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval bvale1 04/15/2015 14:58:53 PM
Division Approval bvale1 06/12/2015 14:45:47 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 06/12/2015 15:32:34 PM
Contract Manager Approval bvale1 06/16/2015 10:00:40 AM
Budget Analyst Approval nhovden 06/16/2015 10:15:01 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 06/16/2015 10:15:06 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16606 14



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15673 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

HARMONY INFORMATION SERVICES,
INC.

Agency Name: DHHS - AGING AND DISABILITY
SERVICES DIVISION

Contractor Name: HARMONY INFORMATION SERVICES,
INC.

Agency Code: 402 Address: 25 New England Drive
Appropriation Unit: 3279-50
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Essex Junction, VT 05452

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Murali Pillai 703-657-1472
Vendor No.: T29002036
NV Business ID: NV20141224633

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 11.20 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 17.90 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 70.90 % TRANSFER FROM DHCFP

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 06/12/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2016

Contract term: 3 years and 19 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Harmony Info Systems

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract to purchase additional information technology products in
support of activities for the Nevada Balancing Incentive Payments Program grant to support timely functional and
financial eligibility determinations, improving access to Nevadans who need long term services and support.  This
amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017 and increases the maximum amount
from $5,196,845 to $5,749,235 due to the amended scope of work and the development of an integrated provider
interface with the Division of Health Care Finance and Policy.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $1,511,465.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $3,685,380.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $552,390.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $5,749,235.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Developmental Services unit requires an automated, integrated case management system to streamline processes,
provide accurate reporting, and meet Federal and State mandates.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:

Page 1 of 3Contract #: 15673 15



Utilizing a COTS (Commercial Off-The-Shelf) solution allows the division to benefit from industry best-practices and the
expertise of a national vendor in the most sensitive and complex areas of Health Care. These areas include: securing
Protected Health Information (PHI) within an Electronic Health Record (EHR) and real-time interoperability with Health
Information Technology (HIT) exchanges and CMS (Medicaid).

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Sole Source Contract (As Approved by Chief of Purchasing)
        Approval #: 140201C
        Approval Date: 04/16/2015
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The Harmony Information Systems product is a web-based solution that provides the features necessary for all of our
stakeholders (state and federal agencies, providers, consumers and their advocates) in all of our Home and Community
Based programs and is currently being used by other units within the division
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
The Division of Health and Human Services (DHHS) Aging and Disability Services Division (ADSD) has utilized this vendor
since 2005 with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lgoulart 05/14/2015 13:39:54 PM
Division Approval tmyler 05/14/2015 13:47:34 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 05/14/2015 14:26:50 PM
Contract Manager Approval jpruneau 05/14/2015 14:47:00 PM
DoIT Approval bbohm 05/14/2015 14:56:07 PM

Page 2 of 3Contract #: 15673 15



Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 06/19/2015 08:02:18 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 10:15:39 AM

Page 3 of 3Contract #: 15673 15



15



15



15



15



15



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16800

Legal Entity
Name:

NEVADA FAMILY PRACTICE
RESIDENCY PROGRAM

Agency Name: DHHS - AGING AND DISABILITY
SERVICES DIVISION

Contractor Name: NEVADA FAMILY PRACTICE
RESIDENCY PROGRAM

Agency Code: 402 Address: MOJAVE ADULT CHILD FAMILY SVCS
Appropriation Unit: 3279-04 4000 E CHARLESTON BLVD STE 230
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89104-2321

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/968-5088
Vendor No.: T80976319
NV Business ID: NV19831007549

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 50.20 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 49.80 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 08/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 1 year and 334 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Psychiatric Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing psychiatric evaluations for people who exhibit severe
maladaptive behaviors and mental illness, and require psychotropic medication(s).  The contractor will recommend
modes of behavior programs to be used and/or prescribe the use of appropriate medications; provide professional
consultation to medical and non-medical staff; and monitor the psychiatric needs of the people served by the
agency.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $129,000.00
Other basis for payment: Upon invoice per agreement

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Per the Code of Federal Regulations Title 42, Chapter 4, Part 483.45 Specialized Rehabilitative Services: (a) Provision of
Services.  If specialized rehabilitative services such as, but not limited to, physical therapy, speech language pathology,
occupational therapy, and mental health rehabilitative service for mental illness and mental retardation are required in the
resident's comprehensive plan of care, the facility must (1) provide for the required services; or (2) obtain the required
services from an outside resource (in accordance with 483.75(h) of this part) from a provider of specialized rehabilitative
services.  (b) Qualifications.  Specialized rehabilitative services must be provided under the written order of a physician by
qualified personnel.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The vendor is a State agency.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16800 16



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Per NRS 277.080 the Interlocal Cooperation Act: vendor is another State Agency.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
FY03 - present - service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Non-profit Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. Not Applicable

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dhanse6 06/03/2015 09:16:59 AM
Division Approval dbowma1 06/04/2015 13:14:03 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 06/05/2015 14:25:54 PM
Contract Manager Approval dhanse6 06/08/2015 10:30:14 AM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 06/16/2015 10:51:54 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 06/18/2015 16:21:46 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16800 16



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16017 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

AGING AND DISABILITY SERVICES

Agency Name: DHHS - HEALTH CARE FINANCING
& POLICY

Contractor Name: AGING AND DISABILITY SERVICES

Agency Code: 403 Address: 3416 GONI RD BLDG D STE 132
Appropriation Unit: 3243-74
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89706

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775-687-4210 775/687-4210
Vendor No.: D40200000
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 12/09/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
This amendment is retroactive to June 1, 2015 due to a delay in negotiations with the contractor.

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

03/31/2016

Contract term: 1 year and 112 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: BIPP Project

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing professional contracted
information technology staff to conduct the activities for the Balancing Incentive Payments Program grant. This
amendment increases the maximum amount from $3,899,380 to $4,796,894 and revises the scope of work.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $3,799,380.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $100,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $897,514.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $4,796,894.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
To support the Harmony project which is the development of a case management system required as a benchmark of the
Money Follows the Person grant.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The programming is being done under MSA, there are no qualified State employee to perform the work.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16017 17



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
DHCFP has several contracts with the Aging and Disability Services Division and work has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval trooker 06/10/2015 10:16:10 AM
Division Approval trooker 06/10/2015 12:12:51 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 06/10/2015 13:56:31 PM
Contract Manager Approval cmoriart 06/18/2015 15:21:52 PM
Budget Analyst Approval nhovden 06/18/2015 16:47:39 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 06/18/2015 16:47:58 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16017 17



17



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16829

Legal Entity
Name:

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF NURSING

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: NEVADA STATE BOARD OF NURSING

Agency Code: 406 Address: STE 300
Appropriation Unit: 3216-12 5011 MEADOWOOD MALL WAY
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89502-6547

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/688-2620
Vendor No.: T80147500
NV Business ID: Government Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: C 14999

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2016

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
The interlocal agreement was delayed due to requested budget adjustments from the Board of Nursing.  If the
agreement is not approved for a retroactive start date, Public and Behavioral Health will not be able to complete part
of the workload required by the feds which could impact the health and safety of the public related to abuse and
neglect by caregivers.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Approve Programs

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing program development to regulate nursing assistants
employed in nursing facilities and home health agencies, which includes reviewing/approving qualified training and
competency evaluation programs; maintaining a registry of employed nursing assistants completing a competency
evaluation program; investigating complaints of abuse, neglect and misappropriation of property; and
recommending disciplinary action.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $463,050.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $19,293.75 per Month

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Health Division is obligated to implement and determine compliance with the provisions of Public Law 100-203 (Omnibus
Budget Reconciliation Act of 1987) including amendmenst to, and regarding P.L. 100-203, with respect to the development of
a program to regulate nursing assistants employed in nursing facilities and home health agencies in the state. The contractor
is qualified to perform these duties efficiently and in a timely manner.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The agreement is with a State Agency.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16829 18



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Provided service to DPBH from 7/2013 to 6/2015 - satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval chadwic1 06/08/2015 10:13:31 AM
Division Approval chadwic1 06/08/2015 10:13:33 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 06/08/2015 16:02:36 PM
Contract Manager Approval rmorse 06/10/2015 09:16:17 AM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 06/16/2015 07:58:27 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 06/18/2015 17:14:51 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16829 18



Public Health: Working for a Safer and Healthier Nevada
 
 

 
 

BRIAN SANDOVAL 
Governor 

 
RICHARD WHITLEY, MS 

Interim Director 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Telephone: (775) 

 
 
June 16, 2015 
 

 
TO:  Brenda Berry 
  Budget Analyst 
  Budget Division 
 
THROUGH: Mark Winebarger 

Administrative Services Officer IV
Division of Public and Behavioral Health

 
FROM:  Kyle Devine 

Bureau Chief 
  Bureau of Health Care Quality and Compliance
   
 
SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR RETROACTIVE START DATE OF CONTRACT 
 
 
The contract between the State Board of Nursing and the Division of Public and Behavioral Health is required under the CMS 
grant for completion of the workload necessary through the 1864 agreement with the Centers of Medicare and Medicaid 
Services which indicates the designated agencies will
delegates of the Secretary; employ management methods, personnel procedures, equal opportunity policies, and merit systems 
procedures in accordance with agreed upon established practi
 
This interlocal agreement continues ongoing program development to regulate nursing assistants employed in nursing facilities
and home health agencies in Nevada.  We therefore request that this contract be accepted with a retroactive start date 
2015.  If the agreement is not approved for a retroactive start
required by the 1864 Agreement, Article II of the Social Security Act
related to abuse and neglect by caregivers. 
 
The program was cognizant of contracting deadlines, however was delayed due to requested budget adjustments from the 
Board of Nursing. 
 
Thank you for your consideration in this matter.
 
 
CC:  Rick Morse, Management Analyst II 
 Division of Public and Behavioral Health

Public Health: Working for a Safer and Healthier Nevada 

STATE OF NEVADA 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

4150 Technology Way, Suite 300 
Carson City, NV 89706 

Telephone: (775) 684-5975 ·  Fax: (775) 684-4211 

MEMORANDUM  

Officer IV 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

Bureau of Health Care Quality and Compliance 

REQUEST FOR RETROACTIVE START DATE OF CONTRACT – C 14999 

of Nursing and the Division of Public and Behavioral Health is required under the CMS 
grant for completion of the workload necessary through the 1864 agreement with the Centers of Medicare and Medicaid 

which indicates the designated agencies will:  keep necessary and appropriate records to be furnished as required by 
delegates of the Secretary; employ management methods, personnel procedures, equal opportunity policies, and merit systems 
procedures in accordance with agreed upon established practices. 

This interlocal agreement continues ongoing program development to regulate nursing assistants employed in nursing facilities
We therefore request that this contract be accepted with a retroactive start date 

If the agreement is not approved for a retroactive start date, we would not be able to complete part of the workload 
, Article II of the Social Security Act which could impact the health and safety of the public 

The program was cognizant of contracting deadlines, however was delayed due to requested budget adjustments from the 

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. 

Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

 
 

MARTA E. JENSEN 
Acting Administrator 

 
TRACEY D. GREEN, MD 

Chief Medical Officer 

C 14999 (CETS #16829) 

of Nursing and the Division of Public and Behavioral Health is required under the CMS 
grant for completion of the workload necessary through the 1864 agreement with the Centers of Medicare and Medicaid 

:  keep necessary and appropriate records to be furnished as required by 
delegates of the Secretary; employ management methods, personnel procedures, equal opportunity policies, and merit systems 

This interlocal agreement continues ongoing program development to regulate nursing assistants employed in nursing facilities 
We therefore request that this contract be accepted with a retroactive start date of July 1, 

, we would not be able to complete part of the workload 
which could impact the health and safety of the public 

 
The program was cognizant of contracting deadlines, however was delayed due to requested budget adjustments from the 

18



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16812

Legal Entity
Name:

LYON COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: LYON COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES

Agency Code: 406 Address: LYON CO HUMAN SERVICES SFSP
Appropriation Unit: 3222-18 1075 Pyramid St.
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip SILVER SPRINGS, NV 89429

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/577-5009
Vendor No.: T40156600AA
NV Business ID: Government Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: C 14983

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2016
Contract term: 1 year and 92 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Home Visiting Svcs

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing evidence-based home visiting services offered to
pregnant women, or parents of children birth to age five, based on the Parents as Teachers Model Overview, which
focuses on providing parents with child development knowledge and parenting support; early detection of
developmental delays and health issues; prevention of child abuse and neglect; and increasing children's school
readiness.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $373,700.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $28,746.00 per month

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Federal Grant mandates the promotion of maternal, infant and early childhood health, and safety, as well as building upon
existing State infrastructure with regard to existing home visiting programs currently being conducted throughout the State.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Division of Public and Behavioral Health does not have the resources to perform this function.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16812 19



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This government entity was chosen to provide state services to its residents.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval chadwic1 06/05/2015 15:50:51 PM
Division Approval chadwic1 06/05/2015 15:50:55 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 06/08/2015 10:23:32 AM
Contract Manager Approval rmorse 06/08/2015 12:44:42 PM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 06/12/2015 13:47:37 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 06/19/2015 09:28:29 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16812 19



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16775

Legal Entity
Name:

CLARK COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF
JUVENILE JUSTICE SERVICES

Agency Name: DHHS - DIVISION OF CHILD AND
FAMILY SERVICES

Contractor Name: CLARK COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF
JUVENILE JUSTICE SERVICES

Agency Code: 409 Address: 601 N PECOS RD
Appropriation Unit: 3147-11
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89101-2408

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/455-5210
Vendor No.: T81026920C
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
Services will begin July 1, 2015 per the legislatively approved budget. The interlocal agreement should be approved
by the State of Nevada Board of Examiners on July 14, 2015. Therefore, in order to meet the needs of youth placed
by the courts, we are requesting retroactive approval of this interlocal contract.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Spring Mountain

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing services to provide residential living care for boys and
girls who have been adjudicated delinquent and committed by the Juvenile Division of the District Court to Spring
Mountain Youth Camp, which is the regional juvenile detention facility administered by Clark County.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $974,500.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $40,604.16 per Month

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Legislative appropriation for the operation of SMYC, a regional juvenile detention facility as defined in NRS 62A.280.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State operates the correctional facilities and this facility is an alternative to State placement and is run by Clark County.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16775 20



b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
NRS 277.180 authorizes one or more public agencies to contract with another public agency to perform governmental
functions.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
Yes If "Yes", please explain

Clark County

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Yes, contract is currently with the Division and service is satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval pcolegro 05/26/2015 12:55:03 PM
Division Approval pcolegro 05/26/2015 12:55:06 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 06/01/2015 14:12:51 PM
Contract Manager Approval mcar2 06/01/2015 14:48:19 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 06/09/2015 07:26:45 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 06/09/2015 13:59:53 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16775 20



20



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16757

Legal Entity
Name:

DOUGLAS COUNTY CHINA SPRING
YOUTH CAMP AND AURORA PINES

Agency Name: DHHS - DIVISION OF CHILD AND
FAMILY SERVICES

Contractor Name: DOUGLAS COUNTY CHINA SPRING
YOUTH CAMP AND AURORA PINES

Agency Code: 409 Address: AURORA PINES GIRLS FACILITY
Appropriation Unit: 3147-15 PO BOX 218
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip MINDEN, NV 89423

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/265-5350
Vendor No.: T40174400AB
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 45.80 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 54.20 % County Participation

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
Services will begin July 1, 2015 per the legislatively approved budget. The interlocal agreement should be approved
by the State of Nevada Board of Examiners on July 14, 2015. Therefore, in order to meet the needs of youth placed
by the courts, we are requesting retroactive approval of this interlocal contract.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Juvenile Justice

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing services to provide residential living care for boys and
girls who have been designated as delinquent and committed to China Springs Youth Camp and Aurora Pines Girls
Facility, which are regional juvenile detention facilities administered by county entities.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $7,408,430.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $926,053.75 per Quarter

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Legislature has appropriated funding for the operation of CSYC and APGF as regional juvenile detention facilities as
defined in NRS 62A.280.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Local juvenile facilities are administered by county entities.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16757 21



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
NRS 277.180 authorizes one or more public agencies to contract with another public agency to perform governmental
functions.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
Yes If "Yes", please explain

Douglas County

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Yes, currently with DCFS and service is satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval pcolegro 05/26/2015 12:56:08 PM
Division Approval pcolegro 05/26/2015 12:56:12 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 06/01/2015 14:01:30 PM
Contract Manager Approval mcar2 06/01/2015 14:43:19 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 06/02/2015 16:30:11 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 06/09/2015 13:59:14 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16757 21



21



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16843

Legal Entity
Name:

WELLES PUGSLEY ARCHITECTS, LLP

Agency Name: ADJUTANT GENERAL & NATIONAL
GUARD

Contractor Name: PUGSLEY SIMPSON COULTER
ARCHITECTS

Agency Code: 431 Address: 2480 E THOMKINS AVE STE 222
Appropriation Unit: 3650-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89121

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: WADE SIMPSON 702-435-1150
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: 20031000034

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: NMD# 025-15-S

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2016
Contract term: 1 year

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: FETC Planning

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to conduct a planning and programing document charrette for the Speedway Readiness
Center in North Las Vegas.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $59,525.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
This pre-design charrette is required as part of military construction for the new North Las Vegas Readiness Center.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The agency does not have the skills, time or tools to conduct this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16843 22



This company is a local (Las Vegas) Nevada business with experience in government construction.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
No b. If "No", please explain:

Legal entity conducts business under this name.

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval vradford 06/09/2015 13:56:52 PM
Division Approval ctyle1 06/09/2015 13:59:15 PM
Department Approval ctyle1 06/09/2015 13:59:17 PM
Contract Manager Approval vradford 06/09/2015 14:14:09 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 10:12:20 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 10:12:28 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16843 22



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16820

Legal Entity
Name:

Express Systems

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS Contractor Name: Express Systems
Agency Code: 440 Address: 1617 Fairview Dr. #27
Appropriation Unit: 3724-04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Carson City, NV 89701

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Ricardo Estrada, General Manager
775/883-9119

Vendor No.: T29034727
NV Business ID: NV20151202691

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2021
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 08/31/2020
Contract term: 5 years and 63 days

4. Type of contract: Other (include description): Equipment Lease
Contract description: Equipment Lease

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new agreement for the lease of equipment to provide commercial washers and dryers and related services,
installation and all maintenance of new machines located at Northern Nevada Transitional Housing Center.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $69,066.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $1,151.10 per month

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
For the health and safety of staff and offenders.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Department does not have the equipment to provide this service.  No other State agency offers this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16820 23



Express Systems was the only respondent out of the two proposals received to comply with the terms of RFP 201511.  The
RFP was advertised in the Las Vegas Review Journal and Reno Gazette Journal and was posted to the State Purchasing
website.
d. Last bid date: 05/12/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 04/13/2020

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Other Partnership

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ssergent 06/03/2015 08:31:50 AM
Division Approval dmartine 06/03/2015 12:40:04 PM
Department Approval drosenbe 06/03/2015 14:03:28 PM
Contract Manager Approval jhardy 06/04/2015 13:47:56 PM
Budget Analyst Approval cmurph3 06/09/2015 11:16:42 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/11/2015 16:26:21 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16820 23



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14875 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

EXETER ASSOCIATES, INC.

Agency Name: COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION Contractor Name: EXETER ASSOCIATES, INC.
Agency Code: 690 Address: STE 300
Appropriation Unit: 4490-04 10480 LITTLE PATUXENT PKWY
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip COLUMBIA, MD 21044-3575

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Dwight Etheridge 410/992-7500
Vendor No.: T32002645
NV Business ID: NV20111200508

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Power Sales Revenues

Agency Reference #: 13-047

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 10/08/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

10/31/2015

Contract term: 4 years and 24 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Exeter

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues future filings with the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission and the Public Utilities Commission of Nevada, marketing of Hoover power and other
resources, assistance with policy positions in regulatory proceedings, and providing other electric utility related
analysis as needed.  This amendment extends the termination date from October 31, 2015 to October 31, 2017 and
increases the maximum amount from $200,000 to $350,000 to provide for anticipated regulatory proceedings.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $200,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $150,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $350,000.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 10/31/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Commission is an intervener in five open contested dockets before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)
and the Public Utilities Commission of Nevada (PUCN).  These dockets address NV Energy and all have significant potential
impact on the Commission and its power customers.  The amount and nature of the information filed is voluminoius, complex
and involves rate-making, public policy and utility cost of service matters.  The Commission needs specialized technical
expertise for review and analysis and the provision of expert witness testimony during the proceedings.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14875 24



8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Staff does not have the significant amount of specialized expertise nor ability to provide needed expert economic witness
testimony in utilitiy regulatory proceedings.  Further Staff does not have adequate past experience with the specific issues
raised in these dockets nor the available time to perform needed analysis.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor has worked with the agency in the past and has long-term experience and expertise with utility regulatory
matters in multiple jurisdictions including Nevada.   The assigned Principal with Exeter who will be assisting the Commission
personally was in the past employed by NV Energy as a manager of its rate-making staff.  This specialized expertise and
utility-specific knowledge is very difficult to find.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contractor was engaged by the Commission about five years ago.  The contractor was re-engaged in 2013 and has
continued to provide services in a satisfactory manner.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dbeatty 05/21/2015 16:53:28 PM
Division Approval dbeatty 05/21/2015 16:53:31 PM
Department Approval dbeatty 05/21/2015 16:53:35 PM
Contract Manager Approval jsalo 05/27/2015 09:00:36 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 10:52:12 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 10:52:16 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14875 24



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16825

Legal Entity
Name:

TAHOE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Agency Name: DCNR - PARKS DIVISION Contractor Name: TAHOE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
Agency Code: 704 Address: DBA TTD
Appropriation Unit: 4162-04 PO BOX 499
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip ZEPHYR COVE, NV 89448-0499

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/589-5500
Vendor No.: T27022731
NV Business ID: NA

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Shuttle Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement to provide ongoing shuttle service to and from Incline Village to Lake Tahoe
Nevada State Park.   The district runs the East Shore Express, which will provide park patrons with efficient,
economical, and safe transportation to the park.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $170,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $85,000.00 per year

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The ESE provides a transit operation from Incline Village to serve visitors from this area and provide alternative
transportation to the park.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
We don't have the equipment.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16825 25



d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sdecrona 06/04/2015 08:45:47 AM
Division Approval sdecrona 06/04/2015 08:45:49 AM
Department Approval sdecrona 06/04/2015 08:45:56 AM
Contract Manager Approval sdecrona 06/04/2015 08:46:00 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 06/17/2015 17:30:42 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/18/2015 11:23:56 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16825 25



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16668

Legal Entity
Name:

Churchill County

Agency Name: DCNR - FORESTRY DIVISION Contractor Name: Churchill County
Agency Code: 706 Address: 155 North Taylor Street
Appropriation Unit: 4194-00
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Fallon, NV 89406

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-423-5136
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: N/A

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Churchill County Funds

Agency Reference #: NDF16-019

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
The Nevada Division of Forestry (NDF) and Churchill County have been in negotiation for continued participation in
the Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP) for several months. It has always been the intention of both parties for
this agreement to be effective July 1, 2015 as the current WFPP expires June 30, 2015. A delay in getting this
contact on the Churchill County Commissioners' meeting agenda prevented the NDF from meeting the Board of
Examiners' deadline for the June meeting.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Revenue Contract
Contract description: Wildland Fire Protec

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal revenue agreement to provide ongoing services under the Wildland Fire Protection Program.
In accordance with the agreement, the division and the county will work closely together to maintain effective
wildfire management in order to quickly suppress wildland fires regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $50,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $6,250.00 per quarter
Other basis for payment: Payable in advance on the first of each quarter beginning July 1, 2015 for State Fiscal Year 2016-
2017.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Nevada Division of Forestry and Churchill County will work closely together to maintain effective wildfire management to
quickly suppress wildland fire regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership. It is considered mutually beneficial to all parties to
jointly take action as necessary to safely and effectively contain all wildland fires.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a revenue contract to the Division of Forestry. State employees will be utilized to perform work for which Churchill
County will make payment to the division.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16668 26



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
Yes If "Yes", please explain

Churchill County is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Churchill County is currently under contract for the Wildland Fire Protection Program. The contract will expire June 30, 2015.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jkidd 06/04/2015 12:30:49 PM
Division Approval dprather 06/08/2015 07:53:07 AM
Department Approval dprather 06/08/2015 07:53:10 AM
Contract Manager Approval ldunn 06/08/2015 11:36:40 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 06/17/2015 18:03:53 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/18/2015 11:21:55 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16668 26



26



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16664

Legal Entity
Name:

Washoe County

Agency Name: DCNR - FORESTRY DIVISION Contractor Name: Washoe County
Agency Code: 706 Address: PO Box 11130
Appropriation Unit: 4194-00
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89520

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-328-6131
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: N/A

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Washoe County Funds

Agency Reference #: NDF16-018

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
The Nevada Division of Forestry (NDF) and Washoe County have been in negotiation for continued participation in
the Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP) for several months. It has always been the intention of both parties for
this agreement to be effective July 1, 2015 as the current WFPP contract expires June 30, 2015. A delay in getting
this contract on the Washoe County Commissioners' meeting agenda prevented the NDF from meeting the Board of
Examiners' deadline for the June meeting.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Revenue Contract
Contract description: Wildland Fire Protec

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal revenue agreement to provide ongoing services under the Wildland Fire Protection Program.
In accordance with this agreement, the division and the county will work closely together to maintain effective
wildfire management in order to quickly suppress wildland fires regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $100,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $12,500.00 per quarter
Other basis for payment: Payable in advance on the first of each quarter beginnng July 1, 2015 for State Fiscal Year 2016-
2017.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Nevada Division of Forestry and Washoe County will work closely together to maintain effective wildfire management to
quickly suppress wildland fire regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership. It is considered mutually beneficial to all parties to
jointly take action as necessary to safely and effectively contain all wildland fires.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a revenue contract to the Division of Forestry. State employees will be utilized to perform work for which Washoe
Country will make payment to the division.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16664 27



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
Yes If "Yes", please explain

Washoe County is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Washoe County is currently under contract for the Wildland Fire Protection Program. The contract will expire June 30, 2015.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jkidd 06/08/2015 12:20:08 PM
Division Approval dprather 06/08/2015 13:43:09 PM
Department Approval dprather 06/08/2015 13:43:12 PM
Contract Manager Approval ldunn 06/08/2015 13:45:34 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 06/17/2015 18:01:44 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/18/2015 11:23:01 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16664 27



27



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16846

Legal Entity
Name:

Sierra Nevada Administrators

Agency Name: B&I - INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS DIV Contractor Name: Sierra Nevada Administrators
Agency Code: 742 Address: 2720 N. Tenaya Way
Appropriation Unit: All Budget Accounts - Category 04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Las Vegas, NV 89128

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Barbara Chakos 702-838-8282
Vendor No.: T81071694
NV Business ID: NV19901024930

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Fund 210 Workers' Compensation and Safety

Fund
Agency Reference #: RFP # 3182

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
Sudden personnel departure led to a disruption of the RFP/contracting timeline.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: UWCCS

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues to provide ongoing workers compensation claims administration for uninsured
workers compensation claims as required by NRS 616C.220(1).

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $220,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Regulation of Workers¿ Comp System to ensure that injured employees receive accurate and timely benefits.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This process must be done by a 3rd party administrator.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16846 28



Pursuant to RFP #3182, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 03/13/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 03/01/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Business and Industry, Workers¿ Compensation Section.  Work performed was satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Other Domestic

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval vmilazz1 06/16/2015 11:42:46 AM
Division Approval vmilazz1 06/16/2015 11:42:49 AM
Department Approval vmilazz1 06/17/2015 11:50:47 AM
Contract Manager Approval vmilazz1 06/17/2015 11:50:50 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/17/2015 13:42:15 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 07:50:44 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16846 28



 

 
Steve George 
Administrator 
(775) 684-7260 
FAX (775) 687-6305 

 
State of Nevada 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY 
DIVISION OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

OFFICE OF THE ADMINISTRATOR 
 

Jan Rosenberg 
Deputy Administrator 

(702) 486-9159 
FAX (702) 486-9170 

 
 
 
 

 MEMO  
 
TO: 

 
Aaron Frantz, ASO II, Department of Business and Industry 

 
FROM: 

 
Jan Rosenberg, DIR Deputy Administrator 

 
DATE: 

 
June 12, 2015 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
Retro-Active Contract 

 
 

The contract between Sierra Nevada Administrators, Inc. and the Division of Industrial Relations 
(DIR) expired on 6/30/2015.  Sierra Nevada Administrators, Inc. provides claims administration 
services for the State’s Uninsured Employers Account.  This Uninsured Employers Account 
ensures that all Nevada employees have the availability of workers’ compensation insurance 
benefits per NRS/NAC 616 & 617, despite their employer’s not having coverage as required by 
law.  The agency’s contract manager resigned in March 2015, at the beginning of the 
RFP/Contracting process.  While the State’s Purchasing Division was helpful in expediting the 
process as required for a contract of more than $100,000, this sudden key personnel departure 
delayed the conclusion of an already tight multi-phased contract timeline one week past the 
original contract’s termination date of 6/30/15. The Division of Industrial Relations is respectfully 
requesting contract #16846 be retroactive to 7/01/15. 

28



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16798

Legal Entity
Name:

EnviroSystems Management

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Contractor Name: EnviroSystems Management

Agency Code: 800 Address: 23 E Fine Ave
Appropriation Unit: 4660-06
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Flagstaff, AZ 86001

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Keith Pohs 928-226-0236
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV20151092747

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 93.70 % Bonds 0.00 %
X Highway Funds 6.30 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: P538-14-802

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 12/31/2016
Contract term: 1 year and 184 days

4. Type of contract: Provider Agreement
Contract description: WHA for Airport

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract for Wildlife Hazard Assessments and Wildlife Hazard Management Plans  at the Minden-Tahoe
and Carson Airports, which are necessary for the development of Federal Aviation Administration approved plans to
ensure safety.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $97,345.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Due to technical nature and level of expertise needed to complete this project, a Service Provider is required.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the necessary expertise/certification to accomplish this work.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16798 29



This firm was ranked as the most qualified to complete the project.
d. Last bid date: 02/05/2015 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lkoury 05/29/2015 10:23:20 AM
Division Approval lkoury 05/29/2015 10:23:23 AM
Department Approval lkoury 05/29/2015 10:23:26 AM
Contract Manager Approval lkoury 05/29/2015 10:23:29 AM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 06/15/2015 09:29:00 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/15/2015 09:29:04 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16798 29



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16810

Legal Entity
Name:

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
COMMISSION

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Contractor Name: REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
COMMISSION

Agency Code: 800 Address: 2050 VILLANOVA DR
Appropriation Unit: 4660-06
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89502-3163

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Carol Perry 775/348-0400
Vendor No.: PUR0002452
NV Business ID: Exempt

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 95.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 5.00 % Local match
Agency Reference #: PR160-15-063

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 10/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2016
Contract term: 1 year

4. Type of contract: Cooperative Agreement
Contract description: Travel Demand

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new cooperative agreement for the ongoing implementation of a comprehensive trip reduction/regional
rideshare program to reduce the number of single occupant trips in an effort to improve air quality and mobility in
Washoe County.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $600,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The goal of this program is to reduce the overall number of single occupant trips with emphasis on commuter work trips, thus
improving air quality and mobility.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This contract is utilizing federal funds for the express purpose of being passed-through NDOT to be distributed to Washoe
County.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16810 30



b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
NRS 277.080 thru 277.110.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lkoury 06/02/2015 10:58:33 AM
Division Approval lkoury 06/02/2015 10:58:35 AM
Department Approval lkoury 06/02/2015 10:58:37 AM
Contract Manager Approval lkoury 06/02/2015 10:58:40 AM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 06/15/2015 09:27:00 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/15/2015 09:27:04 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16810 30



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16834

Legal Entity
Name:

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
COMMISSION

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Contractor Name: REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
COMMISSION

Agency Code: 800 Address: 600 S GRAND CENTRAL PKWY # 350
Appropriation Unit: 4660-06
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89106

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/676-1500
Vendor No.: PUR0002452B
NV Business ID: Exempt

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 95.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 5.00 % Local Match
Agency Reference #: PR159-15-063

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 10/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2016
Contract term: 1 year

4. Type of contract: Cooperative Agreement
Contract description: Travel Demand

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new cooperative agreement for the ongoing implementation of a comprehensive trip reduction/regional
rideshare program to reduce the number of single occupant trips in an effort to improve air quality and mobility in
Clark County.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $1,368,421.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The goal of this program is to reduce the overall number of single occupant trips with emphasis on commuter work trips, thus
improving air quality and mobility.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This contract is utilizing federal funds for the express purpose of being passed-through NDOT to be distributed to Southern
Nevada RTC.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16834 31



b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
NRS 277.080 thru 277.110.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lkoury 06/08/2015 09:20:53 AM
Division Approval lkoury 06/08/2015 09:20:55 AM
Department Approval lkoury 06/08/2015 09:20:57 AM
Contract Manager Approval lkoury 06/08/2015 09:21:00 AM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 06/15/2015 09:27:51 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 06/15/2015 09:27:55 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16834 31



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16788

Legal Entity
Name:

BOARD OF REGENTS-CSN

Agency Name: DETR - EMPLOYMENT SECURITY
DIVISION

Contractor Name: BOARD OF REGENTS-CSN

Agency Code: 902 Address: CSN CONTROLLERS OFFICE
Appropriation Unit: 4770-11 3200 E CHEYENNE AVE
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip NORTH LAS VEGAS, NV 89030

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/651-4344
Vendor No.: D35000800
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: PY15-GR-CSN-APPRENTICE

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 08/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 07/31/2016
Contract term: 1 year

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Apprentice Training

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing funding to the College of Southern Nevada
Apprenticeship Programs.  These programs provide training to eligible participants in several occupations such as
electrical and plumbing.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $359,460.00
Other basis for payment: tate will process payment when request for funds from College of Southern Nevada is received and
approved by the department, normally once a month, with the total Contract amount not to exceed $359,460. These funds
represent Program Year 2015 Workforce Investment Act Administration funds administered by the Nevada Department of
Employment, Training, and Rehabilitation's Employment Security Division.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
During the 2011 Nevada Legislature session the source of funding for apprenticeship programs was moved from the
Department of Education to DETR in the Governor's budget. Workforce Investment Act (WIA) of 1998.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The division does not employ staff who are qualified to operate an apprenticeship program.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16788 32



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Board of Regents-College of Southern Nevada has been contracted with the department since November of 2011 and
performance has been satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbende2 06/05/2015 08:38:12 AM
Division Approval rolso1 06/08/2015 08:43:53 AM
Department Approval mcost1 06/09/2015 08:32:57 AM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 06/09/2015 08:49:31 AM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/15/2015 08:30:26 AM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 09:47:34 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16788 32



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16792

Legal Entity
Name:

BOARD OF REGENTS-TMCC

Agency Name: DETR - EMPLOYMENT SECURITY
DIVISION

Contractor Name: BOARD OF REGENTS-TMCC

Agency Code: 902 Address: TMCC CONTROLLERS OFFICE
Appropriation Unit: 4770-11 7000 DANDINI BLVD
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89512-3999

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/673-7155
Vendor No.: D35000812
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: PY15-GR-TMCC-Apprentice

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 08/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 07/31/2016
Contract term: 1 year

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Apprentice Training

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing funding to the Truckee Meadows Community College
Apprenticeship Programs. These programs provide training to eligible participants in several occupations such as
electrical and plumbing.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $80,725.00
Other basis for payment: The State will process payment when request for funds from Board of Regents-Truckee Meadows
Community College  is received and approved by the department, normally once a month, with the total Contract amount not
to exceed $80,725. These funds represent Program Year 2015 Workforce Investment Act Administration funds administered
by the Nevada Department of Employment, Training, and Rehabilitation's Employment Security Division.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
During the 2011 Nevada Legislature session the source of funding for apprenticeship programs was moved from the
Department of Education to DETR in the Governor's budget. Workforce Investment Act (WIA) of 1998.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The division does not employ staff who are qualified to operate an apprenticeship program.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16792 33



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Board of Regents-Truckee Meadows Community College has been contracted with the department since October of 2011
and performance has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbende2 06/05/2015 08:38:21 AM
Division Approval mcost1 06/09/2015 08:32:20 AM
Department Approval mcost1 06/09/2015 08:32:23 AM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 06/09/2015 08:49:12 AM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/15/2015 07:56:33 AM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 10:02:44 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16792 33



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16781

Legal Entity
Name:

NEVADAWORKS

Agency Name: DETR - EMPLOYMENT SECURITY
DIVISION

Contractor Name: NEVADAWORKS

Agency Code: 902 Address: BLDG A
Appropriation Unit: 4770-11 6490 S MCCARRAN BLVD STE 1
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89509-6119

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/284-1338
Vendor No.: T27003177
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: PY15-A-01

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
WIA Adult allotment information was not received from the U.S. Department of Labor (TEGL No. 29-14) until April 27,
2015. At that time, DETR was tasked with calculating the allotments for each Local Workforce Investment Board. To
avoid disruption of services, the department is requesting BOE approval effective July 1, 2015.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: WIOA Adult Funds

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to adults in Northern
Nevada as required by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations Part 652 et
al).

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,303,301.00
Other basis for payment: The State will process payment when an approved request for funds is received and approved by
the Department, normally once each week for the duration of the contract, not to exceed the contract maximum of
$2,303,301 for the term of the contract.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) of 2014.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Governor's Workforce Investment Board designated the Local Workforce Investment Boards to facilitate the required
employment and training services in compliance with WIOA.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16781 34



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Nevadaworks has been under contract with the Department of Employment, Training, and Rehabilitation since 1999 and has
performed satisfactorily.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbende2 05/27/2015 13:07:30 PM
Division Approval rolso1 05/27/2015 15:56:51 PM
Department Approval mcost1 05/29/2015 14:03:31 PM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 05/29/2015 14:20:11 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/11/2015 11:22:30 AM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 10:06:14 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16781 34



34



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16783

Legal Entity
Name:

NEVADAWORKS

Agency Name: DETR - EMPLOYMENT SECURITY
DIVISION

Contractor Name: NEVADAWORKS

Agency Code: 902 Address: BLDG A
Appropriation Unit: 4770-11 6490 S MCCARRAN BLVD STE 1
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89509-6119

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/284-1338
Vendor No.: T27003177
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: PY15-DW-01

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
WIOA Dislocated Worker program allotment information was not received from the U.S. Department of Labor (TEGL
No. 29-14) until April 27, 2015. At that time, DETR was tasked with calculating the allotments for each Local
Workforce Investment Board.To avoid disruption of services, the department is requesting BOE approval effective
July 1, 2015.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: WIOA DW Funds

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to dislocated workers
in Northern Nevada as required by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations
Part 652 et al).

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,428,620.00
Other basis for payment: The State will process payment when an approved request for funds is received and approved by
the Department, normally once each week for the duration of the contract, not to exceed the contract maximum of
$2,428,620 for the term of the contract.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) of 2014.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Governor's Workforce Investment Board designated the Local Workforce Investment Boards to facilitate the required
employment and training services in compliance with WIOA.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16783 35



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Nevadaworks has been under contract with the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation since 1999 and has
performed satisfactorily.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbende2 05/27/2015 13:07:17 PM
Division Approval rolso1 05/27/2015 15:56:29 PM
Department Approval mcost1 05/29/2015 14:03:02 PM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 05/29/2015 15:01:37 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/11/2015 13:07:11 PM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 10:05:03 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16783 35



35



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16782

Legal Entity
Name:

NEVADAWORKS

Agency Name: DETR - EMPLOYMENT SECURITY
DIVISION

Contractor Name: NEVADAWORKS

Agency Code: 902 Address: BLDG A
Appropriation Unit: 4770-11 6490 S MCCARRAN BLVD STE 1
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89509-6119

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/284-1338
Vendor No.: T27003177
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: PY15-Y-01

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 04/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
WIOA Youth program allotment information was not received from the U.S. Department of Labor (TEGL No. 29-14)
until April 27, 2015. At that time, DETR was tasked with calculating the allotments for each Local Workforce
Investment Board. To avoid disruption of services, the department is requesting BOE approval effective April 1,
2015.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: WIOA Youth Funds

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to youth in Northern
Nevada as required by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations Part 652 et
al).

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,157,427.00
Other basis for payment: The State will process payment when an approved request for funds is received and approved by
the Department, normally once each week for the duration of the contract, not to exceed the contract maximum of $
2,157,427 for the term of the contract.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) of 2014.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Governor's Workforce Investment Board designated the Local Workforce Investment Boards to facilitate the required
employment and training services in compliance with WIOA.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16782 36



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Nevadaworks has been under contract with the Department of Employment, Training, and Rehabilitation since 1999 and has
performed satisfactorily.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbende2 05/27/2015 13:07:06 PM
Division Approval rolso1 05/27/2015 15:56:05 PM
Department Approval mcost1 05/29/2015 14:02:31 PM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 05/29/2015 15:21:36 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/11/2015 13:12:27 PM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 08:55:25 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16782 36



36



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16785

Legal Entity
Name:

WORKFORCE CONNECTIONS

Agency Name: DETR - EMPLOYMENT SECURITY
DIVISION

Contractor Name: WORKFORCE CONNECTIONS

Agency Code: 902 Address: 6330 W CHARLESTON BLVD STE 150
Appropriation Unit: 4770-11
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89146-1183

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/638-8750
Vendor No.: T81079028
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: PY15-A-02

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
WIOA Adult program allotment information was not received from the U.S. Department of Labor (TEGL No. 29-14)
until April 27, 2015. At that time, DETR was tasked with calculating the allotments for each Local Workforce
Investment Board. To avoid disruption of services, the department is requesting BOE approval effective July 1,
2015.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: WIOA Adult Funds

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to adults in Southern
Nevada as required by the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations Part 652
et al).

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $7,375,010.00
Other basis for payment: The State will process payment when an approved request for funds is received and approved by
the Department, normally once each week for the duration of the contract, not to exceed the contract maximum of
$7,375,010 for the term of the contract.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) of 2014.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Governor's Workforce Investment Board designated the Local Workforce Investment Boards to facilitate the required
employment and training services in compliance with WIOA.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16785 37



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Workforce Connections has been under contract with the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation since 1999
and has performed satisfactorily.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbende2 06/01/2015 11:23:26 AM
Division Approval rolso1 06/01/2015 13:48:50 PM
Department Approval mcost1 06/04/2015 09:04:15 AM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 06/04/2015 18:38:26 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/11/2015 15:58:54 PM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/12/2015 15:20:52 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16785 37



37



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16789

Legal Entity
Name:

WORKFORCE CONNECTIONS

Agency Name: DETR - EMPLOYMENT SECURITY
DIVISION

Contractor Name: WORKFORCE CONNECTIONS

Agency Code: 902 Address: 6330 W CHARLESTON BLVD STE 150
Appropriation Unit: 4770-11
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89146-1183

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/638-8750
Vendor No.: T81079028
NV Business ID: GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: PY15-DW-02

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
WIOA Dislocated Worker program allotment information was not received from the U.S. Department of Labor (TEGL
No. 29-14) until April 27, 2015. At that time, DETR was tasked with calculating the allotments for each Local
Workforce Development Board. To avoid disruption of services, the department is requesting BOE approval
effective July 1, 2015.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: WIOA DW Funds

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to Dislocated Workers
in Southern Nevada as required by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations
Part 652 et al).

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $4,448,425.00
Other basis for payment: The State will process payment when an approved request for funds is received and approved by
the Department, normally once each week for the duration of the contract, not to exceed the contract maximum of
$4,448,425 for the term of the contract.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) of 2014.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Governor's Workforce Investment Board designated the Local Workforce Investment Boards to facilitate the required
employment and training services in compliance with WIOA.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16789 38



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Workforce Connections has been under contract with the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation since 1999
and has performed satisfactorily.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbende2 06/01/2015 11:23:39 AM
Division Approval rolso1 06/01/2015 13:50:43 PM
Department Approval mcost1 06/04/2015 09:07:08 AM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 06/04/2015 18:29:21 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/15/2015 08:17:39 AM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 09:58:24 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16789 38



38



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16803

Legal Entity
Name:

WORKFORCE CONNECTIONS

Agency Name: DETR - EMPLOYMENT SECURITY
DIVISION

Contractor Name: WORKFORCE CONNECTIONS

Agency Code: 902 Address: 6330 W CHARLESTON BLVD STE 150
Appropriation Unit: 4770-11
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89146-1183

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/638-8750
Vendor No.: T81079028
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: PY15-Y-02

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 04/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
WIOA Youth program allotment information was not received from the U.S. Department of Labor (TEGL No. 29-14)
until April 27, 2015. At that time, DETR was tasked with calculating the allotments for each Local Workforce
Investment Board. To avoid disruption of services, the department is requesting BOE approval effective April 1,
2015.

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: WIOA Youth Funds

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing employment and training services to youth in Southern
Nevada as required by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act of 2014 (Code of Federal Regulations Part 652 et
al).

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $5,973,728.00
Other basis for payment: The State will process payment when an approved request for funds is received and approved by
the Department, normally once each week for the duration of the contract, not to exceed the contract maximum of
$5,973,728 for the term of the contract.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Worforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) of 2014.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Governor's Workforce Investment Board designated the Local Workforce Investment Boards to facilitate the required
employment and training services in compliance with WIOA.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16803 39



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Workforce Connections has been under contract with the Department of Employment, Training, and Rehabilitation since
1999 and has performed satisfactorily.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbende2 06/01/2015 11:23:55 AM
Division Approval rolso1 06/01/2015 13:52:14 PM
Department Approval mcost1 06/04/2015 09:04:43 AM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 06/04/2015 18:19:23 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/15/2015 08:14:41 AM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 09:59:59 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16803 39



39



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14456 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

MESA ENERGY SYSTEMS dba EMCOR
SERVICES NEVADA

Agency Name: EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DIVISION Contractor Name: MESA ENERGY SYSTEMS dba
EMCOR SERVICES NEVADA

Agency Code: 902 Address: 6255 MCLEOD DR STE 8
Appropriation Unit: 4771-07
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89120-4404

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Philip Robinson 702/597-0314
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV20071267110

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % ESD Special Fund

Agency Reference #: 1836-15-DETR

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/09/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

07/31/2015

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: HVAC MAINTENANCE

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract which provides ongoing heating, ventilation and air conditioning
maintenance services at 2800 E. St. Louis Avenue, Las Vegas Nevada. This amendment increases the maximum
amount from $59,856 to $119,712 and extends the termination date from July 31, 2015 to July 8, 2017 due to the
continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $59,856.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $59,856.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $119,712.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 07/08/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
HV/AC mechanical systems need to be maintained for longevity and effective operation of equipment.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the expertise to perform these tasks.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14456 40



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
EMCOR was the only vendor to respond to DETR Request for Proposal #2013-01-DETR.  DETR received permission from
State Purchasing to issue this RFP without State Purchasing's assistance.
d. Last bid date: 04/01/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 04/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbende2 05/29/2015 07:35:50 AM
Division Approval rolso1 06/01/2015 13:45:43 PM
Department Approval mcost1 06/03/2015 13:35:38 PM
Contract Manager Approval btaylo7 06/03/2015 15:23:24 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/19/2015 09:52:25 AM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 09:53:19 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14456 40



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15605 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

LAS VEGAS INTERPRETERS

Agency Name: DETR - EMPLOYMENT SECURITY
DIVISION

Contractor Name: LAS VEGAS INTERPRETERS

Agency Code: 902 Address: CONNECTION LLC
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations 4616 W SAHARA AVE STE 407
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89102

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Miriam Jimenez 702/868-5842
Vendor No.: T27005869
NV Business ID: NV20031202421

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Unemployment Insurance

Agency Reference #: 1896-16-DETR

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 06/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

05/31/2016

Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Interpreter

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original Contract, which continues ongoing interpretation services at employment
Insurance hearings and other meetings in the Las Vegas area. These require interpreters to be fluent in both
languages and the interpretation must be on a word-for-word basis for clients. This amendment increases the
maximum amount from $49,500 to $99,000 due to continued need for services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $49,500.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $49,500.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $99,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Department of Labor requirement for interpreters at Unemployment Insurance Hearing.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Need to accomplish this work, insufficient staff.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15605 41



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
One in a vendor pool.
d. Last bid date: 03/03/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 03/03/2016

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Las Vegas Interpreters Connection has been under contract with the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation
since 2010 and service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbende2 05/29/2015 16:00:15 PM
Division Approval rolso1 06/01/2015 09:25:24 AM
Department Approval mcost1 06/03/2015 14:35:16 PM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 06/03/2015 15:10:05 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 06/15/2015 08:24:44 AM
BOE Agenda Approval myoun3 06/19/2015 09:56:19 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15605 41



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16884

Legal Entity
Name:

10 Tanker Air Carrier

Agency Name: DCNR - FORESTRY DIVISION Contractor Name: 10 Tanker Air Carrier
Agency Code: 706 Address: 3201 University Boulevard, SE
Appropriation Unit: 4196-10 Suite 102
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Albuquerque, NM 87106

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: John Gould 760-246-8288
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV20041038860

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: NDF16-020, RFP #3198

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Large Air Tanker Svc

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide air tankers to drop water and/or fire retardant when needed to aid in the
suppression of a fire.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $1,000,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $25.00 per hour
Other basis for payment: as needed. Payment upon receipt and approval of vendor invoice.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Division of Forestry (NDF) is responsible for the suppression of wildland fires in the State of Nevada. There are
occasions when the services of a very large air tanker is required to drop water and/or fire retardant to aid in the suppression
of a fire.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
While the NDF has a fleet of helicopters that are utilized in fire suppression efforts, the agency does not have the personnel
or equipment that can be provided through this contract.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16884

rcook
Typewritten Text
42

rcook
Typewritten Text



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3198, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was determined by an independently
appointed evaluation committee to have met the minimum requirements, possess the appropriate licensure, and able to
perform the work.
d. Last bid date: 06/01/2015 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
Yes If "Yes", please explain

United States Forest Service

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dprather 06/23/2015 13:08:06 PM
Division Approval dprather 06/23/2015 13:08:09 PM
Department Approval dprather 06/23/2015 13:08:12 PM
Contract Manager Approval ldunn 06/23/2015 13:30:44 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sbarkdul 06/25/2015 15:30:10 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/30/2015 11:14:34 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16884

rcook
Typewritten Text
42



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16762

Legal Entity
Name:

ALCATEL-LUCENT USA, INC.

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: ALCATEL-LUCENT USA, INC.

Agency Code: MSA Address: 600-700 MOUNTAIN AVENUE
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip MURRAY HILL, NJ 07974

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: PHILLIP SCHNEIDER 602-315-5071
Vendor No.: PUR0005515
NV Business ID: NV19961062566

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % VARIOUS

Agency Reference #: 3159-GB

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/15/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 351 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: COMM. SITE REPAIR

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general
maintenance statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys,
assessments, installations, replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment,
infrastructure and fixtures.  The equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems,
generator systems, fiber optics, two way radio systems, and microwave systems.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $300,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies require maintenance and repairs on various communications site equipment.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the staffing or expertise to perform maintenance and repairs.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16762 MSA 1



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was chosen based on scoring from the evaluation committee for this RFP.
d. Last bid date: 12/02/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/02/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
This contractor currently has a participating addendum with Nevada for Communications Equipment based on the NASPO
contract lead by the State of Washington.  This contractor has performed satisfactorily.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:03:04 PM
Division Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:03:06 PM
Department Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:03:08 PM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 06/09/2015 09:20:22 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/15/2015 08:46:35 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 07:52:57 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16762 MSA 1



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16832

Legal Entity
Name:

AT&T

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: AT&T

Agency Code: MSA Address: 2700 Watt Ave. RM 3349
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Sacramento, CA 95821

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Mike Pfaff 916-806-4452
Vendor No.: PUR0005271
NV Business ID: NV19711002665

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

Agency Reference #: RFP 3143 tb

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Long Distance

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing long distance services statewide.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $3,000,000.00
Other basis for payment: As invoiced by the Contractor and approved by the State

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State employees require long distance voice and data services to perform their jobs.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
These services are regulated by the Nevada Public Utilities Commission.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16832 MSA 2



Pursuant to RFP #3143, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 08/15/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 08/15/2016

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contractor is currently engaged under contract for statewide long distance services.  Quality of service is satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sberry 06/05/2015 13:40:42 PM
Division Approval sberry 06/05/2015 13:40:45 PM
Department Approval sberry 06/05/2015 13:40:48 PM
Contract Manager Approval tsmit2 06/05/2015 13:48:36 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/08/2015 10:10:07 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:39:13 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16832 MSA 2



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16765

Legal Entity
Name:

CURTIS & SONS CONSTRUCTION,
INC.

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: CURTIS & SONS CONSTRUCTION,
INC.

Agency Code: MSA Address: PO BOX 2911
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip MINDEN, NV 89423-2911

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: DOUG CURTIS 775/782-2728
Vendor No.: T27012921
NV Business ID: NV19931037528

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % VARIOUS

Agency Reference #: 3159-GB

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/15/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 351 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: COMM SITE REPAIR

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general
maintenance statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys,
assessments, installations, replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment,
infrastructure and fixtures.  The equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems,
generator systems, fiber optics, two way radio systems, and microwave systems.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $1,000,000.00
Other basis for payment: AS INVOICED

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies require maintenance and repairs for various communications equipment.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the staffing or expertise to perform the needed maintenance or repairs.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16765 MSA 3



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was chosen based on scoring by the evaluation committee for this RFP.
d. Last bid date: 12/02/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/02/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
This vendor has done several construction type jobs for the State. This vendor's work is satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 09:33:49 AM
Division Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 09:33:52 AM
Department Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 09:33:54 AM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 06/09/2015 09:20:48 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/11/2015 12:10:20 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 07:53:49 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16765 MSA 3



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16826

Legal Entity
Name:

Canon USA, Inc.

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: Canon USA, Inc.

Agency Code: MSA Address: 1Canon Park
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Melville, NY 11747

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null631-330-3613
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV20111542654

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

Agency Reference #: RFP #3091sb

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 12/31/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 184 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Copiers & Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to establish a Participating Addendum that continues ongoing leasing and services for
copiers, printers and related devices. The contract allows state agencies the option to lease or purchase devices,
and software bundles that enable and enhance the capabilities of the device. Services include ongoing
maintenance, repairs and supplies.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,000,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Copiers, printers and related devices are required to carry out routine office duties.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the ability to manufacture copiers, printers or related devices.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16826 MSA 4



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3091 and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was one of seven highest scoring proposers
as determined by an independent appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 06/14/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contractor is currently under contract and providing these services.  State agencies have been satisfied with the services
provided.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sberry 06/04/2015 10:17:09 AM
Division Approval sberry 06/04/2015 10:17:12 AM
Department Approval sberry 06/04/2015 10:17:14 AM
Contract Manager Approval sberry 06/04/2015 10:17:16 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/08/2015 09:44:35 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:42:53 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16826 MSA 4



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16766

Legal Entity
Name:

EAGLE COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: EAGLE COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

Agency Code: MSA Address: 180 RIVER ST STE A
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip ELKO, NV 89801-7721

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: DALE LOTSPEICH 775/738-4055
Vendor No.: PUR0004945
NV Business ID: NV20101615737

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % VARIOUS

Agency Reference #: 3159-GB

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/15/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 351 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: COMM SITE REPAIR

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general
maintenance statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys,
assessments, installations, replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment,
infrastructure and fixtures.  The equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems,
generator systems, fiber optics, two way radio systems, and microwave systems.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $300,000.00
Other basis for payment: AS INVOICED

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies require repair and maintenance for communication sites.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the staffing or expertise to perform the required repair and maintenance.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16766 MSA 5



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was chosen based on scoring by the evaluation committee for this RFP.
d. Last bid date: 12/02/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/02/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:08:09 PM
Division Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:08:11 PM
Department Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:08:13 PM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 06/09/2015 09:11:42 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/10/2015 14:51:22 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:32:56 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16766 MSA 5



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16808

Legal Entity
Name:

Environmental Protection Services

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: Environmental Protection Services

Agency Code: MSA Address: PO Box 21025
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Carson City, NV 89721-1025

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Brian Breiter 775-220-6687
Vendor No.: T27022506
NV Business ID: NV20101332284

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

Agency Reference #: RFP 3164 tb

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 10/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Bat Gate Const/Inst

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing bat gate construction and installation services statewide.  There is a
continued need for roosting habitats for dozens of wildlife species in abandoned mines, as well as the security of
the traveling public when in close proximity to these abandoned mines.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $500,000.00
Other basis for payment: As invoiced by the Contractor and approved by the state.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Historical hard rock mines have, over time, become significant roosting habitat for dozens of wildlife species.  In some cases
these artificial roosts serve as surrogate habitats where natural cave roosts are no longer available.  Adits and shafts have
expanded the range of some wildlife species.  Hundreds of these underground habitats provide year round shelter for
congregations of birds and bats that sometimes number in the thousands of individuals per roost.  Anticipated end products
include:  stable cave/mine roosting bat and bird habitats as well as the security of the traveling public when in close proximity
to these abandoned mines.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State agencies or employees do not have the ability or resources to construct and install these gates/grids.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16808 MSA 6



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3164, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 02/03/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/03/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contractor is currently under contract with the State for these services.  Quality of service is satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Sole Proprietor

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sberry 06/02/2015 11:08:03 AM
Division Approval sberry 06/02/2015 11:08:05 AM
Department Approval sberry 06/02/2015 11:08:07 AM
Contract Manager Approval tsmit2 06/02/2015 12:17:25 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/08/2015 09:22:17 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:40:17 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16808 MSA 6



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16761

Legal Entity
Name:

NARWHAL MET, LLC

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: NARWHAL MET, LLC

Agency Code: MSA Address: 554 W CAPITOL STREET
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories P.O. BOX 567
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84103

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: JOHN GRANT 801-870-2097
Vendor No.: T32003496
NV Business ID: NV20131182395

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % VARIOUS

Agency Reference #: 3159-GB

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/15/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 351 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: COMM. SITE REPAIR

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general
maintenance statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys,
assessments, installations, replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment,
infrastructure and fixtures.  The equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems,
generator systems, fiber optics, two way radio systems, and microwave systems.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $300,000.00
Other basis for payment: AS INVOICED

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies require maintenance and repairs on various communication site equipment.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the staffing or expertise to perform maintenance and repairs.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16761 MSA 7



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was chosen based on scoring from the evaluation committee for this RFP.
d. Last bid date: 12/02/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/02/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:06:29 PM
Division Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:06:34 PM
Department Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:06:37 PM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 06/09/2015 09:18:00 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/09/2015 14:46:55 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:35:25 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16761 MSA 7



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16767

Legal Entity
Name:

NNE CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: NNE CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Agency Code: MSA Address: 163 OSINO UNIT 5
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip ELKO, NV 89801-9402

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: RICHARD WILLIAMS 775/738-8745
Vendor No.: T27020691
NV Business ID: NV20001345027

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % VARIOUS

Agency Reference #: 3159-GB

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/15/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 351 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: COMM SITE REPAIR

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general
maintenance statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys,
assessments, installations, replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment,
infrastructure and fixtures.  The equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems,
generator systems, fiber optics, two way radio systems, and microwave systems.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $1,000,000.00
Other basis for payment: AS INVOICED

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies need maintenance and repairs for communications sites.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the staff or expertise to perform the necessary repair and maintenance.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16767 MSA 8



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was chosen based on scoring by the evaluation committee for this RFP.
d. Last bid date: 12/02/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/02/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:04:49 PM
Division Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:04:52 PM
Department Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:04:54 PM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 06/09/2015 09:19:05 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/09/2015 16:09:13 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:34:14 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16767 MSA 8



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16772

Legal Entity
Name:

RADCO COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: RADCO COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

Agency Code: MSA Address: 450 US HIGHWAY 395 N
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89704-9581

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: ROBERT DAVIDSON 775/826-6338
Vendor No.: T29007652
NV Business ID: NV20051105274

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % VARIOUS

Agency Reference #: 3159-GB

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/15/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 351 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: COMM SITE REPAIR

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general
maintenance statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys,
assessments, installations, replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment,
infrastructure and fixtures.  The equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems,
generator systems, fiber optics, two way radio systems, and microwave systems.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $1,000,000.00
Other basis for payment: AS INVOICED

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies require repair and maintenance on communications sites.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the staff or expertise required to do the repair and maintenance.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16772 MSA 9



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was chosen based on scoring by the evaluation committee for this RFP.
d. Last bid date: 12/02/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/02/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
This contractor currently holds a maintenance and repair contract for communications sites within the State.  This
contractor's work is satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:07:23 PM
Division Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:07:26 PM
Department Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:07:29 PM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 06/09/2015 09:17:31 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/09/2015 14:34:47 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:36:08 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16772 MSA 9



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16763

Legal Entity
Name:

RFI COMMUNICATIONS

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: RFI COMMUNICATIONS

Agency Code: MSA Address: 360 TURTLE CREEK CT
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip SAN JOSE, CA 95125-1389

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: DAVID GISH 408/298-5400
Vendor No.: PUR0000265A
NV Business ID: NV20021334287

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % VARIOUS

Agency Reference #: 3159-GB

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/15/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 351 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: COMM SITE REPAIR

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general
maintenance statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys,
assessments, installations, replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment,
infrastructure and fixtures.  The equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems,
generator systems, fiber optics, two way radio systems, and microwave systems.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $300,000.00
Other basis for payment: AS INVOICED

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies require maintenance and repairs on various communications equipment.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the staffing or expertise to perform maintenance and repairs.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16763 MSA 10



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was chosen based on scoring from the evaluation committee for this RFP.
d. Last bid date: 12/02/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/02/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
This vendor has held a contract for security systems equipment for various agencies within the State.  This vendor's work is
satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:04:06 PM
Division Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:04:08 PM
Department Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:04:11 PM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 06/09/2015 09:19:46 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/09/2015 16:17:20 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:33:54 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16763 MSA 10



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16744

Legal Entity
Name:

RICOH USA, INC.

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: RICOH USA, INC.

Agency Code: MSA Address: 70 VALLEY STREAM PKWY
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip MALVERN, PA 19355-1407

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Bart Lemmon 425-255-0730
Vendor No.: PUR0001061
NV Business ID: NV19971101366

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

Agency Reference #: RFP #3091/sb

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 12/31/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 184 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Copiers & Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to establish a Participating Addendum that continues ongoing leasing and services for
copiers, printers and related devices. The contract allows state agencies the option to lease or purchase devices,
and software bundles that enable and enhance the capabilities of the device. Services include ongoing
maintenance, repairs and supplies.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $6,000,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Copiers, printers, and related devices are required to carry out routine office duties.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the ability to manufacturer copiers, printers or related devices.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16744 MSA 11



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3091 and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was one of seven scoring proposers as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 06/14/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contractor is currently under contract and providing these services.  State agencies have been satisfied with the services
provided.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sberry 05/19/2015 15:28:59 PM
Division Approval sberry 05/19/2015 15:29:01 PM
Department Approval sberry 05/19/2015 15:29:03 PM
Contract Manager Approval sberry 05/19/2015 15:29:40 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:41:09 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:41:13 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16744 MSA 11



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16760

Legal Entity
Name:

SPECTRUM SERVICES, INC.

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: SPECTRUM SERVICES, INC.

Agency Code: MSA Address: 8905 W POST POAD
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories STE 100
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89148

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: CHRISPTOPHER WENER 702-367-
7705

Vendor No.: T32003495
NV Business ID: NV19941072954

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % VARIOUS

Agency Reference #: 3159 - GB

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/15/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 351 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Comm. site repair

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide communications site parts and services to include emergency and general
maintenance statewide on an as needed basis.  Services will include scheduled and unscheduled surveys,
assessments, installations, replacements, maintenance, and repairs of state owned communication equipment,
infrastructure and fixtures.  The equipment includes towers, antennas, transmission lines, AC/DC power systems,
generator systems, fiber optics, two way radio systems, and microwave systems.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $300,000.00
Other basis for payment: As invoiced

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies require maintenance and repairs on various communication site equipment.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the staffing or expertise to perform the maintenance and repairs.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16760 MSA 12



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was chosen based on scoring from an evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 12/02/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/02/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:05:47 PM
Division Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:05:50 PM
Department Approval ldeloach 06/08/2015 12:05:52 PM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 06/09/2015 09:18:40 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/09/2015 16:06:51 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:35:08 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16760 MSA 12



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 07/07/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16745

Legal Entity
Name:

Xerox Corporation

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: Xerox Corporation

Agency Code: MSA Address: 6120 E. Roland Street
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Mesa, AZ 85215

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Annie Van Gilder 480-588-8313
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV19641000454

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

Agency Reference #: RFP #3091/sb

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 07/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 12/31/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 184 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Copiers & Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to establish a Participating Addendum that continues ongoing leasing and services for
copiers, printers and related devices. The contract allows state agencies the option to lease or purchase devices,
and software bundles that enable and enhance the capabilities of the device. Services include ongoing
maintenance, repairs and supplies.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $6,000,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Copiers, printers and related devices are required to carry out routine office duties.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the ability to manufacturer copiers, printers or related devices.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16745 MSA 13



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3091 and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was one of seven highest scoring proposers
as determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 06/14/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contractor is currently under contract and providing these services.  State agencies have been satisfied with the services
provided.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sberry 05/19/2015 15:35:40 PM
Division Approval sberry 05/19/2015 15:35:43 PM
Department Approval sberry 05/19/2015 15:35:45 PM
Contract Manager Approval sberry 05/19/2015 15:35:47 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 06/08/2015 09:50:19 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 06/19/2015 08:41:50 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16745 MSA 13




























































































































































































































































	July 07, 2015 - Agenda
	Exhibits
	Exhibit 1 - Leases
	Exhibit 2 - Contracts
	Exhibit 3 - Master Service Agreements
	Exhibit 4 - Information Contracts

	July 07, 2015 - Detailed Agenda
	02 - Approval of June 09, 2015 BOE Meeting Minutes
	03 - State Vehicle Purchase
	A - Fleet Services Division (DOA)
	B - Investigation Division (DPS)

	04 - Approval to pay Cash Settlement
	A - Dept of Transportation ($1,700,000)
	B - Dept of Transportation ($1,100)

	05 - Authorization to Contract with a Current or Former Employee
	06 - Authorization to Approve a Provider Agreement
	07 - Leases (Exhibit 1)
	08 - Contracts (Exhibit 2)
	09 - Master Service Agreements (Exhibit 3)
	10 - Contracts Approved by the Clerk of the Board (Exhibit 4)
	11 - Information Items
	A - DMV
	B - DETR




